| 3
S CITY ©F

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of the
Joint Standards Committee Hearings Sub-Committee

To: Councillors Cannon, Runciman and Kramm

Date: Monday, 19 December 2016

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: The King John Room (GO59) - West Offices
AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare:
e Any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests
e Any prejudicial interests
e Any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Complaint against a Member of City of York (Pages 1 - 190)
Council
To consider a complaint made against a Member of City of York
Council, which has been referred to the Hearings Sub-Committee
for determination following an investigation.

Details of the procedure to be followed at the hearing can be
found at pages 7 to 11 of the agenda papers.

3. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

www.york.gov.uk



Democratic Services Officer responsible for this meeting:

Name: Jayne Carr
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552030
e E-mail — jayne.carr@york.gov.uk

Distribution:

Members of the Hearings Sub-Committee
Independent Persons

Investigating Officer

Deputy Monitoring Officer

Subject Member

Complainants

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

e Business of the meeting
¢ Any special arrangements
e Copies of reports




Page 1 Agenda Item 2

=N CITY OF

YOR

COUNCIL

L)

Standards Hearing Sub Committee 19 December 2016

Complaint against Councillor John Galvin — York City Council

Complainants : Mr Andrew Dickinson, Mrs Rosy
Dickinson, and Mr Michael Askew

Subject Member : Councillor John Galvin

Investigator : Ms Christine Bainton

1. Background

1.1 This Complaint is brought by Mr Andrew Dickinson, Mrs Rosy
Dickinson, and Mr Michael Askew against Councillor John Galvin, a
Member of York City Council (“the Council”’). The Complaint relates
to the behaviour of Councillor Galvin at a planning site visit on 9"
March last, and at a meeting of the Planning Sub-Committee on 7"
April.

1.2 On 15" June 2016, the Complaint was considered by the
Assessment Sub-Committee and it was decided to refer the matter
for investigation. Ms Christine Bainton was appointed to conduct
the investigation and her Report appears at pages 151 to 159. It
will be noted from the Report that Ms Bainton is of the opinion that
Councillor Galvin did breach one section of the Code of Conduct by
not treating others with respect, but found no breach on the other
complaints.

1.3 The Investigation Report has been shared with the parties. The
Independent Persons, Ms Davies and Mr Laverick, have also been
consulted. Having taken their views into account, the Deputy



@)

(b)
(©)

(d)

2.2

3.1

Page 2

Monitoring Officer took the view that this matter was not capable of
a local resolution and referred the matter for a hearing.

The Complaints

The Complaints appear in full at pages 13 to 117, but can be
summarised as follows:

At the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 7™ April 20186,
Councillor Galvin, being both a Governor of York Hospital and a
Member of the Council, had a conflict of interest in Agenda items 3
(a) and (b) and should not have taken part in the meeting.

That Councillor Galvin acted with bias at the meeting.

At the meeting Councillor Galvin failed to treat those present with
respect, and bullied and intimidated them.

At the site visit on 9" March, Councillor Galvin failed to treat
members of the public who were present with respect, bullied,
swore, and intimidated them.

The Planning Meeting was recorded and can be viewed on
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SBogKzG8NHg&feature=youtu.
be&t=1m19s

The Code of Conduct for York City Council

As required by the Localism Act 2011, the Council has adopted a
Code of Conduct which sets out the conduct expected of
Councillors when acting as such. The Code of Conduct appears at
pages 119 to 127. Particularly relevant to this complaint are the
following sections:

“General Duties as to Conduct
(1) You must treat others with respect.

(2) You must not bully or intimidate any person, or attempt to bully
or intimidate them.


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SBoqKzG8NHg&feature=youtu.be&t=1m19s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SBoqKzG8NHg&feature=youtu.be&t=1m19s

3.2

Page 3

(3) You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could
reasonably be regarded as bringing the Council into disrepute,
or your position as a Councillor into disrepute.

Part 2 Interests
Disclosure of Interests

6(3) If you have a personal interest and a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard it as
so significant that it would likely prejudice your judgement of the
public interest then you have a prejudicial interest. This is
subject to the exceptions set out in paragraph 6.4

6(4) You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the
authority where that business:

(a) does not affect your financial position or the financial
position of a person or body named in the second
schedule:

(b) does not relate to the determination of any approval,
consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to
you or any person or body described in the second
schedule;

Second Schedule — Other Interests
1. Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general

control or management and to which you are appointed or
nominated by your authority

2. Any body —

(a) exercising functions of a public nature:
(b) directed to charitable purposes; “

The treatment of prejudicial interests is covered in Section 5E
of the Code of Good Practice for Councillors in the Planning
Process (pages 129 to 141). The relevant paragraph states:

‘3.2 ...Members should not participate in the debate or vote
where they have such an interest and, if the interest arises in a



4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 4

decision making meeting, they should leave the room. Simply
being a member of an outside body will not automatically
amount to a prejudicial interest but Members need to think
about whether their involvement is more significant than that
and consider taking specific advice.”

Councillor Galvin’s Interests

Councillor Galvin’s position as a Council appointed Governor of
York Hospital was registered in his Register of Interests (pages 143
to 149).

Before the Planning meeting, Councillor Galvin took advice from the
Monitoring Officer on his interest and was advised that his interest
was personal, but not prejudicial, and was therefore, entitled to take
part in the Meeting and vote. Councillor Galvin duly declared a
personal interest at the beginning of the Meeting, which can be
seen from the Minutes (pages 177 to 180).

The Hearing Process

The Standards Committee has approved a procedure for hearings
which appears at pages 7 to 11. In line with that procedure the
complainants and subject member have been asked to complete a
pre hearing check list indicating whether they intend to attend the
hearing, to identify facts which they say are in dispute, and state
whether any part of the hearing should be in public.

Completed Pre-Hearing Check-List forms have been returned by
Councillor Galvin, Mr Dickinson, Mrs Dickinson, and Mr Askew.
None of them wish the hearing to be held in private, and they are
content for the Investigator's Report and other relevant documents
to be made public. Councillor Galvin and Mr Dickinson have
indicated that they will be attending the hearing.

Councillor Galvin’s form is at pages 161 to 163. He disagrees with
the Investigating Officer’s view in paragraph 38 of her Report in
relation to the word “Pillock”. Councillor Galvin asserts that this is a



5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

Page 5

slang term meaning “stupid person”. He believes that it is not a
swear word. He also says that his comments were not directed to a
member of the public.

Mr Dickinson’s form is at pages 165 to 167. He also disagrees with
the Investigating Officer’s interpretation of the word “Pillock”. Mr
Dickinson seems not to have found the word offensive, but he does
feel that the use of such a phase suggests that Councillor Galvin
attended the site meeting with a “pre-determined view” and acted
with bias.

Mr Askew’s form is at pages 169 to 171. It will be noted that he
agrees with the facts found by the Investigating Officer.

Mrs Dickinson’s form appears at pages 173 to 175. She disagrees
with the Investigation Report in relation to the behaviour of
Councillor Galvin and his alleged bias.

Issues to be determined

Has Councillor Galvin breached the Council’s Code of Conduct
in respect of one or more of the allegations?

In the event that the Sub Committee finds that the Code has been
breached it will need to determine whether a sanction should be
imposed, and if so, what sanction.

Glen McCusker, Solicitor
Deputy Monitoring Officer

Background papers: None

Annexed Documents

1.
2.

Hearing Procedure (pages 7 to 11)

Complaint Form submitted by Mr Dickinson (pages 13 to 18)



o a M~ W

~

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

Page 6

Complaint Form submitted by Mrs Dickinson (pages 19 to 22)
Complaint Form submitted by Mr Askew (pages 23 to 117)
Code of Conduct of York City Council (pages 119 to 127)

Code of Good Practice for Councillors in the Planning Process
(pages 129 to 141)

Councillor Galvin’s Register of Interests (pages 143 to 149)

Report of investigation conducted by Ms Christine Bainton (pages
151 to 159)

Pre-hearing form submitted by Councillor Galvin (pages 161 to 163)
Pre-hearing form submitted by Mr Dickinson (pages 165 to 167)
Pre hearing form submitted by Mr Askew (pages 169 to 171)
Pre-hearing form submitted by Mrs Dickinson (pages 173 to 175)
Minutes of the Area Planning Sub-Committee (pages 177 to 180)

E-mail from the Director of Estates and Facilities at York Hospital
(pages 181 to 190)



Page 7
Annex 1

City of York Council Standards Committee — Hearing Procedure
General Matters

1. In this procedure the term “interested parties” is used to cover the
complainant, the subject member and the investigating officer. The
interested parties will all be invited to attend the hearing as
potential withesses.

2.  The Independent Persons will also be invited to attend the hearing
in an advisory, non-voting capacity. Their views will be sought as
to whether the evidence establishes a breach of the code of
conduct and, if so, as to what if any penalty should be imposed.

3.  The Hearing Panel will be made up of members of the Standards
Committee and there will normally be three members. The Panel
will be supported by the Monitoring Officer or his representative
and a democratic services officer.

4.  The meeting will be open to the press and public unless
confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed. The
Standards Committee considers that in general the public interest
in seeing that complaints relating to Councillors are handled
properly will outweigh any considerations relating to the privacy of
the Councillor concerned but each case will be considered on its
own merits including consideration of the privacy of other parties.

5.  The hearing will normally follow the procedure set out below but
the Chair has the discretion to vary it at any time. Such a variation
may be considered where, for example, the Chair believes that
doing so will be in the interests of fairness or help in establishing
the facts of the case.

6. It will not usually be necessary for the Subject Member to be
represented at a hearing but he or she may choose to arrange
such representation which may be by a solicitor, barrister or
another person.

7.  The Panel may take legal advice at any time during the hearing or
during its deliberations. The substance of any advice given to the
Panel will normally be shared with the parties.



10.

11.

Page 8
Annex 1

Preliminary procedures

Prior to the hearing commencing the Panel may meet privately to
review the material presented and to agree the main lines of
enquiry.

At the start of the hearing, the Chair will arrange introductions of
the Panel, its Officers, the Independent Persons and the interested
parties. The Chair will briefly explain the procedure which the
Panel will follow in the conduct of the hearing. The Chair will
confirm that each interested party has seen the final report of the
investigating officer and has had the opportunity to engage in the
pre hearing procedures.

The Monitoring Officer will identify whether the pre hearing
procedures have identified any significant disagreements about the
facts contained in the Investigating Officer’s report. The Panel will
record the agreed facts and establish the facts in dispute which
they will be required to rule upon.

If a party raises an issue which has not been raised previously
then that party shall be required to give a full explanation to the
Panel as to why is was not raised earlier. The Panel may then:

a. Consider whether or not to allow the issue that has been
raised to be dealt with at the hearing

b.  Consider whether the hearing should be adjourned for further
investigations to take place.

Determining factual disputes

12.

13.

If there are disputed facts which the Panel consider relevant to
establishing whether the Code has been breached or as to the
seriousness of the breach then, the Panel will adopt an inquisitorial
approach in establishing the facts. The Chair will invite members of
the Panel to ask questions of the interested parties or any other
potential witness present. The Monitoring Officer may also ask
questions.

Once a witness has answered questions from the Panel then the
Chair will ask the interested parties whether there are other issues
which ought properly to be raised with the witness. The Chair (or



14.

Page 9
Annex 1

another Member) may put any such issues to the witness him or
herself or may allow the relevant party to ask questions directly.

The Panel must reach a decision as to the facts it finds to be
proven. The Panel must also make a decision as to whether the
proven facts (including those which are agreed) show a breach of
the code of conduct. Depending on the complexity of the case the
Panel may consider each of those issues separately or deal with
them together. In either case the Chair will invite the parties to
make representations on each matter before the Panel reaches its
decision.

Panel deliberations

15.

16.

When the Panel is considering its finding of facts and whether
those facts amount to a breach of the Code of conduct it will do so
in private but in the presence of the Monitoring Officer, the
Independent persons and the Democratic Services officer.

At the conclusion of the Panel’s deliberations, the Chair will
publicly announce the Panel’s findings as to the facts and as to
whether those facts show a breach of the code of conduct. The
Panel will give reasons for their findings. It will be normal practice
to share the substance of any advice given by the Monitoring
Officer and Independent persons at this stage.

Determining Sanctions

17.

18.

19.

If the Panel concludes that the Subject Member has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will invite
representations from the interested parties as to what action, if
any, it should take.

The Panel will then consider whether to impose a sanction, and, if
so, what sanction to impose and when that sanction should take
effect. It will do so in private but in the presence of the Monitoring
Officer, the Independent persons and the Democratic Services
officer.

The sanctions available to the Hearings Panel are to —

e Censure the Councillor;



20.

21.

Page 10
Annex 1

e Formally report its findings to the City Council or Parish
Council for information;

e Recommend to the Councillor's Group Leader (or in the case
of un-grouped Councillors, recommend to Council or to
Committees) that he/she be removed from any or all Panels
or Sub-Committees of the Council;

e Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the Councillor
be removed from the Cabinet, or removed from particular
Portfolio responsibilities;

e Recommend to Council that the Leader be removed from
Office (if it is the Leader conduct that is being considered)

¢ Instruct the Monitoring Officer to [or recommend that the
Parish Council] arrange training for the Councillor;

e Remove [or recommend to the Parish Council that the
Councillor be removed] from all outside appointments to
which he/she has been appointed or nominated by the
authority [or by the Parish Council];

e Withdraw [or recommend to the Parish Council that it
withdraws] facilities provided to the Councillor by the
Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and
Internet access.

The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the
Councillor or to withdraw Councillors’ basic or special responsibility
allowances. If the Panel decides to withdraw facilities from the
Councillor it must ensure that the Councillor is not thereby
prevented from undertaking his/her representative duties.

The Chair will publicly announce the decision of the Panel. The
substance of any further advice given by the Independent Person
and Monitoring Officer will also be shared. Written notice of the
findings of the Panel will be given as soon as is reasonably
practicable to the Subject Member. They will also be placed on the
council’s website. If the complaint was against the Subject Member
as a parish councillor, written notice of the findings of the Panel will
be sent to the clerk to the parish council.



Page 11
Annex 1

Other action

22. The Panel may also consider making any recommendations to the
Council concerned with a view to promoting higher standards of
conduct among its members.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Annex 2

Complaint Form

.Your details

Title Mr

First Name Andrew

Last name Dickinson

Address T
York,

North Yorkshire,

 Daytime telephone number

Evening telephone number f

Mobile telephone

™

E-mait address | - ) |

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unfess
necessary to deal with your complaint.

However, we wifl tell the following people that you have made this
complairnt:

« The Member you are complaining about
s The parish or town clerk (if applicable)
e The Independent Persons who advise the City Council on handling

standards compfaints

We will tell them your name and details of your complaint. If you have
serious concerns about your name or details of your complaint being
released please discuiss those concerns with the Council's Monitoring
Officer before submitting your complaint.

2. Making your compiaint

You should submit your complaint to the Council's Monitoring Officer by
a-mail to monitoringofficer@york.gov.uk or by post to




Page 14

Annex 2

Andrew Docherty

The Monitoring Officer
City of York Counail
West Offices

Station Rise

York

YO16GA

3.  Please provide the name and address of the Councillors who you
believe have breached the code of conduct and the name of their

Council:
Title First nhame Last name Name of Council
Mr John Galvin York City Council,
Bishopthorpe Ward
4. Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the

Councillor has done that you believe breaches the Code of
Conduct. If you are complaining about more than one Councilior
you should clearly explain what each individual has done that you
believe breaches the code of conduct.

Y wish to make a forma} complaint regarding the conduct of Councillor Jolm Galvin at the planning
committee meeting on the 7th April 2016 where the conversion of the Groves Chapel into a
Sainsbury’s convenience store was discussed.

Mr Galvin declared an interest at the beginning of the meeting as he is a Governar of York Haspital,
the current owner of the Groves Chapel. Due to the obvious financial pressure the Hospital is under I
believe that Mr Gavin’s impartiality was compromised by his pesition on the board.

Indeed the code of conduct for NHS Governors, section A.5.b page 21 states thai:-
Governors must aci in the besl interests of the NHS foundation trust and should adhere lo its values....
Further, section A.5.e states that:-

Governors should work closely with the board of divectors and musi be presented with, for
consideration, the aral report and accounts and the annual plan at a general meeling.

Mr Galvin would therefore be Fully aware of the Hospital's dire finances and, as he is required to work




Page 15

Annex 2

closely with the board, his judgment must clearly be biased in favour of the highest bidder. Indeed the
state of the trusts finances was discussed during the commitiee meeting and the relevance of this
questioned by some commitiee members.

Mr Galvin tried to inhibit discussing the negative impact of the scheme and secemed frustrated &t
Councilior Craghill's concerns. He seemed shocked when Councillor Craghill suggested it should be
refused and stated that they would “need to put a case together for refusal' over a fifteen minute break.

Other committee members stated that objectors were being sensationalist yet he failed 1o question the
details of this and denied objectors any right of redress.

He stated that 2ll points had been satisfactorily addressed despite five commitiee members voting
against the scheme due to unacceptable harm 1o neighbours and significant opposition. Indeed his

closing comments were that he *had a duty to the developer!”

Throughout the meeting he tried 1o coerce people into voting in favour of the development without
any additional conditions and reminded members in s stern tone that they would be “going against
officer’s recommendations ' if they did not.

Ultimately Mr Galvin had the deciding vote due to comm ittee members voting 5-3 and, without any
hesitation, declared that it was approved. His lack of interest from the outset indicted that he was
biased and in favour of the development, due, I strongly suspect, to his position as a Govemor for the

Hospital.

1 would also like to add that during the site visit, which he arrived at 40 minutes late, his opening
words were ‘ This is not a Rugby scrum! Any shouting and we are off?’.

He threatened to leave on several other occasions despite all members and visitors acting
professionally, though clearly concerned at the impaci of the development.

Mr Galvin also swore when objectors arranged for a delivery velicle, similar in size to the proposed
Sainsbury’s delivery vehicles, drove byto help illustrate the serious traffic issues along Union
Terrace. This attitude demonstrates his biased views as well as being unprofessional and rude to
concerned members of the public and local residents.

I believe Mr Galvin acied in the interests of the Hospital and not the residents of York.

Residents, including myself, were sa thoroughly disgusted at the whole affair we shouted “disgrace!”

as we left the committee meeting.

I hope you fully investigate Mr Gavin's role as Governor of York Hospital and why he failed to take
any notice of the substantial objections that were raised at the committee meeting. 1 trust you will take
appropriate steps to ensure that this travesty of justice is corrected and the residents of York can be
sure their Councillors are acting in their interests and not cominercial corporations.

I ook forward to your reply,
Yours sincerely,

Andrew Dickinson.




Page 16

Annex 2

it is important that you provide al the information which you wish
to have taken into account by the Monitoring Officer and
Independent Persons in considering whether your complaint
requires a detaifed investigation. For example:

&

0

You should be as specific as possibie as fo what you are
allaging the Councillors did. For example instead of saying
that a Councillor insulted you, you should state what they
said or did.

You should provide dates of the the alleged incidents if
possible or a general timeframe if you cannot remember
dates.

You should confirm whether there were any witnesses.
You should ensure that your complaint is about the code of
conduct The Joint Standards Committee cannot deal with
general complaints about decisions made by a Council or
actions taken by Councillors in a purely private capacity.

Additional help

Complaints must be submitted in writing. This includes by e-mail.
We can make reasonable adjustments if you have a disability
which prevents you making your complaint in writing or provide
assistance if you have any other difficulty which prevents you
completing this form.

5,



Wiison, Alexander

Page 17

Annex 2

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Atfachmanis:

Follow Up Flag:
Fiag Status:

Capfion:

Client:
CligntDesc:
ConverfToPDF:
currentSubject:
DatabaselD:
DociD:
FromOutiook:
Matter:
MatterDesc:
NorAtt:
NorSaved:
NorweiMail:
SaveToNorwel:

From: Andrew Dickinson T
Sent: i8 Aprit 2016 19:22

To: bocherty, Andrew

McCusker, Gien

06 June 2016 13:37

Wilson, Alexander

FW: Re: Councilior complaint
CodeofGovernance.uly2014_For Council.pdf

Foltow up
Flagged

Norwel Emait (LCBT.60D)

LCB1

Customer & Business Support

No

Standards Complaint - Clir. J. Galvin {LCB1.600)
800

§22863

Yes

600

Standards Complaint - Clir. J. Galvin
No

Yes

Yes

Yes

subject: Fwd: Re: Councitior complaint

Dear Mr Docherty,

Please find attached the code of Governance as requested. | have highlighted relevant sections, which are

an page 21, for your convenience,

Please do not hesitate to contact e If you require any further information or clarification on any of the

points | have raised.

| jook forward to hearing from you in due course.

Kind regards,

Andrew Dickinson.

On 18 April 2016 at 10:29, monitoringoffice

Drear Mr, Dickinson,

Thank you for your e-mail. Can you provide me with a copy of the code of conduct to which you refer in

your complaint.

Regards,

Andy Docherty | Assistant Director

ork.gov.uk <monitoringofficer@york gov.uk> wrote:



Page 18

Annex 2
t: 01904 551004 | e: andrew.dochertv@york.cov.uk

City of York Council | Customer and Business Support Services
West Offices| Station Rise | York YO1 6GA
www.vork.gov.uk | facebook.com/citvofvork [@CityofYork

-~--Original Message-----

From: Andrew Dickinson [matlto:e
Sent: 17 April 2016 21:06

To: monitoringofficer@york.gov.uk

Subject: Councillor complaint
To whomnt it may concer,
Please find attached my completed complaint form for your immediate attention and action.

Kind regards,

Andrew Dickinson.

R e E L E R R E A R R R R

Help protect the environment! - please don't print this email unless you really need to.
*******$$$$*******$**#**$***#***—?*************

This commmication is from City of York Council.

The information contained within, and in any altachment(s), is confidential and legally privileged. It is for
the exclusive use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended recipieni(s), please note that any
form of distribution, copying or use of this communication, or the information within, is strictly prohibited

and may be unlawful, Equally, you must not disclose all, or part. of its conients to any other person.

If you have received this communication in error, please return it immediately to the sender, then delete and

destroy any copies of it.

City of York Council disclaitns any liability for action taken in reliance on the content of this
communication.



Wilson, Alexander

Page 19

Annex 3

Fram: McCusker, Glen

Sent: 06 June 2016 13:38

To: Wilson, Alexander

Subject: FW: Formal compiaint of Councilior James Galvin's behaviour
Foitow Up Fiag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Caption: Norwel Emait {LCB1.600)

Cilient: LCB1

ClientDesc: Custamer & Business Support

ConveriToPDF: No

currentSubject: Standards Comiplaint - Clir. J. Galvin (LCB1.800)
DatabaselD: B3O

Doglb: 822870

FromQutlook: Yes

Matier: 600

MatterDesc: Standards Complaint - Clir. J. Galvin

NorAtt: No

MorSaved: Yes

NorweiMail: Yes

SaveToNorwek Yas

Fm:ﬁ: Rosy Dickinéon [maitoy .
Sent: 14 April 20156 18:56

‘Fo: Docherty, Andraw
Subject: RE: Formal complaint of Councillor James Galvin's behaviour

Dear Andrew,

it is actually Mrs Dickinson. in answerto your enguiry,

1. On the site visit to Union Terrace on Wednesday March Sth, he swore at a member of the public, in
front of me and covered his mouth and looked around guiltity. 1do not feel that is becoming or
acceptable for a councitlor and more especially for the chairperson - particularly as my children

were present.

My daughter Christabelle, 12, was present although | don't think she heard him and my hushand Andrew
saw him cover his mouth, There was another member of the public who noted it as he looked at him when
he covered his mouth and smiled as he covered his mouth and said something under his breath which |
couldn't hear. He was annoyed with the lorry driver who was driving and disturbing the site visit. | don't

remember the exact words but he did swear.

1. At the site visit he was extremely aggressive towards the public and silenced, cajoled and builied
them. In fact this conversation happened with a member of the public, Mr Angus MacArthur who
runs a shop in Gillygate:Angus Machrthur; Can you tell me how much longer the presentation will
e as | have closed my shop to attend ?Councillor Galvin: As long as it takes!Angus MacArthur: But
you were 40 minutes fate and we had to wait in the pouring rain...Councillor Galvin: Well we'd have
been earlier if we'd had a helicopter ha ha fia  To which Angus MacArthur walked off - upset and

humiliated,

Angus MacArthur was present as were many of the rouncitlors and myself and Liz Henley and many others

1



Page 20

Annex 3

- he had the discussion publicly when the presentation was baing given so it was totally public. it was rude
and aggressive.

1. He then went on to say that we should deal with "the real world".

This was again heard by all, you can ask Michae] Askew or Al Rycroft? 1 will circulate your reguest for
further witnesses and ask them to send replies and evidence to yourself.

As a teacher 1 would not be allowed to speak to others in this way. It is unprofessional and rude. | expect
him to be given a less public role in the future as he is a very poor public figure.

Thank yol.
Rosy Dickinsen

From: andrew,docherty@york.gov.uk
To:r

Subject: RE: Formal complaint of Councillor James Galvin's behaviour
Date: Thu, 14 Apr 2016 15:32:33 +0000

Dear Ms. Dickinson,

Thank you for your e-mail which | am considering with the independent persons
who advise the Council on standards matters.

Would you be able to elaborate for me on what you say in paragraphs 1 to 3 below.

in particular could you let me kriow what was said, who else was present and may
have heard and what were the circumstances in which this occuired.

Regards,

Andy Docherty | Assistant Director
t: 01904 551004 | e: andrew.docherty@york.gov.uk

City of York Council | Customer and Business Support Services
West Offices| Station Rise | York YO1 6GA
www.york.gov.uk | facebook.com/cityofyork | @CityofYork

fFrom: Rosy Dickinson _ e
Senk: 11 April 2016 21:51

Ta: monitoringofficer@york.gov.uk
Subject: Formal compizint of Councillor James Galvin's behaviour

Hi,



Page 21

Annex 3

1 would like to make a formal complaint about the behaviour of Councillor lames Galvin as chairperson for
the planning decision for the Groves chapel in York for the following reasons:-

1.

W

On the site visit to Union Terrace an Wednesday March 3th, he swore at a member of the public, in
front of me and covered his mouth and [ooked around guiltily. | do not feel that is becomingor
acceptable for a councillor and more especially for the chairperson - particularly as my children
were present.

At the site visit he was extremely aggressive towards the public and sitenced, cajoled and builied
them. In fact this conversation happened with a member of the public, Mr Angus MacArthur who
runs a shop in Gillygate:Angus MacArthur: Can you tall me how much longer the presentation will
he as | have closed my shop o attend?Councillor Galvin: As long as it takesiAngus MacArthur: But
you were 40 minutes late and we had to wait in the pouring rain...Councillor Galvin: Well we'd have
heen earlier If we'd had a helicopter ha ha ha To which Angus MacArthur waiked off - upset and
hurmniltated.

He then went an to say that we should deal with "the real world".

At the planning meeting, when [ was giving my speech, 1 asked Councilior Galvin If he wouldn't tell
me when there was 30 secands left as | had a stopwatch and it would put me off and } was nervaus.
But... He ignored me and barked at me 130 seconds!”, which made me flounder and was
unprofaessional.

He was dismissive - both verbally and through body language of Councillor Denise Craghiil's
guestions - continually sighing and hurrying her up, He ignored her request to examine mitigations
like bollards, a one way system or 3 variant on the parking system. This was never discussed.

He stated that he had interests in the decision to be made but he still made the casting vote. No
matter what is said, this was biased, undemocratic and a disgusting abuse of power. | will be
tatking further to the press about this.

i would tike Counciltor Galvin to write tomeina public letter of apology and that he be removed
from position as the chairpersen. He is an embarrassment to York and to the council: | am not
alone in thinking this, This was the worst abuse of power | have ever witnessed.

| look forward to your reply,

Rosy Dickinson

****$*¥$*$***************#****#***************

Help protect the environment! - please don't print this email unless you really need to.

****#***%***#**#**

dod e sk ok etk sk ok oM kR kN kR R R K R R R k¥ Ok K

This communication is from City of York Council,

The information contained within, and in any attachment{s}, is confidential and legally privileged. it is for
the exclusive use of the Intended recipient(s). if you are not the intended racipient(s), please note that any
form of distribution, copying or use of this communication, or the information within, is strictly prohibited
and may be unlawful. Equally, you must not disclose all, or part, of its contents to any other person,



Page 22

Annex 3

if you have received this communication in error, please return it immediately to the sender, then delete
and destroy any copies of it.

Chty of York Council disclaims any liability for action taken in refliance on the content of this
commumnication.



Page 23

Compiaint Form

Annex 4 a

Your details
Title Mr
First Name Michael
_ast name Askew
Address v -

York

Daytime telephone number .
Evening telephone number {
Mobile telephone
E-mail address { e — i

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unless necessary

to deal with your complaint.

However, we will tell the following people that you have made this complaint:

e The Member you are complaining about
» The parish or town clerk (if applicable)
e The Independent Persons who advise the City Council on handling

standards complaints

We will tell them your name and details of your complaint. If you have serious
concemns about your name or details of your complaint being released please
discuss those concerns with the Council’'s Monitoring Officer before

submitting your complaint.



Page 24

Annex 4«

2. Making your complaint
You should submit your complaint to the Council’s Monitoring Officer by e-mail

to menitoringofficer@york.qov.uk or by post to:

Andrew Docherty

The Manitoring Officer
City of York Council
West Offices

Station Rise

York

YO1 6GA

3. Please provide the name and address of the Councillors who you
beliave have breached the code of conduct and the name of their

Councit:
Title First name Last name Name of Council
Mr John Galvin York
4. Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the

Councillor has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If
you are complaining about more than one Councillor you should clearly
explain what each individual has done that you believe breaches the
code of conduct.

This complaint relates to the conflict of interest of Councillor fohn Galvin who is a member of the
Board of Governors for York District Hospital {the vendors of Groves Chapel) and chairman of the
Area Planning Committee. Councillor Galvin explained at the beginning of the Committee meeting
that he had this conflict of interest, but it was irrelevant because he has no influence on the
decisions of the Hospital Estates Department. In reality the conflict |s relevant because in his
capacity on the Board of Governors. Mr Gaivin has a duty to strangthen the hospital finances as far as
passible. If the hospital can dispose of Groves Chagel to the highest bidder (in this case the
developers 5. Harrison) that objective is furthered. As a Councilior Mr Galvin has a separate
responsibility for the welibeing of the Yark electors and {inter alia} to the locat residents. In the light
of this conflict of interest the proper action would have been for Councilior Galvin to recuse himself,
and to take no part in the Groves Chapel decision. A different chair could then have been electad by
due process. As it happens the vote was tied with the chairman’s casting vote heing detisive in
favour of the applicants S. Harrison.

A different parson chairing the meeting might have voted differently, and a different decision would
have resulted. The decision was made under improper circumstances and it should be declarad null
and vold,




Page 25

Annex 4
McCusker, Glen
From: Docherty, Andrew
Sent: 15 Aprit 2018 14:08
T David Laverick
Suhject: Fwd: Complaint form
Attachments: Governors_guide_August_2013_UPDATED_NOV_13.pdf; ATTQ0001.him; NHS

BriefGuideE orGovernors.paf; ATTO0002.him; SAMembersCodeofConduct. pdf. pdf;
ATTO0003. bt

Hi David, } asked Mr. Askew to expand on his suggestion that Cllr. Galvin is under some duty to strengthen the
finances of the Hospital Trust. This is his response.

Regards

Andy Docherty

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Michael Askew <

Date: 15 April 2016 at 09:21:50 BST

To: "Docherty, Andrew” <andrew.dochertv@vyork gov.uk>

Cc: *Peter.Lawrence @warekay. co,uk” <Peter Lawrence@warekay.co.uk>, "Rachael Maskell
{rachael. maskell. mp@parliament.uk)” <rachasel.maskell. mp@ padtisment.ule

Subject: RE: Complaint form

Andy

| enclose the NHS Brief Guide for Governors and the reference guide to which it refers. Page 26 of
the reference guide explains that “The councii of governors has a duty to hold the non-executive
directors individually and collectively to account for the performance of the board of directors.”
Governors of York Teaching Hospital must act in the interests of the hospital in order to fulfif their
duty. At a time when health budgets are under severe strain NHS trusts and other hospital
governing bodies will be seeking ta ensure that their balance sheets are as strong as possible. it
would be a dereliction of duty if any person serving on Councit of Governors for York District
Hospital did not support that aim, Itis a reasonable presumption is that Councitlor Galvin in his
capacity as & Governor feels a responsibility for the strength of the York teaching Hospital finances.
f the hospital believes (as Mr James Hayward of the estates department explained at the meeting)
that they have no further need for Groves Chapel it is a requirement of their governance that in
support of the same aim they should seli the Chape! to the highest credible bidder. That bidder is
the developers S. Harrison acting in partnership with the Sainsbury supermarket chain. However the
hid was conditional on the granting of planning permission for the application that was before the
Area Planning Committee on the 7% April.

it was quite evident at the 7" April Area Planning meeting that the Unjon Terrace residents feel vary
strongly that the already severe traffic problems that are currently causing them serious safety
concerns will be greatly exacerbated by the presence ofa sypermarket at the end of their street. in
such circurnstances it is vital that that there can be complete confidence that no Counciflor sitting
on the Planning Committee has any bias that could affect their judgement. Such neutraiity is even
more important for the person chairing the meeting. The requirement for such neutrality is setout
in Yark Council’s own cade of conduct for Councillors which | also enctose. Section 6 (3} of this code
stipulates “If you have a personal interest and a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard it as so significant that it would be fikely to prejudice your
judgement of the public interast then you have a prejudicial interest.” Section 6 {4c} specifically

1



Page 26

Annex 4

draws attention to the nead for neutrality in cases that “relste to the determining of any approval,
consent, licence, permission or registration.....”, It is clear that & chairman of a Planning Committee
who has a concern for the financial benefit of a party involved in a planning decision is conflicted
and cannot be regarded as a neutral party. This is the basis of my complaint.

Councilior's Galvin's argument for not recusing himself from the 7" apyil Planning meeting was that
as a Governor he was niot In a position o influence the decisions of the York Hospital estaies
department. That was not the point at issue. He was in a pesition as chairman of the Committee to
ensure that the hospital couid sell Grovas Chapel to the highest bidder and his actions at the
meeting were such as to further that objective. My purpose in making this complaint is to register a
conviction that a planaing decision was made by a flawed process. My hope [s that this complaint
will be upheld and that the decision in favour of the applicants S, Rarrisan and Sainsbury will be
quashed. Should the Council decide ta allow this decision to stand legal action in the High Caurt to
quash the planning decision on these and other grounds is contemplated. A legal team has been
appointed to pursue this aim.

Regards
Michael Askew

Marito-

|vlalﬂJUr0”“h e

R

Gads Q8- 2777

From: Docherty, Andrew [mailto:andrew.docherty@york gov.uk]
Sent: 14 April 2016 16:23

To: Michael Askew <mi . ovras  conitpm T

Subject: RE: Complaint form

Dear Mr. Askew,

Thank you for your e-mail which | have been reviewing with the
independent persons who advise the Council on standards issues. |
have been asked whether you are able to elaborate on your assertion
that, as a Governor of the Trust, Clir Galvin has a duty to strengthen the
hospital finances. | should be grateful for nay further information you are
able to provide in support of this.

Regards,

Andy Docherty | Assistant Director
t: 01904 551004 | e: andrew.docherty@york.gov.uk

City of York Council | Customer and Business Support Services
Woest Offices| Station Rise | York YO1 6GA
www.york.gov.uk | facebook com/citvofyork | @CityofYork

From: Michael Askew
Sent: 11 Aprll 2016 16:58
To: moniteringofficer@york.gov.uk




Page 27 Annex 4b

/_\ In association with:

Care Quality Commission

O n I O r Department of Health

. Foundation Trust Governors’ Association

Making the beaith sector Foundation Trust Network
work for patients

Your duties: a
brief guide for
NHS foundation
trust governors

www.monitor.gov.uk



Page 28

Annex 4b

Contents
What is this guide and wWho is it FOr? ... 2
Some important organisations for QOVEIMOIS ... e 2
[ 11 2o U PP SO OO PR RTSR O SP 2
Care Quality COMMISSION ..ot se ettt 2
What is an NHS foundation frust? .o 4
Y=Y 12t o= - OO O U OO U P UU PO U PRSP 4
CoUNCHl OF GOVEIMIOTS. ...ttt ce e e ee s e s s e e e b bs s s s b as s et e s e e nre e 4
Figure 1 The structure of the council of gOVernors ... 5
Board Of QiTCEOTS ...ooi it 5
The dual role of the ChaiT......oc e 6
L0 ] 1114 1N (<= S O PO TSP P 6
Figure 2 NHS foundation trust “chain of accountability”................ccs 6
WhHat dDES 2 GOVEITION TO7 ..ot eiirieciiei e me e b e et bbb e s rms e e nee s e s arne s 7
Holding non-executive directors to account for performance ofthe board......................... 7
Representing the interests of members and the public ... 7
Other specific GOVEINOT QUHES. ..ot i 7
Amending the constitUton .........covv e 8
Approving the appointment of the chief executive............. 8
Appoiniing and removing the chair and other non-executive directors ... 8
Appointing and removing the NHS foundation trust’s external auditor ... 8
Receiving the NHS foundation trust's annual accounts and annual report ... 8
Preparing the forward PIAN ... e 9
Taking decisions on significant transactions ... e 9
Taking decisions on Non-NHS INCOME ... e 9
WhHat i8 8 H8a0 QOVEINOIT .ot a s e s en e e ans e 10
What does the senior independent director do? ... e 10
What is the Panel for Advising GOVEINOIS? .....c.vvv oottt 10
How governors will normally work with Monitor ... 11
Further information and useful COMAacts ..o 11



Page 29 Annex 4b

What is this guide and who is it for?

This document is a brief guide to introduce your core duties as the governor of a
National Health Service (NHS) foundation trust. it is provided as a more accessible
summary of ‘Your statutory duties: A reference guide for NHS foundation trust
governors’, which you can refer to for further detail on any point.

It describes governors’ “statutory” duties, meaning those you are required to carry
out by law. It also outlines what governors can expect from the regulatory framework.

The guide is intended as an easy reference point on core parts of the governor role
for:

« current governors (both those with experience and those new to the role)
« those who are thinking about standing for election

» other interested audiences such as patients and the public, NHS foundation
trust leadership teams and staff, other NHS bodies, MPs and the media.

Some important organisations for governors

Following the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the NHS changed its structures and
processes to more clearly put patients first, by focusing on improved quality and
outcomes. NHS foundation trusts — and their governors — now interact with a range
of organisations with new or changed roles.

Monitor

Monitor is the sector regulator for health services in England. Iis job is to protect and
promote the interests of patients by ensuring that the whole sector works for their
benefit.

For example, Monitor makes sure foundation hospitals, ambulance trusts and mental
health and community care organisations are well fed and are run efficiently, so they
can continue delivering good quality services for patients in the future. To do this, it
works particularly closely with the Gare Quality Commission (CQC), the quality and
safety regulator. When the CQC establishes that an NHS foundation trust is failing to
provide good quality care, Monitor takes remedial action to ensure the problem is
fixed.

Monitor also sets prices for NHS-funded services, tackles anti-competitive practices
that are against the interests of patients, helps commissioners ensure essential local
services continue if providers get into serious difficulty and enables beiter integration
of care so services are less fragmented and easier to access.

Care Quality Commission

The CQC is the independent regulator of health and adult social care in England. lis
purpose is to make sure health and social care services provide people with safe,
effective, compassionate, high quality care and to encourage care services to
improve. The CQC's role is to monitor, inspect and regulate services to make sure



Page 30 Annex 4b

they meet fundamental standards of quality and safety and to publish what it finds,
including performance ratings to help people choose care.

The CQC will ask the following questions when it inspects services:

]

Are they safe?
Are they effective?
Are they caring?
Are they well led?

Are they responsive to people’s needs?

The CQC's principles are to:

put people who use services at the centre of our work

be independent, rigorous, fair and consistent

have an open and accessible culture

work in partnership across the health and social care system

be committed to being a high performing organisation and apply the same
standards of continuous improvement to ourselves that we expect of others
and

promote equality, diversity and human rights.

The CQC regulates:

treatment, care and support provided by hospitals, GPs, dentists, ambulances,
community and mental health services

treatment, care and support services for adults in care homes and in people’s
own homes (both personal and nursing care)

services for people whose rights are restricted under the Mental Health Act.




Pa
ge 31 Annex 4b

There are a large number of organisations seeking to maintain and improve the
performance of the healthcare sector, each with discrete roles. These include the
boards of the healthcare providers (eg hospitals, mental health, community and
ambulance services), Monitor, the CQC, NHS England and CCGs, as well as Royal
Colleges, the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) and the
General Medical Councit (GMC). They all share the same goal: o make sure people
get the best possible care and service from the NHS, in line with the principles and
values of the NHS Constitution.

What is an NHS foundation trust?

NHS foundation trusts are different from NHS trusts; they have a unique legal form
known as “public benefit corporations”. NHS foundation trusts provide healthcare
services for patients and service users in England. Unlike NHS trusts, they are free
from central government controf and can manage their own affairs and make their
own decisions, including whether to make and invest surpiuses. However, they
remain subject to legal requirements and have a duty o exercise their functions
“effectively, efficiently and economically”.?

Each NHS foundation trust sets out its governance structure in its constitution. There
are legislative requirements concerning the governance of all NHS foundation trusts.
For example, all NHS foundation trusts have:

¢ members
« a council of governors
» a board of directors.

We explain these further below.

Please note, in this document where we use the word “board”, it refers to the board
of directors: where we use "council” it refers to the councit of governors.

Members

Members of the public and staff who work at an NHS foundation trust can be
"members” of the trust. In addition, NHS foundation frusts may opt to have a category
of members who are either patients/service users and/or their carers. Members vote
to elect governors and can also stand for election themselves.

Council of goveritors

The council of governars is made up of elected and appointed governors. Governors
are volunteers and are not paid.

Elected governors are elected by distinct constituencies:

« public governors are elected by members of the public constituency

' https:/iwww.gov.ukigovernmentipublications/the-nhs-constitution-for-england
2 National Health Service Act 2008, Chapter 5, 5.63.

4



Page 32 Annex 4b

» staff governors are elected from the staif body and

¢ patient, carer or service user governors are elected by members who are
patients/service users and/or their carers.

Appointed governors represent stakeholder organisations such as the local council or
local charities. If the foundation trust wants governors appointed by an external
organisation, this must be specified in the constitution. The structure of the council of
governors is shown in the diagram below.

Figure 1. The structure of the council of governors

Appoinied -
répresentatives

from key
stakehotdears

Governors are not directors. The governors’ duty to "hold the non-executive
directors, individually and collectively, to account for the performance of the board of
directors” does not mean that governors are responsible for decisions taken by the
board of directors on behalf of the NHS foundation trust. Respensibility for those
decisions remains with the board of directors, acting on behalf of the trust. This is
covered more fully in the full guide to your statutory duties.

Board of directors

The board of directors is made up of executive directors and non-executive directors.
The executive directors are employees, are led by the chief executive and are
responsible for the day to day management of the foundation trust. Foundation trust
boards must als¢ inciude the following executive directors; a finance director, a
director who is a registered doctor, a director who is a registered nurse or a
registered midwife.

The non-executive directors are not employees. They bring an independent
perspective fo the board meeting and have a particular duty to challenge decisions
and proposals made by executive directors. The board is led by the chair who is also
a non-executive director. The board will also have a deputy chair and a senior
independent director (SID).



Pa
ge 33 Annex 4b

The board's overall duty is to ensure the provision of safe and effective services for
members and for the public. The board does this through the governance of the
foundation trust. Governance is the process by which boards lead and direct their
organisation. This process includes setting the corporate strategy, setting
organisational values and culture, and supervising the work of the executive
directors. The board will reserve certain key decisions io itself but will delegate many
decisions either to executive directors or to committees of the board. The board also
has a duty to be accountable to governors, to regulators and to key stakeholders
such as commissioners.

(The role and responsibilities of the board are covered in more detail on page 12 of
the full guide to your statutory duties.)

The dual role of the chair

The chair of the board of directors is also the chair of the council of governors. They
are responsible for ensuring that the board and council work effectively together and
that they receive the information they need to undertake their respective duties.

It is important that the board of directors and council of governors see their interaction
as being one of constructive partnership and seeking to work effectively together.

Commitiees

NHS foundation trusts use board committees to make decisions in key business
areas that might be delegated and to help the board obtain the assurances it needs.
The trust is required by law to have board committees in place to make decisions on
appointments, remuneration and matters relating to audits. The trust may also decide
to have other committees and working groups, including governor committees and
groups, but these are not compulsory.

A trust’s “chain of accountability” — including the position of the council of governors —
is shown below.

Figure 2: NHS foundation trust “chain of accountability”

Answers fo

A

Haids fo account



Page 34 Annex 4b

What does a governor do?

Governors have an important role in making an NHS foundation trust publicly
accountable for the services it provides. They bring valuable perspectives and
contributions to its activities. Importantly, as a governor you will hold non-executive
directors to account for the performance of the board and represent the interests of
NHS foundation trust members and the public. These duties are explained further
below.

The over-riding role of the council of governors is o hold the non-executive directors
individually and collectively to account for the performance of the board of directors
and to represent the interests of NHS foundation trust members and of the public.

Holding non-executive direciors to account for performance of the board

There is no one “right way” to hold non-executive directors to account and local
approaches are emerging. It could be done by exercising the other required duties
outlined in more detail below. For example:

« appointing or removing the chair, non-executive directors or auditors

» questioning non-executive directors on how the board is delivering on the
goals identified in the forward plan

« inviting members of the board to meetings of the council of governors to
answer questions.

The full guide to your statutory duties (see Table 2 on page 27) outlines the
governors' role in holding non-executives to account in more detail.

Representing the interests of members and the public

Governors are required by law to represent the interests of both members of the
NHS foundation trust and of the public. They may choose a range of different ways to
engage with these groups. We are aware of a humber of methods that some councils
of governors have chosen to adopt — and which you may wish to consider — such as
governor “drop-in days” where members and the public can come and meet
governors, or surveys.

Other specific governor dutiss

Here we list all the specific duties in which governors have a role; for further
explanation see the full guide to your statutory duties.




Page 35 Annex 4b

Amending the constitution

NHS foundation trusts working with governors have the power to amend their
constitutions. Any changes made to the constitution of a NHS foundation trust must

be:

¢ consistent with schedule 7° of the National Health Service Act 2006 {(which
outlines the minimum requirements for the constitution of an NHS foundation
trust)®

« approved by both more than haif the council of governors and more than half
the directors who are present at the vote.

Approving the appointment of the chief executive

The non-executive directors, including the chair, are responsible for appointing or
removing the NHS foundation frust's chief executive. The councit of governors can
decide whether or not to approve the appointment of the chief executive.

Appointing and removing the chair and other non-executive directors

It is for the council of governors at a general meeting of the council to appoint or
remove the chair and the other non-executive directors. As well as appointment and
removal powers, governors also decide the remuneration, allowances and other
terms and conditions for the chair and non-executive directors, working with the
appointments® and remuneration committees. However, if there is a breach of the
conditions of the frust's licence, Monitor may need to exercise its statutory powers fo
suspend or remove a chair or other non-executive director. Under such
circumstances, Monitor's statutory powers take precedence over the powers that
may be exercised by the council of governors.

Appointing and removing the NHS foundation trust's external auditor

This duty will be carried out at a general meeting of the council of governors, after
they have received a report from the Audit Commitiee on the matter. When
appointing or removing the NHS foundation trust’s external auditor, governors must
consider the criteria for auditors set out in ‘Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts’.
The process is covered in more detail in the statutory guide.

Receiving the NHS foundation trust’s annual aceounts and annual report

Governors must be presented with the NHS foundation trust's annual accounts, any
report of the auditor on them and the annual report at a general meeting of the
council. The presentation of the annual report and accounts to the council of
governors is a good opportunity for the board of directors to brief the council of
governors on the overall performance of the trust in the previous year. The council of
governors should provide feedback to the board of directors based on its view of the

* www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/4 1 /schedule/7

 For support in understanding the relevant Acts of Parliament, please ask your trust's board secretary
int the first instance.

® Appointments committees can also be known as nomination committees.

8



Page 36 Annex 4b

overall performance of the board. Governors cannot change the content of the
reports. To aid the feedback process, Monifor's NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual (updated annually) seis out requirements for the content of these
documents and includes both quality and financial aspects.

Preparing the forward plan

Preparation of the trust's forward plan is led by the board, but the law requires the
board of directors {o have regard to the view of the council of governors. To present
an informed and representative view, governors should canvass the views of
members and the public and feed back their views {o the board of directors.

Taking decisions on significant transactions

Govemors have a range of decision-making responsibilities on “significant
transactions”, mergers, acquisitions, separations and dissolutions. These are all
explained further in the full quide to your siatutory duties.

In brief, more than half of the council of governors present and voting ata
meeting can approve significant transactions locally (the definition of “significant’ is
set out in the constitution or the constitution will state that there is no local definition,
but could include financial thresholds or changes to the nature of the business, such
as taking on community services). For mergers, acquisitions, separations and
dissolutions, more than half of all governors, not just half the number that
attends the meeting at which the decision is taken, must approve the decision.

Following a merger with another NHS foundation trust (whose council of governors
must also approve the transaction), both the respective councils of governors would
be dissolved, and one new council of governors would be established.

Foliowing an acquisition of an NHS foundation trust by another NHS foundation trust,
the councit of governors of the acquiring trust may remain in place. The acquiring
NHS foundation trust is likely to extend its public constituency areas to cover the
areas served by the acqguired NHS foundation trust and new governors will need to
be elected to represent these additional public constituency areas.

Taking decisions on non-NHS income

The principal purpose of an NHS foundation trust is to provide goods and services for
the health service in England; income from these goods and services must always
exceed the income from non-NHS sources. Governors have to approve any change
to the proportion of income derived from non-NHS sources by deciding whether they
believe the change would interfere, to any significant extent, with fulfilling the trust's
principal purpose or its other functions.

If the board of an NHS foundation trust proposes to increase its non-NHS income by
5% or more in any one year (for example from 2% of income to 7%) then more than
half the governors voting at the meeting must approve the proposal before it can
take effect. This change would normally be signalled in the forward plan. Itis
possibie that a change in non-NHS activities (such as an investment) could be
subject to the provisions on significant transactions, outlined above.



Page 37
ge 3 Annex 4b

What is a lead governor?

The lead governor is the main point of contact in a few specific circumstances in
which Monitor may need to contact the council of governors or the other way round
(see ‘How governors will normally work with Monitor', below). Trust secretaries will
usually disseminate communications from Monitor to governors. Some trusts choose
to broaden the role of the lead governor (although this is not compulsory); some also
choose deputy lead governors too. Where the role is broadened, the directors and
governors should seek to agree a description of the role. Directors should not be
involved in the choice of lead governor hawever — that is for the govemors to decide.

What does the senior independent director do?

in consultation with the cauncil of governors, the board appoints one of the non-
executive directors as the senior independent director. They are an alternative point
of contact for governors (and directors) when:

« they have concerns that have not been resolved through normal channels
« contact with the chair, finance director or chief executive is inappropriate

« discussing the chair's performance appraisal, remuneration or allowances.

What is the Panel for Advising Governors?

“The Panel” is both independent and national. Its role is to answer questions raised
by the governors of an NHS foundation trust about whether the trust has failed or is
failing to act in accordance with either:

« its own constitution or

o Chapter 5 of the NHS Act 2006 (which sets out how NHS foundation trusts
operate and therefore the Panel alsc answers questions around healthcare
standards).

A governor may refer a question to the Panel only if more than haif the members of
the council of governors voting approve the referral. Evidence of the vote will

need to be provided to the Panel before it can consider a question from governors.
The Panel's remit is to support governors in fulfilling their role in representing the
interests of their members and the public. Best interests are served by governors
seeking to resolve any questions or issues with their trust chair and other non-
executive directors before posing a question to the Panel. However, the Panel is
available as a free resource in the event of continued uncertainty.

10



Page 38

How governors will normally work with Monitor

When appropriate, Monitor will interact with the council of governors through the lead
governor. There are three main points where this would normally happen:

1.

On appointment of the lead governor

Monitor staff, typically senior regional managers, will introduce themselves {o
the lead governor {usually in a telephone call), in the same way as they might
with a new chair or chief executive.

During business as usuat

In "business as usual” circumstances, the board and council of governors of
an NHS foundation trust will manage their own relationship, though Monitor
representatives might meet a small number of governors or the lead governor
during the annual visit if it was felt appropriate — for example, to maintain
communication.

If there is planned or actual reguiatory action

Monitor will contact the lead governor if any action is planned. For example,
Monitor may telephone the lead governor or write on the launch of an
investigation, inviting comments, and again on canclusion of the investigation
with likely recommendations. If a trust is found to be in breach of its licence to
provide healthcare services, governors may wish to arrange to meet Monitor
fo hear its concerns and its expectations of the trust. Certainly, lead governors
should feel able to contact Monitor where concerns arise while the trust is in
breach.

Full detail of how Monitor manages interventions is described in its ‘Risk Assessment
Framework’ and the ‘Enforcement Guidance’.

A diagram outlining the full range of actions that Monitor may take to fulfil its core
responsibilities appears on page 7 of the full guide to your statutory duties.

Further information and useful contacts

The full quide provides sources of further information but some important sources of

support are:

Care Quality Commission WWW.CQC.org. uk

Foundation Trust Governors’ Association www.ftga.org.uk

Foundation Trust Network www foundationtrustnetwork.org
Monitor www.monitor.qov.uk

Panel for Advising Governors www.monitor.gov.uk/governorpanel

11

Annex 4b



Page 39

Annex 4b

Monitor

Making the heaith sector
work for patients

This publication can be made available in a number of other formats on request.
Application for reproduction of any material in this publication should be made in
writing to enquiries@monitor.gov.uk or to the address above.

© Monitor (March 2014) Publication code: IRGG 01/14



Page 40

Annex 4b

v b e e

A reference guide for
foundation trust governors

August 2013
This guide was first published by Monitor in
October 2009. This updated version reflects
the new roles and responsibilities of

governors as set out in the Health
and Social Care Act 2012.

- o

Foundation Trust | \
Governors’ Assatiation

. M g
CareQuality | Department

a Foundation Trust
COmmISSIOn Of Health

Network




Page 41

Contents
About this guide

Chapter 1: Background information
1.1 Summary of changes to the NHS introduced by the Health and Social Care
Act 2012
1.2 Working together for patients
1.3 Regulation of NHS foundation trusts

Chapter 2: The governance structure of NHS foundation trusts
2.1 What are NHS foundation trusts?
2.2 What is the governance structure of an NHS foundation trust?

Chapter 3: The governor’s role
3.1 What are the statutory duties and powers of the council of governors?
3.2 Other activities

Chapter 4: General duties of the council of governors
4.1 Holding the nan-executive directors to account
4.2 Representing the interesis of trust members and the public

Chapter 5; Appointing and removing the chair and other non-executive

directors
5.1 Background
5.2 Appointing the chair and other non-executive directors
5.3 Terms and conditions of the chair and other non-executive directors
5.4 Removing the chair and other non-executive directars

Chapter 6: Approving the appointment of the chief executive

Chapter 7: Appointing and removing the NHS foundation trust’s
external auditor

7.1 Background

7.2 Appointing the auditor

7.3 Removing the auditor

Chapter 8: Receiving the NHS foundation trust’'s annual accounts,
any auditor’s report on them, and the annual report

Chapter 9: Preparing the forward plan

Chapter 10: Taking decisions on significant transactions, mergers,
acquisitions, separations and dissolutions

Chapter 11: Taking decisions on non-NHS income

Chapter 12: Further information

Glossary

Annex 4b

19
19
21
26

26
30

32

32
33
40
42

45
48

48
50
52

54

58
60

65
68

71



Page 42 Annex 4b

About this guide

This guide lays out the statutory duties for governors of NHS foundation trusts, as provided
by the National Health Service Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) and amended by the 2012 Act. it is
written for governors (rather than trust boards more widely) and is advisory only — this
means there is no requirement to “comply or explain” (e, to comply with the guidance or
explain reasons for non-compliance).

When Parliament created NHS foundation trusts, it gave them independence from central
govemnment and a governance structure designed to ensure that people from the
communities served by the trusts can take part in governing them. NHS foundation trust
governors are the direct representatives of local communities. Governors do not manage
the operations of the trusts; rather, they challenge the board of directors and hold the non-
executive directors to account for the performance of the board. Governors also represent
the interests of NHS foundation trust members and the public, and provide them with
infarmation on the trust’s performance and forward plan.

We recognise the variety of non-statutory duties that governors may perform, as well as the
importance of preserving the autonomy of individual trusts. While this guide is limited to
commenting on the statutory duties common to all governors, it provides links to other
bodies and resources that can support governors in any non-statufory duties they may take
on at their NHS foundation trust. it does not seek to prescribe how governors should work
day-to-day; NHS foundation frust boards and governors will agree this between themselves.



Page 43 Annex 4b

Chapter 1: Background information

This chapter provides background information for governors. It covers:

the main changes to the NHS following the Health and Social Care Act 2012;
how the main heailth care organisations are working together for patients;
the regulation of NHS foundation trusts; and

what this guidance document comtains.

LJ - L] L]

1.1 Summary of changes to the NHS introduced by the Health and Social Care Act
2012

Monitor's role

Under the Health and Sccial Care Act 2012 (the 2012 Act), Monitor is the sector regulator of
health services in England. Our job is to protect and promote the interests of patients by
ensuring that the whole sector works for their benefit. We do this by promoting the provision
of services which is effective, efficient and economic, and which maintains or improves their
quality. For further details please see our website: www.monitor.gov.uk.

On 1 April 2013 Monitor’s provider licence became the main tool with which we regulate
providers of NHS services. The licence applies to all NMS foundation trusts. From 1 April
2014 it will also apply to other eligible providers of NHS services. it sets out a range of
conditions that providers must meet so that they play their part in continually improving the
effectiveness and efficiency of NHS health care services to meet the needs of patients and
taxpayers, today and in the future. The licence allows Monitor to fulfil its new duties to:

¢ set prices for NHS-funded care in partnership with NHS England,
enable integrated care;

« safequard choice and prevent anti-competitive behaviour that is against the interests of
patients; and

» support commissioners to protect essential health care services for patients if a provider
gets into financial difficulties.

Monitor will continue to ensure that the boards of directors of NHS foundation trusts focus
on good leadership and governance. In addition, we will continue to assess the remaining
NHS trusts for NHS foundation trust status.

Other changes
The 2012 Act:

« gives a renewed focus on improving quality and outcomes;

« focuses on integrated care by setting out duties for Monitor, the Care Quality
Commission (CQC), NHS England, Ciinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and Health
and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs});

« ftransfers power to front-line doctors and nurses;

« strengthens public health by giving responsibility for local public health services to local
authorities;

» gives patients more choice and information on how the NHS is performing;

3



Page 44 Annex 4b

» strengthens local democratic involvement by ensuring that there is at least one locally
elected representative and a representative of local Healthwatch on every HWB, to
influence and challenge commissioning decisions and promote integrated working on
care; and

« abolishes strategic health authorities and primary care trusts (PCTs). From April 2013,
PCTs have been replaced by CCGs. These are formed by GP practices and are
responsible for commissioning the majority of health care services for local populations.

1.2 Working together for patients

There are a number of organisations involved in the regulation of health care. While the
roles of Monitor, the CQQC, the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE),
NHS England and the NHS Trust Development Authority (NHS TDA) may be different,
ultimately our goal is the same: to ensure people get the best possible care and service
from the NHS.

We work closely together because we can do a better job for people that way. The needs of
patients and communities are more important than the boundaries between our
organisations.

We all put patients first. We work hard to give people the information they need to make
choices about their own care if they want to, and to help doctors and nurses (and other
clinicians and health professionals) to deliver the best results for them.

We all use hard evidence to make the best possible decisions in patients’ interests —
decisions which drive improved quality and safety while making the best use of valuable
public money so that it can stretch even further.

In line with the principles and values set out in the NHS Constifution, together we aim to
ensure that the people who use NHS services, the organisations which provide them and
the commissioners who buy them are able to focus on the quality, safety and viability of the
services people depend on in times of need.

Third parties with roles in relation to NHS foundation trusts
Bodies with statutory enforcement powers specific to health care include:

e the CQC,; and
» regulators of individual health professionals, such as the Royal College of Surgeens, the
General Medical Council.

Bodies which will interact with NHS foundation trusts and may request information from
them — but have no enforcement powers over them — include:

commissioners, such as CCGs;

HWBs;

overview and scrutiny committees of local authorities; and
local Healthwatch organisations and Healthwatch England.



Page 45 Annex 4b

The Glossary within this document provides information about who these organisations are
and what they do.

NHS foundation trusts are not generally subject to direction by the Secretary of State for
Health. This is one of the key distinctions between NHS foundation trusts and NHS trusts.

1.3 Regulation of NHS foundation trusts

Monitor assesses and authorises NHS trusts for NHS foundation trust status. We assess
whether NHS foundation trusts are well led (from both a quality and finance perspective)
and financially robust enough to deliver excellent care and value for money. The CQC
registers all care providers in England that meet its standards of quality and safety,
including NHS foundation trusts, and monitors that they continue to meet the standards on
an ongoing basis.

Assessment of applicant NHS trusts

Monitor continues to receive and consider applications from NHS trusts that are seeking to
obtain NHS foundation trust status. When we are satisfied that an applicant NHS trust
meets certain criteria, we authorise NHS foundation trust status.

From 1 Aprit 2013, as part of the authorisation process, Monitor issues successiul
applicants with an authorisation and with a licence that sets out various conditions under
which an NHS foundation trust is required to operate. Each NHS foundation trust’s
authorisation and licence are published on Monitor's website. We will only autharise and
license providers that are registered with the CQC. NHS foundation trusts authorised before
1 April 2013 have been automatically issued with a licence which replaces the Terms of
Authoerisation.

Compliance and oversight of NHS foundation trusts

Monitor oversees an NHS foundation trust's compliance with its licence conditions. The
licence conditions set out the requirements placed on NHS foundation trusts. They are the
same for every NHS foundation trust, although we may add specific licence conditions to
address any governance issues that undermine compliance with the licence. Governors
should familiarise themselves with their trust’s licence conditions because these set out the
terms under which the trust must operate.

The standard licence conditions are grouped into seven sections. The first section,
containing the General Conditions, sets out standard requirements and rules for alt licence
holders. Sections 2 to 5 are about our new functions; setting prices; enabling services to be
provided in an integrated way; safeguarding choice and preventing anti-competitive
hehaviours; and supporting commissioners to maintain service continuity. Section 6 looks at
specific conditions for NHS foundation trusts and Section 7 contains definitions and notes.

Moanitor will collect information from NHS foundation trusts to assess their compliance with
their Governance and Continuity of Services licence conditions, typically through annual and
quarterly monitoring. However, we may require monthly reports if we have concermns about
the trust and, by exception, further information for material financial events, such as
transactions of material adverse changes in an NHS foundation trust’s financial situation.

5



Page 46 Annex 4b

We will also use reports from third parties, such as the CQC, to inform our decisions on
whether an NHS foundation trust is well run on behalf of patients. Monitor and the CQC
share information and work closely together to deal with trusts in difficulty, and meet
regularly to ensure each has the relevant information from the other when working with NHS
foundation trusts on quality of care.

Monitor's Enforcement Guidance sets out how we might formally investigate potential
breaches of the licence conditions, the processes we are likely to follow, and the factors we
may consider when deciding what requirements to impase in the event of a breach. We can
use our statutory powers to take action where an NHS foundation trust has breached or is
breaching its licence.

Enforcement action can include:

« Discretionary requirements. Monitor may require NHS foundation trusts in breach of a
condition of the licence to do one or more of the following: pay a fine of up to 10% of
their turnover in England; take specific steps to make sure that the breach does not
continue or recur; or make goad the impact of the breach.

« Enforcement undertakings. Monitor may accept an enforcement undertaking to make
sure that the breach does not continue or recur; make good the impact of any breach; or
take action {including paying a sum of money) to benefit any other licence holder
affected by the breach, or any commissioner of health care services for the purposes of
the NHS affected by the breach.

« Imposition of licence conditions on NHS foundation trusts. If Monitor considers that an
NHMS foundation trust is failing, or will fail, to comply with its licence as a result of poor
govermnance, we may include in the licence additional conditions relating to governance.
Where we are satisfied that an NHS foundation trust has breached, or is breaching, an
additional licence condition, we may require the trust to: remove a director or govemnor,
and appoint an interim director or governor; suspend a director or governor from office
for a specified period; and/or disqualify a director or governor from holding office as a
director or governor for a specified period.

Monitor will apply a prioritisation framewaork to decisions about whether to pursue
enforcement action and {o all other significant cases where we have discretion over whether
o act. When assessing the scale and scope of the breach and priorities for action, we
expect to draw on a range of information. This might include, but is not limited to:
information that we caollect directly; information from patient representative bodies and
commissioners; any complaints and representations made to us; and information from
providers themselves, including, for example, monitoring information.



Page 47 Annex 4b

Figure 1: Overview of Monitor’s formal provider enforcement powers (simplified)

Monitor's finding Enforcement power

The provider may give an undenaking to.
. take steps w bring the breach 10 an end;
. take actions ta restore the situation; andfor
. any other actions

o
plammneTE A yhare & provider falls to comply with an underiaking

tAonitor may eblige the provider to
. 12ke steps 1o brmg the breach fo 3n end;

’ take actons 16 rastore the situation, andfer
. pay a financial penaity.

And if those
conditions
are breachad
then

(The wording of the Health & Social Care
Act 212 and Competibon Ac 1998 is
simphfied in this dizgram)

Although our enforcement powers will only be used where an NHS foundation trust fails, or
in some cases is likely to fail, to comply with its licence, all governors should be aware that
these powers exist. In the first instance, however, it is the role of governors to hold the non-
executive directors, individually and collectively, to account for the performance of the board
of directors.

As this guide expiains, the council of governors has its own powers to intervene where its
trust's performance is not acceptable, for example because it breaches the Gomplianice
Framework.! The council of governors can ultimately remove the chair and/or the non-
executive directors of its trust if its performance deteriorates and remedial actions taken by
the board are insufficient. These particular powers of the council of governors are described
more fully in Chapter 5 of this guide and are unchanged by the 2012 Act.

Where Monitor is satisfied that an NHS foundation trust is, or is likely to become, unable 1o
pay its debts, we may make an order authorising the appointment of a Trust Special
Administrator (TSA} in order to ensure the continued provision of key services from the

' From 1 October 2013 Monitor's Compliance Framework will be replaced with our Risk Assessment
Framework, which will be avaitable on our website,
7



Page 43 Annex 4b

failing trust. The TSA will take on the role of the trust’s governors, chairman and executive
and non-executive directors; the existing post holders would be suspended from office.



Page 49 Annex 4b

Chapter 2: The governance structure of NHS foundation trusts

This chapter describes the role of the council of governors within the overall structure of an
NHS foundation trust. If covers:

« the definition of NHS foundation trusts; and
+ the governance structure of NHS foundation frusts.

2.1 What are NHS foundation trusts?

NHS foundation trusts are public benefit corporations that are authorised, under the 2006
Act, to provide goods and services for the purposes of the health service in England. They
are part of the NHS and provide over half of all NHS hospital, mental heaith and ambulance
services. They provide health care in line with the core NHS principles: that care should be
universal, comprehensive and free at the point of need.

NHS foundation trusts were originally created under the Health and Social Care
{Community Health and Standards) Act 2003. They are free from central government
control. This means they have the freedom to make their own decisions, including whether
to make and invest surpluses, and to manage their own affairs. However, they are subject to
statutory requirements and alt have a duty to exercise their functions effectively, efficiently
and economically,

2.2 What is the governance structure of an NHS foundation trust?
Each NHS foundation trust has its own governance structure, set out in its constitution.

Each trust's constitution is published in the NHS foundation trust directory on Monitor's
website.

NHS foundation trust governing documents

NHS foundation trust constitutions

Every NHS foundation trust has its own constitution which defines how the trust’s
governance operates. Governors should refer to this to understand the particular
arrangements of their trust, including its structures and procedures, to enable them to fulfil
their statutory duties. Changes to the trust’s constitution can take effect only if the
amendmenis are approved by both: i) more than half of the members of the board of
directors of the trust voting; and ii) more than half of the members of the council of
governors of the trust voting.

Any proposed amendments must also meet the requirements of Schedule 7 of the 2006 Act.
NHS foundation trusts themselves must ensure this is the case as Monitor no longer has a
power or duty to determine this, and we have no role in approving constitution amendments.
An amendment will have no effect if the constitution would, as a result, not accord with
Scheduie 7 of the 2006 Act. Monitor must be notified of any amendments made to an NHS
foundation trust’s constitution so that a current version can be uploaded to the NHS
foundation trust directory on Monitor's website.



Page 50 Annex 4b

NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance

In addition to the formal statutory requirements, Monitor has also issued good practice
advice on governance in The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance (Code of
Governance). The Code of Governance operates on a “comply or explain” basis, meaning
that NHS foundation trusts must either comply with its requirements or explain why they
have not. This guide complements the Code of Governance ?

NHS foundation trust governance structure
The basic governance structure of all NHS foundation trusts includes:

« membership;
« council of governors; and
e board of directors.

In addition to this basic structure, trusts also make use of board committees {(usually
comprising directors only) and working groups, some of which may compiise both
governors and directors, as a practical way of dealing with specific issues. Some board
committees (appointments, audit and remuneration) are required by legislation and others
may vary between trusts.

Figure 2: Chain of accountabiiity in NHS foundation trusts

Answers (o

A

Holtfs to acoournt

Membership

The membership of an NHS foundation trust consists of staff members, the general public
and, sometimes, patients or service users and/or their carers. Members belong to various
constituencies as defined in each trust's constitution. A trust must have a public
constituency and a staff constituency, and may also have a patient, carer and/or service
user constituency if the constitution allows for this. Patient, service user and carer
constituencies are not compulsory but may help to ensure that the people who use the
trust’s services are appropriately represented. Members in the various constituencies vote
to elect governors and can also stand for election themselves.

Council of governors

The concept of an NHS foundation trust rests on local accountability, which governors
perform a pivotal role in providing. The council of governors, collectively, is the body that
binds a trust to its patients, service users, staff and stakehoiders. It consists of elected
members and appointed individuals who represent members and other stakehoider
organisations. The 2006 and 2012 Acts set out governors’ various statutory responsibilities.

% Monitor's Cade of Govemnance will be updated in 2013/14; the revised version will be available on our
website.

10



Page 51 Annex 4b

Governors are unpaid and contribute part-time on behalf of the trust that they represent.
They are not directors and should not seek to act in a directorial capacity as their role is
very different.

Figure 3: lllustration of the structure of the council of governors

Appointed -
representatives

from key
stakeholdiars

The chair of the board of directors is also the chair of the council of governors. This is a
legal requirement. The constitution of the NHS foundation trust must also make provision for
another person to act as the chair in the chair's absence.

The 2012 Act adopts the term ‘council of governors' from 1 October 2012 onwards, but
other terms are acceptable. Alternatives used by some trusts include:

governors’ council;
membership council;
members’' council; or
governors’ body.

s o & @

Election to the council of governors

There are different categories of governors, which vary by the types of trust members that
they represent. Each category, along with the circumstances in which it is elected, or
identified and appointed, is covered in more detail in Chapter 3.

1



Page 52 Annex 4b

The members of the council of governors, other than the appointed governors, must be
elected. Regulations that set out how elections for membership of the council of governors
are conducted must be adhered to.

Individuals may not become or cantinue as members of the council of governors if they
have:

« been declared bankrupt, or had their estate sequestrated;

« not been discharged in respect of a composition, or an arrangement with their creditor,
or in respect of a trust deed granted for their creditor; or

» within the preceding five years, been convicted of any offence in the British Islands if a
sentence of imprisonment (whether suspended or not) for a period of not less than three
months (without the option of a fine) was imposed.

An NHS foundation trust's constitution may set out further circumstances in which a person
may not become, or continue, as a member of the council of governors.

Board of directors

An NHS foundation trust’'s board of directors is responsible for all aspects of the operation
and performance of the trust, and for its effective governance. This includes setting the
corporate strategy and organisational culture, taking those decisions reserved for the board,
and being accountable to stakeholders for those decisions. The board of directors is
collectively responsible for taking actions which legally bind the trust.

All the powers of the NHS foundation trust can be exercised by the board of directors on its
behalf. The board of directors must include executive and non-executive directors, and the

Code of Governance requires that a majority of the board of directors are independent non-
executive directors.

There is a general duty on the directors to promote the success of the NHS foundation trust
so as to maximise the benefits for the members of the trust as a whole, and for the public.
All members of the board of directors have collective responsibility as a unitary board for
every decision of the board, regardless of their individual skills or status. Non-executive
directors and executive directors alike share the same degree of accountability. All directors
have a responsibility to challenge constructively the information and proposals made to the
board, but non-executive directors have a particutar duty to challenge executive directors
and should scrutinise their performance accordingly.

The board of directors is also responsible for establishing the values and standards of
conduct for the trust and its staff in accordance with NHS values and accepted standards of
behaviour in public life, including the Nolan Principles (see page 14 for details).

Executive directors

The executive directors are paid employees of the trust. They are responsible in their
executive role for managing the organisation and, as board members, for the leadership and
direction of the trust. This managerial role distinguishes the executive directors from the
non-executive directors, who do not have a managerial role.

12



Page 53 Annex 4b

The executive directors must include a chief executive (who is also the accounting officer}
and a finance director. In addition, one of the executive directors must be a registered
medical practitioner or a registered dentist, and one must be a registered nurse or a
registered midwife. The executive directors will each have particular responsibility for a
specific function, but are all also collectively accountable for exercising the powers of the
trust and for its performance.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors are particularly responsible for challenging the executive
directors in decision-making and on the trust's strategy, but they are collectively
accountable with the executive directors for the exercise of their powers and for the
performance of the trust. Unlike the executive directors, they do not have a managerial role.

The non-executive directors will include the chair. A person may only be appointed as a
non-executive director if he or she is a member of the public constituency (or the
patients'/service users'/carers’ constituency where there is one). Where the trust has a
university medical or dental school, a person may be appointed as a non-executive director
if he or she exercises functions for that university or school.

Chair

The chair is one of the non-executive directors and undertakes a dual role as chair of the
board of directors and chair of the council of governors, This means that the chair is
responsible for leading both the hoard and council and for ensuring that they work together
effectively, The chair is also responsible for making sure that the board and council receive
accurate, timely and clear informaticn that is appropriate for their respective duties. The
dual role of the chair enables clear communication between the board of directors and
council of governors.

Differences between the director and governor roles

To fuffil their collective responsibility for the exercise of their powers and the performance of
the trust, and to be accountable for both, all executive and non-executive directors of the
NHS foundation trust must:

« provide effective and proactive leadership of the trust within a framework of processes,
procedures and controls which enable risk to be assessed and managed;

o take responsibility for making sure the trust complies with the conditions of its licence, its
constitution, guidance issued by Monitor, relevant statutory requirements and contractual
obligations;

« set the trust's strategic aims at least annually (in the forward plan), taking into
consideration the views of the council of governors;

» be responsible for ensuring the quality and safety of health care services, education,
training and research delivered by the trust;

» ensure that the trust exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economicaliy;

« set the trust’s vision, values and standards of conduct and ensure the trust meets its
obligations to its members, patients and other stakeholders and communicates them to
these people clearly;

» take decisions objectively in the interests of the trust;

13



Page 54 Annex 4b

» take joint responsibility for every board decision, regardiess of their individual skills or
status;

* share accountability as a unitary (single) board; and

s constructively challenge the decisions of the board and help develop proposals on
priorities, risk mitigation, values, standards and strategy.

Directors are paid for their skills, time and expertise in leading the trust both strategically
and operationally, as well as for taking responsihility for the performance of the trust and
being accountable in the event of failures.

The voluntary role of the governor is entirely different to that of a director. Governors are not
expected to undertake the above duties or to be ultimately responsible for the performance
of the trust. The governor's role is detailed in Chapter 3, and includes specific statutory
duties, but the board of directors remains ultimately responsible for the trust's operations
and performance,

The overriding duty of the board of directors is to be collectively and individually responsible
for promoting the success of the NHS foundation trust so as to maximise the benefits for the
members of the NHS foundation trust as a whole and for the public. This means the board is
focused on providing high-quality health care to the NHS foundation trust's members and
the communities it serves.

By way of contrast, the overriding role of the council of governors is to hoid the non-
executive directors, individually and collectively, to account for the performance of the board
of directors and to represent the interests of foundation trust members and of the public.

The board is therefore responsible for the direction and performance of the trust, while the
council of governors is responsible primarily for assuring the performance of the board.

Partnership working

Notwithstanding the role of the council of governors to hold the non-executive directors to
account for the performance of the board, it is important that both the board of directors and
council of governors see their interaction as primarily being one of constructive partnership.
The board and council should seek to work effectively together in their respective roles and
avoid unconstructive adversarial interaction.

The Nolan Principles

Al holders of public office should adhere to the principles of public life defined by the Nolan
Committee.® The committee sets out the principles for the benefit of all who serve the public
in any way, so they apply to NHS foundation trust governors. The seven principles are:

Selflessness;
Integrity;
Obijectivity;
Accountability;
Openness;
Honesty; and

R R ol

% For further information see www.public-standards.org.uk
14




Page 55 Annex 4b

7. Leadership.

Committees of the board of directors
The key committees referenced in legislation, and described more fully in the Code of
Governance, are set out below.

Nominations committee

The Code of Governance states that there may be one or two nominations, or
appointments, committees. if you are unsure of the structure adopted by your own trust, you
can find out by referring to its constitution, listed in the NHS Foundation Trust Directory on
Monitor's website, or by asking your trust directly.

The nominations committee or committees are responsible for identifying and nominating
executive and non-executive directors. The governors are ultimately responsible for
appointing and dismissing non-executive directors. In practice they exercise this
responsibility through a nominations committee which provides a recommendation. Final
decisions on the appointments of non-executive directors must be taken at a meeting of the
full council of governors.

i there are two nominations commitiees:

« One committee will be responsible for the appointment of executive directors and the
other for nominations for non-executive directors (including the chair). The committee
responsible for appointing executive directors should consist of at least the chair, chief
executive and other non-executive directors.

s The trust chair or an independent non-executive director may chair both committees.
Alternatively, a governor may chair the nominations committee responsible for
nominations of non-executive directors. Where a nominations committee is set up to
appoint a trust chair, a different non-executive director or governor must chair the
committee should the current chair be a candidate for reappointment.

» The nominations commitiee responsible for the non-executive directors should have a
majority of governors.

If a trust has only one nominations committee, when it discusses nominations for
appointments of non-executives, including the appointment of the chair, it should have a
maijority of governors on the committee and also on the interview panel.

Audit committee

The audit committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing matters such as the
integrity of financial statements of the NHS foundation trust, its internal controls and
overseeing the internal audit function. It should focus on providing assurance to the board
that the systems and process are functioning effectively (so that the board is discharging its
duty) and that those committees that are reviewing quality information in more detail are
doing so eifectively.

The main roles and responsibilities of the audit committee should be set out in written terms
of reference, including details of how it will achieve both.
15



Page 56 Annex 4b

The main roles and responsibilities of the audit commitiee are to:

» review the trust’s internal financial controls and internal control and risk management
systems, unless expressly addressed elsewhere by a separate board committee or the
board itself;

« monitor the integrity of the financial statements, including any formal announcements
relating to the trust’s financial performance, and review significant financtal reporting
judgements contained in them;

» monitor and review the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

» review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process, taking into consideration relevant UK professional
and regulatory requirements;

» develop and implement policy on engaging the external auditor for any non-audit
services, taking into account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of non-
audit services by the external audit firm,

« report to the board of directors, identifying any matters which it considers merit action or
improvement and recommend steps to take; and

« report to the council of governors on the conduct of the external audit for the year and
recommend whether the council of governors should reappoint the same auditors.

The audit committee is not responsible for appointing external auditors; that is the
responsibility of the council of governors. However, the audit committee plays a key role in
making recommendations to the council.

The Code of Governance lays out the requirements for membership of the audit commitiee.
Govemors are not members of the audit committee. However, the council of govermnors
should take the lead in agreeing with the audit committee the criteria for appointing,
reappointing and remaving the external auditor. The audit committee should also repart to
the council of governors, identifying any matters that merit action or improvement, including
details such as the quality and value of the audit and timeliness of reporting and fees.

Remuneration committee

The board of directors must establish a remuneration committee comprising non-executive
directors. However, if such a committee is yet ta be established, the trust constitution may
make provision for remuneration matters to be decided. This committee has responsibility
for setting the terms and conditions of office, including the remuneration (pay and benefit
entitlements) and allowances of the executive directors. However, the council of governors,
not the remuneration committee, is responsible for setting the terms and conditions of the
non-executive directors (including the chair).

Other useful roles in the governance structure

in addition to the key statutory roles of the chair and chief executive, the Code of
Govemance suggests other positions that can contribute to the efficient and effective
running of an NHS foundation trust.

Deputy chair
The hoard of directors should have a deputy chair who deputises for the chair as and when
appropriate.

16



Page 57 Annex 4b

Senior independent director

One of the independent non-executive directors should be appointed by the board of
directors as the senior independent director (SID). This appointment should be made in
consultation with the council of governors.

The SID should act as the point of contact with the board of directors if governors have
concerns which approaches through normal channels have failed to resolve or for which
such approaches are inappropriate. The SID may also act as the point of contact with the
board of directors for governors when they discuss, for example, the chair's performance
appraisal and his or her remuneration and other aliowances.

The Code of Governance sets out further details about the SID and the meaning of
“independent”.

{.ead govertior

Monitor has asked all NHS foundation trusts to nominate a “lead governar”. This individual
will lizise between Monitor and the council of governors where, for example, we have
concerns about the leadership provided to an NHS foundation trust or in circumstances
where it would be inappropriate for the chair to contact us, or vice versa (for example,
regarding concerns about the appointment or removal of the chair).

However, the term “lead governor” has created some confusion. Monitor did not intend the
person holding this role to “lead” the councit of governors or assume greater power or
responsibility than other governors. We recognise that many NHS foundation trusts have
broadened the original intention of this role and given greater responsibility or power to their
lead governar. Every trust can decide how best to structure its own council; we continue to
require only that the lead governor act as a point of contact between Monitor and the council
of governors when needed. Directors and governors alike should always remember that the
council of governors as a whole has the responsibilities and powers in statute, and not
individual governors.

Where NHS foundation trusts choose to broaden the lead governor’'s role, directors and the
council of governors should agree what it should and should not include. The council of
govemors should vote on or otherwise decide who the lead governor will be; directors
{including the chair) should not be involved in this process.

Having a lead governor does not, in itseif, prevent any other governor from making contact
with Monitor directly if they feel this is necessary. The Independent Panel for Advising
Governars can provide advice if the council approves the submission of a question to it (see
Chapter 3).

Communication from Monitor to governors will, as a matter of course, be disseminated by
trust secretaries.

Further information can be found in the Code of Governance and from your trust secretary.

Trust secretary
NHS foundation trusts generally have a trust secretary (sometimes known as the board or
company secretary or head of governance). The frust secretary, usually an employee of the

17



Page 53 Annex 4b

trust, is responsible in particular for organising the meetings and administration of the board
of directors and council of governors and often plays an important role in supporting the
council of governors. For example, the secrefary may be expected to:

- ensure the council of governors complies with its procedures laid down in the trust’s
constitution and/or elsewhere),

« advise the council of governors (through the chair) on all governance matters; and

» ensure information flows freely within the trust, including to/from the council of
governors.

Trust secretaries are usually also available, sometimes with a membership manager, to
advise and support individual governors on procedural matters and o oversee governar
training and development. He or she is typically the person governors can go to with day-to-
day questions. Under the Code of Governance, appointing and remaving the trust secretary
will be a joint matter for the chief executive and chair.

Membership secretary or manager

The Compliance Framework requires NHS foundation trusts to maintain a representative
membership. Some will also provide a membership office or a membership
secretary/manager, although this is not compulsory. The office may be responsible for:

« managing the flow of information between members and governors, for example,
sending out newsletters, coordinating member surveys and administering membership
card schemes;
coordinating, as appropriate, the elections for the council of governors;

- providing administrative support for governors as they perform their duties; and

- maintaining the membership database and providing high level reports on membership.

Neither the trust secretary nor the membership secretary are mandatory roles and NHS
foundation trusts may have established different roles to cover these responsibilities. You
can check with your trust to see what functions or roles it has established to support
govemors and members.

Governor working groups

Some trusts have found it helpful to set up a variety of governor working groups where
governors can confribute and add value. It is up to each NHS foundation trust to decide
which governor working groups it would like to have in place and which topics these cover.
Examples of groups some trusts have include:

clinical quality;

membership strategy and engagement;
strategic planning and policy;

patient experience; and

auditor appointment.

L} L] » » L]

18



Page 59 Annex 4b

Chapter 3: The governor’s role

This chapter sets out what it means to be a governor of an NHS foundation trust in formal
terms. This chapter covers:

« the stafutory powers and duties of govemors;
- types of governors; and
» support for governors and their work.

3.1 What are the statutory duties and powers of the council of governors?

The 2006 Act gave the council of governors various statutory roles and responsibilities and
the amendments to it, contained within the 2012 Act, expand, clarify and add to them (as
shown in Table 1).

Table 1: Governors’ roles, responsibilities and powers under the legislation

o Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the chair; | In preparing the
; NHS foundation
trust’s forward plan,
the board of

e Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the other
non-executive directors;

Decide the remuneration and allowances and
other terms and conditions of office of the
chair and the other non-executive directors;

Approve (or not) any new appoiniment of a
chief executive;

Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the NHS
foundation trust’s auditor; and

Receive the NHS foundation frust's annual
accounts, any report of the auditor on them,
and the annual report at a general meeting of
the council of govemnors.

directors must have
regard to the views
of the councit of
governors.

Hold the non-executive directors, individually
and collectively, to account for the
performance of the board of directors (see
Chapter 4);*

Represent the interests of the members of the

The council of
govermnars may
require one or more
of the directors to
attend a governors’
meeting to obtain

* This makes explicit a duty to hold the board to account which was already a requirement of Monitor's Code of
Govemnance. The subtle difference is that in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 govemors are specificaily
tasked with holding the non-executive directors, individually and collectively, to account for the performance of
the board of directors but it should be remembered that the board operates as a unitary board.

18



Page 60

Annex 4b

trust as a whole and the interests of the public
{see Chapter 4);

Approve “significant transactions” (see
Chapter 10},

Approve an application by the trust to enter
into a merger, acquisition, separation or
dissolution (See Chapter 10);

information about
performance of the
trust’s functions or
the directors’
performance of
their duties, and to
help the councit of
governars to decide

whether to propose
a vote on the trust's
or directors’
performance (see
Chapter 4).

Decide whether the trust's non-NHS work
would significantly interfere with its principal
purpose, which is {o provide goods and
services for the health service in England, or
performing its other functions (see Chapter
11):® and

Approve amendments to the trust's
constitution.®

Additional responsibilities for NHS foundation trusts following the amendment of the
2006 Act by the 2012 Act
Board meetings:

« Before each board meeting, the board of directors must send a copy of the agenda to
the council of governors.

« After the meeting, the board of directors must as soon as practicable send a copy of the
minutes to the council of governors.

Annual members’ meetings:

» The trust must hold annual members’ meetings. At least one of the directors must
present the trust's annual report and accounts, and any report of the auditor on the
accounts, to members at this meeting.

« The trust may combine the annual members’ meeting with the governors’ meeting, which
is held for the purpose of considering the trust’s annual report and accounts.

« \Where there has been an amendment to the constitution which relates to the powers,
duties or roles of the council of governors, at least one governor must attend the next
annual members’ meeting and present the amendment to members. Members have the
right to vote on and veto these types of constitutional amendments.

5 Any proposal by the directars to increase the proportion of fotal income earned from non-NHS work by five
percentage points or more requires agreement by more than half of the members of the council of governors
of the frust voting.
& amendments to the trust's constitution must be approved by the council of governors, Approval means more
than half of the governors voting agree with the amendments. Amendments must also be approved by mare
than half of the members of the board of diractors voting.

20



Page 61 Annex 4b

Governor capability:

»  The trust must take steps to ensure that governors have the skills and knowledge they
require to undertake their role,

For mare details on any of the governors’ statutory duties and powers introduced by the
amendment of the 2006 Act by the 2012 Act, please referto the legistation, or contact your
trust secretary.

3.2 Other activities

Governors may also become involved in many areas not covered by the legislation.
However, they should remember that they do not play an operational role within the frust.
Althaugh NHS foundation trusts may choose to involve governors in hospital visits or
volunteering, governors neither have a right to inspect NHS foundation trust property or
services nor a duty to meet patients and conduct quality reviews.

Many NHS foundation trusts have greatly benefited from the skills and experience of their
governors. Listed below are just a few examples of other duties that governors in some
trusts have undertaken. However, again, these are activities which have been decided at a
local level and are not compulsory;

» holding constituency meetings to communicate with members and understand members’
views,

« providing a govemnor perspective on aspects of the trust's performance;

+ developing and reviewing the membership strategy fo make sure that levels of
representation and engagement are maintained and increased as appropriate,

« working with other local representative bodies;

« working with hospital volunteers; and

+ giving talks to interested stakeholders.

QOrganisations such as the Foundation Trust Network and Foundation Trust Governors'
Association may provide additionat support and advice in these areas. More details about
these organisations can be found in Chapter 12.

Types of governors

There are different types of governors but they all have the same statutory role and
responsibilities. The main differences arise from the types of trust members that particular
govermnors represent. However, there are minimum requirements on the composition of the
council of governors, including that there must be a majority of public governors.

Public governors

Public governors are elected by the members of the trust’s public constituency. An NHS
foundation trust will typically divide its public constituency into areas covering the
geographical areas where the majority of the trust's patients and/or service users reside.
Members of these areas will elect governors to represent their area. A trust may also
choose to have a “rest of England” constituency if its patients or service users are
particularly widely dispersed, as may be the case for some specialist trusts in particular.

21



Page 62 Annex 4b

NHS foundation trusts have a legal duty to make sure their public constituencies are
representative of those eligible for membership.

Public governors, like all governors, have a primary responsibility to represent the interests
of the NHS foundation trust members who elected them as well as other members of the
public. The 2006 Act states that more than half of the council of governors must be made up
of public governors {including patient, carer or service user governors if the NHS foundation
trust has a patient/carer/service user constituency).

Patient, carer and service user governors

NHS foundation trusts can opt to have a patient/carer/service user constituency. If this is the
case then the trust will have patient, carer and service user governors to represent if. As
people who are very close to the services provided by the NHS foundation trust, patients,
carers and service users may bring particutar insight and knowledge to the council of
governors about the trust’s efficiency and effectiveness, and the patient experience.

The role of this type of governor is the same as that of public and staff governors, namely,
to hold the non-executive directors, individually and collectively, to account for the
performance of the board of directors, and to represent the interests of the members of the
patient/carer/service user constituency, the members of the trust as a whole, and the public.

Staff governors

Staff governors have the same role as public governors and patient/carer/service user
governors in that they are responsible for holding the non-execuiive directors, individually
and collectively, to account for the performance of the board of directors, and for
representing the members of the staff constituency, the members of the NHS foundation
trust as a whole, and the public. A staff governor should not seek to act as a staff
representative or union representative on employment issues, as there are other channels
for dealing with such concerns.

Staff governors may however face different challenges from those faced by public or
appointed governors. For example, they may need support to obtain time off from their jobs
to attend meetings.

As employees of the trust, staff governors bring a unique understanding of the issues faced
by an NHS foundation trust, which they should seek to use in representing their members’
interests and holding the non-executive directors to account for the performance of the
board.

The 2006 Act requires at least three members of the council of governors to be staff
govemors. Where there are different classes of staff within the staff constituency, such as
“Nursing”, “Medical” and “Management’, each class must be represented by at least one
govermnor.

Appointed governors

Legislation requires that the council of governors alsc appoints representatives of certain
defined stakeholders to help tailor its governance to local circumstances. These appointed
governors are representatives of organisations with whom NHS foundation trusts may wish
to have a strong retationship. They can be from any organisation, providing appointed

22



Page 63 Annex 4b

govemors are drawn from one or mare qualifying local authorities and, where the trust
includes a university medical or dental school, one appointed governor is from the
university/school.

Trusts are no longer required to appoint a governor from a PCT, which have now been
abolished. There is no equivalent requirement to appoint a governor from one or more
CCGs in their place, although trusts are free to do this if they wish.

An NHS foundation trust’s constitution wilt identify the stakeholders who are entitled to
appoint representatives to the council of governors. Such stakeholders may include, for
example, local voluntary groups, the police, trade unions or charities. There is no difference
between the responsibilities of an elected and an appointed governor, other than whom they
represent.

The role is not defined in statute but we expect that appointed governors will work to further
the relationship between their own organisation and the NHS foundation trust, and seek to
benefit the trust where possible through the relationship.

Governor terms of office

There is no reference in legislation to a maximum number of years that a governor may
serve on a council of governors but many trusts choose to impose a limit and, if so, this will
be set out in the trust’s constitution.

There is a legistative maximum for each term of office: the 2006 Act states that elected
governors (ie, public, patient and staff governors) may hold office for a period of up to three
years. A governor is eligible to stand for re-election at the end of this period, after which
they may be re-elected for further terms of up to three years, providing they remain eligible.
Govemor terms may also be for less than the maximum three years.

There is no statutory rule as to the total number of years that a governor may serve,
although some trusts may self-impose a maximum limit such as the “9 year rule” (also
known as the "3x3 method”) whereby govemnors may be elected to serve a maximum of
three terms of office, each of three years.

Govermnors should check the terms of office set cut in the trust’s constitution, and directors
and governors should consider the advantages, and disadvantages, of having governors
serving, subject to re-election at three-year term intervals, for a long period of time.

Provision of information by directors to governors

Directors should ensure that governors receive the information they need to undertake their
role effectively. The 2006 Act, as amended, specifies that agendas and minutes of meetings
of the board of directors must also be sent to the council of governors. Directors and
governors should seek to agree the format for, and level of detail of, such information.
Please note that there is no legal basis on which the minutes of private sessions of board
meetings should be exempted from being shared with the governors. In practice, it may be
necessary to redact some information, for example, for data protection or commercial
reasons. Governors should respect the confidentiality of these documents.,

23



Page 64 Annex 4b

If governors feel they are not getting the information they need from the trust in order to
conduct their duties effectively, they should speak to the chair, clarifying what additional
information they would fike to receive. If the governors are not satisfied with the chair's
response, they may also consider speaking to the senior independent director or another
non-executive director.

Board meetings held in public

It is a tegal requirement for the constitution to provide for meetings of the board of directors
that are open to members of the public. However, the constitution may provide for members
of the public to be excluded from a meeting for special reasons. Again this does not mean
that governors should not receive the agenda and minutes from these meetings. This
imposes a serious duty of confidentiality on governors.

Unless there are specific provisions in the trust's constitution on this issue, governors are
not required to attend public meetings of the board of directors, but may do so if they wish.

How public board meetings are conducted will be at the discretion of each trust. Some may
have procedures to permit questions from gavernors, members and the public, and others
may not.

Annual members' meetings

The 2006 Act, as amended, states that NHS foundation trusts must hold an annual meeting
of their members, an “Annual Members’ Meeting”. This meeting must also be open to the
public.

At least one member of the board of directors must attend the meeting and present the
annual accounts, any auditor report on them, and the annual report.

When the trust wants to make an amendment to the constitution concerning the powers or
duties of the council of governors (or otherwise with respect to the role that the council of
governors has as part of the trust), at least one govemor must attend the next annual
members meeting and present the amendment. The trust must also give the members an
opportunity to vote on whether they approve the amendment. More than half the members
voting must approve the amendment, or it will cease to be valid and the trust will have to
take such steps as necessary as a result.

Panel for Advising Governors

Under the 2008 Act, as amended, Monitor has appointed a Panel for Advising Governors
(the Panel) to which governors of NHS foundation trusts may refer a question concerning
whether their trust has failed, or is failing, to act in accordance with its constitution, or
Chapter 5 of the 2006 Act.

A governor may only refer a question to the Panel! if more than half of the members of the
council of governors voting approve the referral. The Panel will first decide if the referred
question meets the criteria for its consideration. If the question is accepted by the Panel, the
Panel will consider the available information, and is likely to request further information from
the governors and/or the trust. The Panel will then decide whether to carry out an
investigation in relation to the referred question. If an investigation is carried out, the Panel
will publish a report setting out the conclusion.

24



Page 65 Annex 4b

if such a question or any other important issue or uncertainty arises, governors should
always seek fo discuss it in the first instance with the chair or another non-executive
director. Referral of a question to the Panel should be as a last resort if governors are not
able to obtain an answer to a relevant question through discussion internally.

Governor training

It is the trust's duty to take steps to ensure that governors are equipped with the skills and
knowledge they need to discharge their duties appropriately. The directors will therefore
need to make sure their trust has appropriate training arrangements in place both for new
and existing govemnors, and that these are regularly reviewed and refreshed. Directors may
opt to use outside training programmes or consultants to help fulfil this duty, but the overall
responsibility remains with the trust.

Training sessions should be scheduled to be as easy as possible for governors to attend.
This might mean, for example, scheduling training around council meetings. Governors
should make every effort to attend any training that has been arranged for them by the trust
or otherwise paid for by the trust.

Trusts should also consider giving governors access to specific expertise when they request
it, so that governors have appropriate and objective guidance. For example, governcrs
might find expert human resources (HR) advice helpful when they are asked to appoint a
new chair or new non-executive directors.

Other support for governors

Trusts may provide travelling and other expenses for governors to attend councilt meetings
and committee or working group meetings, as well as to any training events that the trust is
asking governors to attend. The rates for such expenses will be determined by the trust.

Participation by governors in working groups and sub-committees

Trusts and governors may choose to have working groups and sub-committees on which
governars may sit to help in specific areas of work, such as audit and finance, recruitment,
patient experience and membership committees. The full council should set the terms of
reference of such working groups and sub-committees, including how governors are elected
or appointed to the group. The council of governors has no power of delegation, so
governor working groups and committees can make recommendations to and advise the full
council but cannot make decisions on its behalf. The board, by way of contrast, does have
power of delegation to committees of the board, and therefore board commitiees can have
decision-making powers.

25



Page 66 Annex 4b

Chapter 4: General duties of the council of governors

The 2006 Act, as amended, specifies that it is the duty of the council of governors to hold
the non-execulive directors individually and collectively to account for the performance of
the board of directors. While the board is a unitary body which takes colfective responsibility
for the performance of the trust, the governors’ role in assurance should take place prmarily
through the non-executive directors. It is also the duty of the council of governors to
represent the interests of NHS foundation trust members and the public.

This represents a change from Monitor's 2010 Code of Governance. The next iteration of
the Code of Governance will be updated accordingly.

This chapter covers:

+ the legal requirements;

» what it means to hold the non-executive directors to account;

» whal it means to represent the interests of members and of the public; and
» what the board of directors should do to support governors in these duties.

4.1 Holding the non-executive directors to account

What are the legal requirements?
The council of governors has a duty to hold the non-executive directors individually and
collectively to account for the performance of the board of directors.

The meaning of "holding the non-executive directors to account” is not described in
legislation, which means there is no one “right way" to hold the non-executive directors to
account. This may reasonably lead to a variety of interpretations by different councils of
governors and boards of directars — this chapter aims to help guide their interpretations.

What does it mean to hold the non-executive directors to account?

The key principles guiding governors’ understanding of what it means to hold the non-
executive directors to account are shown in Table 2 (see page 27). 1t also lists the related
statutory duties of governors and directors, and suggested methods that governors can use
to hold non-executive directors to account.

tn summary, “holding the non-executive directors to account” requires governors to
scrutinise how well the board is working, challenge the board in respect of its effectiveness,
and ask the board to demonstrate that it has sufficient quality assurance in respect of the
overall performance of the trust. This is likely to involve questioning non-executive directors
about the performance of the board and of the trust and making sure to represent the
interests of the trust's members and of the public in doing so. in performing this duty,
governors should keep in mind that the board of directors continues to bear ultimate
responsibility for the trust’s strategic planning and performance.

26



Page 67 Annex 4b

Table 2: Key principles guiding governors’ understanding of what it means and how
to hold the non-executive directors to account, and related statutory duties

1. The overall responsibility for running an NHS foundation trust lies with the board of
directors.

2. The council of governors is the collective body through which the directors explain and
justify their actions, and the council should not seek to become involved in running the trust.

3. Gavemors must act in the best interests of the NHS foundation trust and should adhere to
its values and code of conduct,

4. Directors are responsible and accountable for the performance of the foundation trust;
governors do not take on this responsibility or accountability. This is reflected in the fact
that directors are paid while governors are volunteers.

This document is not intended to set out “best” or even “good” practice, which will
become clearer over time. The following are examples of activities that governors might
undertake in seeking to hold the non-executive directors to account, but the approach
will be decided at a local level.

« Governors are responsible for appointing the chair and other non-executive directors and
may also remove them in the event of unsatisfactory performance.

+ Governors have the power to appoint or remove the auditor.

» Directors must take account of governors’ views when setting the strategy for the trust,
giving governors the epportunity to feed in the views of trust members and the public and o
question the non-executive directors if these views do not appear to be reflected in the
strategy. However, governors should understand there may be valid reasons why member
views cannot always be acted upon. Governors and non-executive directors should have
enough time to discuss these matters so governors can be satisfied with board decision-
making processes.

» Governors have the right to receive the annual report and accounts of the trust, and can
use these as the basis for their questioning of non-executive directors and assessing the
performance of the board in terms of the delivery of the trust’s goals against the forward
plan.

To hold the non-executives individually to account:

a) Receive performance information for the chair and other non-executive directors
as part of a rigorous performance appraisal process as well as to inform decisions on
remuneration terms for the chair and the other non-executive directors.

27




Page 68 Annex 4b

b) Observe the contributions of the non-executive directors at board meetings and during
meetings with governors.

To hold the non-executive directors collectively to account:

a) Receive the quality report and accounts and question the non-executives on their content.
Ask about the CQC’s judgements on the quality of care provided by the trust.

b) Receive in-year information updates from the board of directors and guestion the non-
executives on their content, including the performance of the trust against the goals of the
forward plan.

¢) Invite the chief executive or other executive and non-executive directors to attend council of
governors meetings as appropriate and use these opportunities to ask them questions.

d) Engage with the non-executive directors to share concems, such as by way of joint
meetings between the council of governors and non-executive directors.

e) Receive information on proposed significant transactions, mergers, acquisitions,
separations or dissolutions and question the non-executives on the board's decision-
making processes, and then, if satisfied, approve the proposal.

fi Receive information on documents relating to non-NHS income, in particular any proposal
to increase the proportion of the trust's income earned from non-NHS work by 5% a year or
more, and question the non-executives on the board’s decision-making processes, then, if
satisfied, approve the proposal.

Only to be used after all other methods of communication between the directors and
governors have been exhausted.

a) Put guestions to the Panel for Advising Governors where the circumstances meet the
requirements in the 2006 Act, as amended (see page 24 for details of the Panel).

b) As a last resort, engage in a dialogue with Monitor through the lead governor.

General considerations

Holding the non-executive directors to account for the performance of the board does not
mean the governors should question every decision or every plan. The role of governors in
“halding to account” is one of assurance of the performance of the board. Governors should
therefore assess what they believe are the key areas of concern and provide appropriate
challenge, particularly if they feel due process is not being followed, the interests of the
members and of the public are not being appropriately represented, or the trust is at risk of
breaching the conditions of its licence or of failing to deliver on the goals in the forward plan.

Governors may not always agree with the decisions taken by the directors. On the other
hand, directors do not always have to adhere to the governors’ preferences. However, the
board of directors, as a whole, does have to give due consideration to the views of the
governors, especially in relation to matters which concern the interests of the members of
the NHS foundation trust and the public.

28



Page 69 Annex 4b

Governors' liability

The 2006 Act, as amended, does not make explicit reference to governors’ liability.
Governors’ duty to “hold the non-executive directors, individually and collectively, to account
for the performance of the board of directors” does not mean that governors are responsible
for decisions taken by the board of directors on behalf of the NHS foundation trust.
Assuming the governors have acted in good faith and in accordance with their duties as set
out in the Act {and proper process has been followed}, the potential for liability should be
negligible. As additional comfort, governors may have the benefit of an indemnity and/or
insurance from the trust. While there is no legal requirement for trusis to provide an
indemnity or insurance for governors to cover their service on the council of governors,
where an indemnity or insurance policy is given, it is likely to be detailed in the trust’s
constitution. Please see page 84 for details on this topic in relation to governors’ role in
approving significant transactions, mergers, acquisitions, separations and dissolutions,

Peciding on a process
The governors and directors should agree a regular process for holding the non-executive
directors to account for the performance of the board effectively throughout the year. This
process should specify:

+ what information governors require from the directors, the format of the information and
the timescale within which it should be provided;

+ the forums at which govemnors will have the oppottunity to question directors;

- what steps to take should the governors be dissatisfied with responses they receive from
one, or more, of the non-executive directors; and

+ when governors should use their power to require directors to attend a governors’
meeting.

The board of directors is likely to start by giving an account of the work it has done in
directing the NHS foundation trust to ensure the trust delivers high-quality services. This
account will provide governors with a basis for asking informed questions.

The purposes of this process are:

1. to provide governors with a degree of assurance on the performance of the board;
and

2. to allow the board of directors to ensure govermnors have the right level and value of
assurance available to them.

The procass requires ongoing interaction and partnership between counciis of governors
and boards of directors.

Information exchange
Directors should ensure that governors are provided with sufficient information on the
board’s performance, and that the information is available in appropriate formats.

The board should ensure gavernors have opportunities to meet with directors and non-

executive directors so that governors can raise questions about the board’s performance. it
should also provide governors with evidence that their views and the interests of the

29



Page 70 Annex 4b

members of the NHS foundation trust and the public have been taken into account in
formulating the forward plan.

4.2 Representing the interests of trust members and the public

What are the legal requirements?

Under the 20086 Act, as amended, governors have a duty to represent the interests of the
members of the NHS foundation trust and the public. However, the meaning of this is not
defined in legislation. This means there is no one "right way” to fulfil this duty, which may
lead to a variety of interpretations by different councils of governors.

What does it mean to represent the interests of members and the public?

Table 3 lists the key principles that will inform how governors decide to fulfil this duty and
suggests some methods that governors may wish to employ. Governors will, of course,
need to engage regularly with the NHS foundation trust's members and the public in order
to represent their interests effectively. Further infermation on member engagement can be
found in the Monitor publication Current practice in NHS foundation trust member

recruitment and engagement.

Table 3: Key principles to inform how governors decide to represent the interests of
members and the public and some suggested methods

1. Governors should seek the views of members and the public on material issues or
changes being discussed by the trust.

2. Govemors should feed back to members and the public information about the trust, its
vision, performance and material strategic proposals made by the trust board.

3. Govemors should try io make sure when they are communicating with directors of the
trust that they represent the interests of members and the public rather than just their
own personal views.

This document is not intended to set out “hest” or even “good” practice, which will
become clearer over time. The following are examples of activities that governors
might undertake in gaining the views of members and the public but the approach will
be decided at a local level.

a)} Governor drop-in days where members and the public can come in to meet with
govemors.

b) A governors' and members’ section of the trust website to share information.

c) Member days where members and the public are invited to the trust for a day and
governors take time to speak to them.

d) Surveys of members (with help provided from the trust to administer where necessary).

30



Page 71 Annex 4b

General considerations
Governors have a general duty to represent the interests of members and the public and
this includes representing their views in relation to potential:

significant transactions,;

mergers;

acquisitions;

separations and dissolutions of the trust; and
increases to non-NHS income,

Governors should therefore interact regularly with the members of the trust and the public to
ensure they understand their views, and to make sure that they clearly communicate to
them information on trust performance and planning. However, governors should take care
to disclose only those matters which the trust considers non-confidential.

Deciding on a process
Governors should establish a process for interacting with members and the public and
recording their views on key topics.

Governors should also ensure that members and the public know when and where they are
able to communicate with governors for this purpose. How the trust and governors organise
this process is at their discretion.

Ideas for feeding back views to directors might include having a regular monthly or quarterly
report, presentations at council meetings or a regular meeting of the membership
committee, if this exists, to discuss feedback. Again, it is at the discretion of the trust and
governors to choose what works best locally. Governors should remember that they have a
duty to represent the public as well as members of the trust; it may be helpful to work with
other local public representatives such as local Healthwatch to do this.

What the board of directors will need to do to support governors

The board of directors can greatly assist governors in performing their duty to represent the
interests of members and the public. The board should help to arrange opportunities for
governors to meet with members of the trust and the public; it will also need to support
govemnors in their work to understand the interests of the public, and of people using the
trust services, their carers and families.

When governors represent the views of members and the public to the board, the directors

should record these views and consider them in formulating trust strategy and assessing
trust performance in related areas.

31



Page 72 Annex 4b

Chapter 5: Appointing and removing the chair and other non-executive
directors

The non-executive directors provide independence, balance and challenge to the executive
element of the board of directors. The chair, as one of the non-executive directors, performs
a crucial rofe in the NHS foundation trust as both the chair of the board of directors and the
chair of the council of governors. This chapter sets out some of the key issues that
governors will need to consider concerning the chair and other non-executive directors,
including:

« appointing the chair and other non-execttive directors;
- terms and conditions; and
» removing the chair and other non-executive directors.

All detail and processes are relevant in regard both to chairs and other non-executive
directors, unless otherwise explicitly stated.

5.1 Background

What are the legal requirements for appointment and removal?

The 2006 Act requires that an NHS foundation trust has non-executive directors. The
number of non-executive directors will be set out in the individual NHS foundation trust’s
constitution.

It also states: "It is for the council of governors at a general meeting to appoint or remove
the chairman and the other non-executive directors.” This means it is for the council of
governors as a whole (rather than, say, a committee or a working group) to appoint or
remove the chair and the other non-executive directors.

In accordance with the legislation:

= appointing the chair and the other non-executive directors requires approval by a
majority of the govemors attending the relevant generat meeting; and

- removing the chair and the other non-executive directors requires the approval of three-
quarters of the entire council of governors, not just of those who attend the meeling at
which the removal is to be discussed and decided.

Terms and conditions

The 2006 Act says: ‘It is for the council of governors at a general meeting to decide the
remuneration and allowances, and the other terms and conditions of office, of the non-
executive directors.”

This means that the council of governors is not only responsible for appointing the non-
executive directors, including the chair, it also sets the terms of those appointments.

32



Page 73 Annex 4b

5.2 Appointing the chair and other non-executive directors

The Code of Governance states that: “There should be a formal, rigorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment or election of new members to the boards of directors.”

As the chair leads both the board of directors and council of governors, governors will need
to do a considerable amount of work to ensure that their NHS foundation trust has the right
chair in place. The governors must also ensure that the other non-executive directors are fit
and proper persons o serve the NHS foundation trust in this role.

General considerations

Further detail about the roles of the chair and non-executive directors is provided in the
Code of Governance. Governors should read this carefully before beginning an appointment
or reappointment process. As the chair is one of the non-executive directors, any
information provided in this guidance or in the Code of Governance on non-executive
directors is also relevant.

The procedure for all appointments or reappointments must be formal, rigorous and
transparent. The appointment must be awarded on merit and based on objective criteria
developed in the best interests of the trust. The process should be described in the NHS
foundation trust’s annual report.

As part of the process, the governors should consider the relevant aspecis of the NHS
foundation trust's constitution and the Code of Governance, such as:

» the requirements of the NHS foundation trust’s constitution concerning the number of
non-executive directors;

« the independence of non-executive directors;

- any specific skills and experience requirements such as the need to ensure relevant and
recent financial experience when appointing non-executive directors to the audit
committee; and

- the balance of executive and independent non-executive directors on the board of
directors.

33



Page 74 Annex 4b

Process for appointing the chair and other non-executive directors

Figure 4: Key stages for appointing the chair and other non-executive directors

Triggers for action
The most common trigger for action will be the impending expiry of the existing chair or

other non-executive director’s term of appointment.

« [f the chair or non-executive director decides to seek reappointment, the council of
governors will need to decide whether it is in the best interests of the NMS foundation
trust for this to happen.

« |f the current chair or non-executive director does not seek reappointment or the council
of governors decides that reappointment is not appropriate, the council of governors will
need to make a new appointment.

» Governors also have the power to remove an existing chair or non-executive director. i
they use this power, they will need to make a new appointment.

Agree process and establish criteria

The governors and nominations committee should together agree a clear process for
nominating a new non-executive director or reappointing an existing non-executive director.
This process should include taking appropriate advice from within the NHS foundation trust,
for example, from the trust's own HR department where necessary and from the chair in the
case of other non-executive directors.

Where there is a second, specific nominations committee dealing with the chair and the
other non-executive directors, the council of governors should agree a process with that
committee. Where there is only one nominations committee to appoint both executive and
non-executive directors, the council of governors should appoint a working group {unless
such a group exists permanently) to agree the process with the nominations committee and
to report back to the council of governors.

34



Page 75 Annex 4b

In either case, the nominations committee should decide a job description and person
specification defining the role and capabilities required, including an assessment of the time
commitment required to perform the role. The committee should propose terms and
conditions for the post and, if appropriate, the post may be advertised. These matters
should be agreed with the governors’ working group where there is one.

The nominations committee, and where appropriate the governors’ working group, should
take into account the views of the board of directors (particularly the non-executive directors
in the case of the chair's appointment) on the process in general and the qualifications,
skills and experience required for the position. For example, during the non-executive
directors’ appointment process, if the directors advise that the board of directors lacks
specific professional experience (eg, legal, clinical or accountancy), the recruitment process
should reflect the need for that experience. In the same way, the nominations commitiee
should consult other key stakeholders as appropriate.

What if reappointment is sought?

Where an existing chair or other non-executive director seeks reappointment, the
nominations committee and, where appropriate, the governors’ working group, should look
at the existing candidate against the current job description and person specification for
their role at the NHS foundation trust (the nominations committee should continually review
and update both). In additicn, it should consider the following matters.

Annual performance appraisals

Conducting an appraisal of the candidate’s past performance at the NHS foundation trust,
with particular regard to delivery of the role’s objectives, will help the council of governors
significantly in performing its statutory duties, particuiarly when considering the
reappointment or removal of the chair or other non-executive directors,

+ For the chair: the council of governors should take the lead on determining what the
process will be for evaluating the chair. The senior independent director would be
expected to lead the actual appraisal (afthough one or more governors may also play a
significant role) and confirm to the governars whether, following formal performance
evaluation, the performance of the chair continues to be effective and demonstrates
commitment to the role. The focus of the chair's appraisal will be his or her performance
as chair of the board of directors. Since the primary aim of the chair's work will be to lead
the directors in executing the trust's forward plan, the appraisal should consider carefully
the chair's performance against pre-defined objectives supporting that aim.

The fact that the focus of the chair's appraisal will be his or her performance as chair of
the board of directors does not mean that appraising the chair's performance as the
chair of the council of governors is not a highly relevant part of the appraisal. Rather, it
reflects the 2006 Act, which states that the chair of the board of directors also chairs the
council of governors (and not the other way around), and the fact that it is for the
governors to appoint, and remove, the chair and the other non-executive directors. That
said, the appraisal process should still be used to evaluate all relevant performance
issues, including those relating to the council of governors, but these should not be the
main issues for consideration in relation to reappointment of the chair, in their capacity
as a non-executive director,

35



Page 76 Annex 4b

The outcome of the evaluation should be discussed and agreed with the council of
govemnors. Where an NHS foundation trust has already developed its own processes for
evaluating the chair, the council of governors should periodically review the
effectiveness of the process.

+ For the other non-executive directors: the council of governors and the chair should
agree a process for evaluating the non-executive directors. The evaluation should
carefully consider their performance against pre-defined objectives that support the
execution of the trust’s forward plan. The chair of the council of governors will lead on
setting objectives for the non-executive directors and carrying out the appraisals. The
chair should confirm to the governors that, following formal performance evaluation, the
performance of the individual non-exgcutive director proposed for reappointment
continues o be effective and demonstrates commitment to the role. The governors
should then agree the outcome of the evaluations,

Commitments

Any changes in the candidate’s other significant commitments wilt be relevant. The
governors should assess the candidate’s availability against the time required for the role of
chair or non-executive director.

Refreshing the board of directors

Refreshing the board provides an apportunity o reassess the skills, knowledge and
experience required by the NHS foundation frust. It ensures the board of directors is
exposed to new approaches, experiences and ways of working. It is healthy for the NHS
foundation trust progressively to refresh the board of directors and this includes the chair
and other non-executive directors.

The nominations committee(s) and its serving governors should therefore ensure that
succession planning is undertaken effectively at the trust and that any skills gaps at the
board level are identified and addressed.

Terms of office

If the nominations committee decides to recommend reappointment, it should specify a term
of no longer than three years. Any candidate that has already served six years or more in
the post should be rigorously reviewed and the process should take into account the need
for progressive renewal of the board of directors.

The Code of Governance states that "non-executive directors may serve longer than six
years” subject to annual re-appointment, but this requirement for annual reappointment
makes clear that this should be the exception rather than the norm. The council of
governors can determine the terms and condiions of non-executive directors’ appointments,
including the term of office.

Independence

Any changes in the independence of the non-executive director (as described in the Code of
Govemmnance) should be taken into account. In the case of a non-executive director, the
length of service is relevant to the determination of his or her independence in accordance
with the Code of Governance. The Code requires that at least half of the board of directors,

36



Page 77 Annex 4b

excluding the chair, should comprise non-executive directors determined by the board to be
independent.

Temporary appointments

When appropriate plans are in place, NHS foundation trusts are likely to need temporary
arrangements only in exceptional circumstances. However, under such circumstances, such
as a sudden vacancy, the governors may need to consider making a temporary
appointment while the formal appointment process is running. For the post of chair, the
deputy chair may be able to fill the chair role for the period required. The NHS foundation
trust should refer to its constitution in the first instance.

Once these processes have been undertaken, the hominations committee or working group
¢an put the reappointment proposal to the full council of governors for a final decision.

What if a new appointment needs to be made?

it is a statutory requirement for every NHS foundation trust to have non-executive directors,
one of whom is the chair. The NHS foundation trust will need to seek a new appointment if
an existing chair or other non-executive director:

does not seek reappointment at the end of his or her current term;
seeks reappointment and this is not approved (for the chair this includes without
competition); or

+ is otherwise removed by either the councl of governors or following enforcement action
taken by Monitor.

Whether or not a new non-executive director appointment is required will depend on the
NHS foundation trust’'s constitutional requirements and the needs of the trust. This issue
should be discussed with the board of directors and, in particular, with the chair,

A new appointment will, of course, make it impossible for the council of governors to rely on
previous internal performance evaluations. As a result, the appointment process will need
particular care and scrufiny and the nominations committee should take the lead in ensuring
that a well-defined and robust recruitment process is in place. In many cases, it will be
appropriate to take external recruitment advice.

Getting the right external advice and support

The council of governors is likely in many cases to decide that, in addition to advice and
support offered by the NHS foundation trust's own HR specialists, taking external advice on
recruitment and the search process is appropriate. The council of governors should take this
decision in collaboration with the nominations committee or governors’ working group.
Proposals for obtaining external support will need to be agreed with the board, or a
representative executive director, as the board will need to authorise the necessary
axpenditure.

Typical reasons for seeking external advice include a limited experience of senior
recruitment within the governor group or where tough employment market conditions

37



Page 73 Annex 4b

prevail. If selecting external advisers, governars should consider matters including the
potential advisers'”.

previous experience of board-level recruitment;

independence from the NHS foundation frust;

track record of successful appointments;

previous experience of public sector recruitment;

knowledge of the health secior and candidate research ability; and

selection principles and processes, such as candidate assessment technigues.

- - L] L] L] -

Applications

The nominations commitiee, with input, where appropriate, from a governors’ working group
and other key stakeholders, should sift through applications received for the post following
its advertisement. The sifting process should seek to produce a diverse field of strong
candidates for interview. The precise nature of this sifting will depend upon the
circumstances in which the vacancy arose, the number of applications received and of
candidates that are potentially appropriate for appointment. Again, this process may require
external assistance, for exampie, from a recruitment consuitant.

The nominations commitiee (taking into account the views of other non-executive directors
and the governors’ working group where there is one) should then draw up a shortlist of,
preferably, three or four candidates, but certainly no fewer than two candidates.

Shortlisting and interview

NHS foundation trusts should ensure that governors make up a majority of the votes on the
interview panel. Typically, the nominations committee, with participation, where appropriate,
from the governors' working group, will interview the shortlisted candidates. The
interviewers should then decide which of the shortlisted candidates are appointable and put
forward a recommendation for a final decision, typically in a final report.

The nominations committee's final report, incorporating the proposal for reappointment or
the presentation of the new candidate(s), should be presented to the council of governors
for consideration. The report should:

» summarise the process followed by the nominations committee, including the selection
criteria where appropriate,;

s describe how, and to what extent, the candidates meet the criteria for the role and their
relative strengths and weaknesses;

« recommend how the council of governors should proceed; and

e at all times maintain confidentiality conceming the applicants in accordance with the
NHS foundation trust's own protocols.

How will the final decision be made?

The council of governors must then decide on an appoeintment in accordance with its
statutory obligations. As part of this, the council of govemors will consider the issues set out

38



Page 79 Annex 4b

in the report and any other factors it considers relevant. In particular, it should satisfy itself
that the:

« appointment process has complied with all applicable law and advice:

« appoiniment process was both legal and appropriate; and

« proposed appointee has the right qualities to meet the job description, taking into
account the views of the board of directors on the qualifications, skills and experience
required for the position.

Once the appointment decision is made:

» For the chair — the senior independent director and the governors should set the
appointee objectives for the coming year.

« For the other non-executive directors — the chair and the governors should set the
appointee objectives for the coming year.

Next steps
The full process followed should be described in the NHS foundation trust's annual report.

What other responsibilities are there?

Appointing a deputy chair

The constitution of the NHS foundation trust should make provision for ancther person to
act as chair of the council of governors in the absence of the chair. The governors should
appoint a deputy chair of the council of governors from among the other non-executive
directors. The board or chair would normally make a recommendation to the governors for
this role.

The deputy chair's role is to stand in for the chair as required, so this appointment should be
made on the same basis as the appointment of the chair. However, the process of
appointment will differ because the council of governors will look for applicants from among
the current non-executive directors and choose one of them. The Code of Governance
states that the senior independent director could be the deputy chair.

The deputy chair of the council of governors must hold the confidence of the board of
directors. Governors should therefore seriously consider the views of the board and of the
chair when making their choice.

If the council of governors decides that none of the candidates are appropriate for the role, it
should consider its next steps in the light of the NHS foundation trust’s constitution and the
need for a deputy chair.

Appointing the senior independent director

The board of directors appoints the senior independent director, in consultation with the
council of governors. Further detail on the senior independent director role can be found in
the Code of Governance.

39



Page 80 Annex 4b

5.3 Terms and conditions of the chair and other non-executive directors

Significant factors in attracting, retaining and motivating the chair and other non-executive
directors are the terms and conditions on offer to them, including levels of pay. This section
provides advice on how governors should strike a balance hetween motivating the right
candidates and paying no more than is necessary.

What are the terms and conditions?

The terms and conditions will form the chair and other non-executive directors’ contract for
services with the NHS foundation trust. They will cover a variety of issues, the most
important of which will include the:

+ term that the chair and non-executive director will serve;
responsibilities of the chair and non-executive director;

+ remuneration and allowances that the chair and non-executive director will receive — this
will include any pay that the individual receives, but can also include non-taxable
elements;

s J{ocation of work;

» hours of work expected; and

» termination provisions, including notice periods.

The most common point at which the terms and conditions are set is on appointment.
However, they can be reviewed and altered throughout the term of office, provided the
correct processes are followed,

How should the process work?

There should be a transparent procedure for deciding the terms and conditions of the chair
and individual non-executive directors. The nominations committee will formulate the terms
and conditions relating to a new appointment and agree them, where appropriate, with the

governors or the governors’ working group before making the appointment.

The nominations commiitee and, where appropriate, the governors’ working group may also
wish to consult with the NHS foundation trust’s remuneration committee on this process.

Governors should note that the council of governors as a whole at a general meeting must
make the final decision on the relevant appointment’s terms and conditions, and it could
choose to reject the proposals. Similarly, the council of gavernors as a whole makes the
final decision on any revised terms and conditions for existing appointments.

New appointments: how do governors meet their responsibilities?
All money paid to non-executive directors is taxpayers’ money; an NHS foundation trust
should therefore ensure that value for public money is obtained.

The nominations commiftee and, where appropriate, the governors’ working group should
agree the process for setting terms and conditions as part of the overall appointments
process. They should do this after finalising the job description but before the post is
advertised.

40



Page 81 Annex 4b

The factors that the nominations committee, the governors’ working group (where
appropriate} and, eventually, the council of governors, will need to examine will vary
depending on the position. However, central factors wilt be the:

« fime commitment required by the role;

« responsibiliies covered by the role; and

« terms and conditions available at simitar NHS foundation trusts and other comparable
organisations.

In addition to seeking the advice and support available from the NHS foundation trust’s own
HR speciafists, the council of governors may need to take professional advice, particularly
on prevailing terms and conditions. The council of governors may also want {o ook at
advice provided by other relevant bodies such as the Foundation Trust Network.

The nominations committee and, where appropriate, the governors’ working group may also
wish to consult with the NHS foundation trust’s remuneration committee during this process.

Involving the remuneration committee

The remuneration committee is generally concerned with setting the pay of the executive
directors and other employees. However, it may be able to provide useful input on matters
such as the process, terms and conditions available at comparable organisations, trusted
and experienced advisers and relevant performance indicators that may apply to both
executive and non-executive directors.

As the remuneration committee is generally composed of non-executive directors,
governors should bear in mind that conflicts of interest could arise when they consuit the
remuneration committee. Governors can manage such potential conflicts by asking the
remuneration commitiee to confine its advice to the process of setting terms and conditions
and the use of external advisers.

When should terms and conditions be reviewed or changed?

It may be necessary to change the terms and conditions of the existing chair, non-executive
director or a group of non-executive directors. Such changes will need to be handled
carefully and councils of governors may need to take legal advice as a poaorly run process
could lead to disputes and, possibly, litigation. Changes to existing terms and conditions
may be needed when:

e market conditions change — a significant change may mean existing terms and
conditions should be reviewed. Even if market conditions do not change significantly,
governors should consult externat professional advisers to market-test the pay levels
and the other terms and conditions of the chair and other non-executive directors at least
once every three years; and

« individual responsibilities change — there may be a marked change in the range of an
individual's responsibilities or in the time he or she can commit to the role. The
governors should take the lead in conducting a review of the chair or other non-
executive directors’ terms and conditions in the light of any such change. If it seems to
merit a signhificant alteration to the chair's terms and conditions, particularly with regards

41



Page 82 Annex 4b

to pay, the governors should seek external professional advice (including legal advice)
hefore making any alterations.

Who triggers the review?

As governors have the statutory duty to decide the remuneration and other terms and
conditions of the non-executive directors, the council of governors should determine
whether a review is required. This should be an informed decision, made with the advice
and support of bodies such as the NHS foundation trust's HR specialists and external
professional advice (where market conditions have changed), the chief executive (where a
chair's responsibilities have changed) or the chair (where individual non-executive director
responsibilities have changed).

How will the final decision be made?

Any new or changed set of terms and conditions for the chair or other non-executive
directors will require a decision by the council of governors at a general meeting. This
meeting should be informed by a report (including recommendations) of either the
nominations committee or, where appropriate, the governors’ working group.

When terms and conditions are revised in relation to a new appointment, the council of
governors’ decision on them should form part of the appointment decision.

The terms and conditions of the NHS foundation trust's chair should be made fully
transparent in the annual report.

5.4 Removing the chair and other non-executive directors

Removal of the chair or other non-executive directors is a very serious step and the council
of governors must ensure that a fair, rigorous, lawful and transparent process is in place.

What are the possible reasons for removal?

Governors will appreciate that removing the chair or other non-executive director is only
likely to be appropriate in very limited and particular circumstances. Governors must clearly
understand the potential reasons which may lead to a removal decision before embarking
on the removal process.

Possible reasons for removal will depend on the particular circumstances. These may
include, but are not limited to:

» gross misconduct or a request from the board of directors for the removal of a particular
non-executive director;
the chair losing the confidence of the board of directors or governors; or
severe failure by the chair to fulfii their role.

What is the process for removal?

The council of governors should only exercise its power to remove the chair or other non-
executive director as a last resort. The removal should not take place unless the governors,
other non-executive directors (in particular the chair and senior independent director if he or
she is not the subject of the process) and the chief executive, where a chair is concerned,

42



Page 83 Annex 4b

have had the opportunity to put forward their views on the basis of the available evidence. A
suggested process is set out below, followed by further detail on some of the steps outlined.

Figure 5: Key stages for the removal of a chair or other non-executive director

Investigation, advice and consultation

The first step in the process to remove a chair or other non-executive director is likely to be
a thorough investigation of the facts and concerns. The nominations committee, with
appropriate representatives from the council of governors, should then investigate the
matter, including any allegations made against the individual. The NHS foundation trust may
decide that an independent investigation is warranted under certain circumstances and this
should be determined by the trust alone.

This investigation should include consideration of the views of key personnel within the NHS
foundation trust. Before the subsequent confidence vote, the council of governors should
discuss the matter with:

+ The chief executive — where the chair is concerned.

« The other non-executive directors, in particular the senior independent director {where
he or she is not the individual under scrutiny), and the chair — where other non-executive
directors are concerned.

Governors should note that under the 2012 Act, for the purpose of obtaining information
about the trust’s performance of its functions or the directors’ performance of their duties
(including deciding whether to propose a vote on the trust’s or directors’ performance}, they
may require ane or more of the directors to attend a meeting to discuss this. However, the
decision on whether to hold a confidence vote is cne for the council of governors. Legal
advice on the legality of any removal and the process for it should be sought throughout.

The council of governors may find the annual performance appraisal process helpful when
considering the removal of the chair or other non-executive directors.

Repaorting the findings

A senior representative of the nominations committee should present the findings of the
investigation and consultation to the councit of governors. The council of governors must
ensure all individuals are given an adequate opportunity to respond to any aliegations
made.

Vote of no confidence

Only once the investigation has been properly undertaken would a vote of no confidence in
the individual by a majority of the council of governors be required. This will not in itself
result in the removal, but will start the formal process for the removal. When, following an

43



Page 84 Annex 4b

investigation, a vote of no confidence in the chair is being considered by the council of
governors, the lead govemor should directly inform Monitor, through the NHS foundation
trust’s relationship manager.

Suspension

As part of the standard terms of appointment of chairs and non-executive directors, while an
investigation process has been set in train by the council of governors, the chair or other
nan-executive director{s) in question would be expected to be restricted to attending the
trust only for formal board and committee meetings. The individual would effectively be
suspended from other activities within the role, pending the investigation and consultation
into them.

The council of governors may wish to consider whether it can and should suspend the chair
while investigation and consuitation are carried cut. The governors may consider this
appropriate in circumstances where:

- there is a potential risk to patients or staff;
« the council of governors deems that an individual may disrupt an investigation; or
« there is an allegation of fraud.

Governors may need to seek legal advice on whether there is a power to suspend, whether
suspension is appropriate and the terms (including the length} of any suspension befaore
they decide to suspend.

How will the final decision be made?

If the council of governors is satisfied that a full and proper process has been foilowed, it
should call for a full meeting of the council of governors o vote on the matter, If it is in any
doubt about the process, it should seek clarification and remedy any deficiencies before
voting. Removal requires the approval of three-quarters of the members of the whole
council of governors and not just those who attend the meeting.

What happens when Monitor removes a chair or other non-executive director?

Following a breach of an NHS foundation trust’s licence, circumstances may arise

that require Monitor to exercise its statutory powers to suspend or remove a chair or
other non-executive director, Under such circumstances, Monitor's statutory powers
take precedence over the powers that may be exercised by the council of governors.

For further information on Monitor and how it may exercise its powers, governors can
refer to the Compliance Framework 2013/14 available on Monitor's website. Please
note: during 2013/14 the Risk Assessment Framework will replace the Compliance
Framework in the areas of Monitor’s financial oversight of providers of key NHS
services (not just NHS foundation trusts) and the governance of NHS foundation
trusts.

What are the next steps following removal?

In the event that removal takes place, the council of governors will need to make a new

appointment to replace the removed individual. A description of the reasons for, and

process of, removal will need to be set out in the NHS foundation trust’s next annual report.
44



Page 85 Annex 4b

Chapter 6: Approving the appointment of the chief executive

This chapter looks at the role of governors in appoiniing the chief executive of an NHS
foundation trust. It covers:

« factors lo consider when deciding whether to approve an appointment; and
« what to do if you decide not to approve an appointment.

What are the legal requirements?
The 2006 Act says: “The appointment of a chief executive requires the approval of the
council of governors”.

What does “approval” mean?

The non-executive directors, including the chair, are responsible for appointing ar removing
the chief executive. The council of governors has to approve that decision and can veto the
appointment of a particular chief executive if there are legally sound reasons, including on
the role scope or description. Note that this does not mean that the council of governors
appoints the chief executive.

The Code of Governance states that governors should decide whether to approve a
candidate put forward for appeintment by a committee of the chair and non-executive
directors at the next scheduled general meeting of the council of governors. If a majority of
governors attending the meeting approves the appointment, it can go ahead. In rare cases,
the council of governors may decide not to approve the candidate but must give legitimate,
factual and legally sound reasons for withholding its approval.

Timing

Typically the council of governors meets as a full council only four or five times a year. This
may mean a delay of two to three months between the board’s decision to appoint and the
general meeting of the governors where approval is discussed. Boards can reduce or
eliminate such delays by carefully managing the appointment process and keeping
governors informed of the timetable, or by holding an additional meeting of the council of
governors. An offer made by the board of directors to a potential chief executive in the
interim should be stated as being subject to the approval of the council of govemnors, as
required by law.

What should the governors consider before making a decision?

Table 4 (see following page) sets out the three main areas for a council of governors to
consider.

45



Page 86

Annex 4b

Tahle 4; Main areas for governors to consider before approving the appointment of a

chief executive

Before the process of
approving the appointment
of a chief executive starts:

» inform govemors of
constitutional
requirements; and

e inform govemnors of
skills requirements and
best practice advice
such as the Code of
Governance.

Consuit the governors on the
appointment process and
give them the opporiunity to
endorse this before it starts.

Involve governors in the
appointment process so they
can give their perspective to
the council of governors
when it considers approving
the final candidate. it will also
help to give the council of
governors a clear
understanding of how the
process worked.

Ensure the governors are
satisfied that the various
stages of the appointment
process followed by non-
executive directors meet the
required standard. For
example, they should
consider the use of
advertisements, the criteria
for selection and how
selection was carried out.

Demonstraie fully how the
proposed candidate’s skills
and experience meet the
agreed role and person
specification in the report to
the governors from the
selectors.

Involve governors in the
selection process 50 they can
give their first hand opinions
of the final candidate to the
council of governors.,

The council of governors should expect a full report from the chair, non-executive directors
or appropriate committee regarding the three points above. However, recognising that the
legal responsibility to make an appeointment rests with the non-executive directors, the
council of governors should not withhold its approvatl lightly.

What if the council of governors does not give approval?

If the council of governors does withhold approval, it must justify its reasons to the chair and
the other non-executive directors, bearing in mind that its decision is likely to have a range
of consequences for the NHS foundation trust. The council should take care to ensure that
reasons are legitimate, factual and legally sound.

The non-executive directors and council of governors must work together to avoid a
deadlock by sharing concerns as early as possible. Trust boards can make it less likely that
governors will withhold approval by communicating with them and involving them throughout

the appointment process.

46




Page 87 Annex 4b

If the councit of governors rejects a candidate, the non-executive directors may put forward
the same candidate for approval if they can assure the council of governors that its
concerns have been addressed. Alternatively, the non-executive directors may decide to
seek a new candidate. In either case, the process, the decision and the reasons for that
decision should be set cut in the NHS foundation trust's annual report.

47



Page 88 Annex 4b

Chapter 7: Appointing and removing the NHS foundation trust’s external
auditor

The external auditor of an NHS foundation trust has important duties concerning the trust's
annual accounts. This chapter sets out the governors’ role in relation to the NHS foundation
trust’s external auditor. This chapter covers:

« what the auditor does;
s who the auditor can be; and
« appointing and removing the auditor.

7.1 Background

What are the legal requirements?

The 2006 Act says that every NHS foundation frust must have an auditor that is appointed
by the council of governors. The law states that it is for the council of governors to appoint
or remove the auditor at a general meeting of the council.

That means the whole council of governors, rather than, for example, a committee or a
working group, must appoint or remove the auditor.

Governors will need to do a lot of work to make sure they choose the right external auditor
and monitor their performance. However, they are supported in this task by the audit
committee, which provides information to the governors on the external auditor’s
performance as well as overseeing the NHS foundation trust's internal financial reporting
and internat auditing.

The role of the audit committee

The audit committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing matters including the
integrity of financial statements of the NHS foundation trust, iis intemal financial controls
and internal audit function.

The audit commiitee must consist of non-executive directors. The Cade of Governance
states that the committee should have at least three independent non-executive directors
and that at least one member of the audit commiitee should have recent and relevant
financial experience.

In order to support the underlying statutory duty of choosing the right external auditors, the
Code of Governance states that the audit committee should report to the council of
governars. The reports should:

s identify any matters relating to the external auditer where it considers that action or
improvement is needed; and
« recommend what steps to take.

The governors will need to consider such reports closely, particularly in fulfilling their duty to
hold the non-executives to account for the performance of the board.

48



Page 89 Annex 4b

The governors will also want to jook at Monitor's Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts (the
Audit Code), especially the criteria for auditors that it prescribes.

What does the auditor do?
The auditor has statutory duties to ensure that:

« the accounts of the NHS foundation trust are prepared in accordance with all relevant
directions set by Monitor and any other statutory provisions;

« proper practices are observed in compiling the accounts; and

« the NHS foundation trust is using its resources economically, efficiently and effectively.

Further details on the auditor's role are set out in the Audit Code.

Who can be the auditor?

When an NHS foundation trust is authorised, it will have in pest an auditor appointed by
the Audit Committee of the NHS trust. This auditor will remain in post until the council of
governors of the new NHS foundation trust has had a chance to discuss appointing a
replacement.

The new NHS foundation trust is free to appoint whichever auditor it considers the most
appropriate. However, to avoid having no auditor in place the new trust and the incumbent
auditors must agree an engagement letter for the period before a new auditor is appointed,
or the old one reappointed.

The auditor can either be an individual, or from a firm of auditors or other professional firm.
However, the auditor {or in the case of a firm, each of its members} must be a member of
one of the professional bodies specified in law (Audit Commission Act 1998), as below:

a) the Instifute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales;

b) the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland;

¢) the Association of Certified Accountants;

d) the Chartered [nstitute of Public Finance and Accountancy,

e) the Institute of Chartered Accountants in lreland; and

f) any other body of accountants established in the United Kingdom and for the time being
approved by the Secretary of State for this purpose.

The Audit Code sets out the particular criteria that an auditor must meet, not only on
appointment but throughout its term as auditor. The auditor must:

» have an established and demonstrable standing within the health care sector and show
a high level of experience and expertise — the work is specialised, so general audit
experience is not enough fo meet this standard,

» comply with the Audit Code; and

o subject the audit to internal quality control procedures that are sufficiently robust to test
whether the audit work complies with the Audit Code.

if the auditor fails to meet, or believes it will not be able to meet, the criteria set out in the
Audit Code at any point during its appointed term, the auditor must resign.

49



Page 90 Annex 4b

Governors need to consider when to change the team at the auditor’s firm because a team
that has been in place for too long may no longer be sufficiently independent from the NHS
foundation trust. Governaors can seek advice from the Auditing Practices Board (APB) on
when to rotate teams, informed by APB ethical standard 3.

Annual process
The audit committee should make a report to the council of governors on the auditor when
the annual audit is completed.

This report should assess whether the auditor's work is of a sufficiently high standard and
its fees are reasonable,

The audit committee must make a recommendation to the council of governors on retaining
or removing the auditor. The council of governors should then consider whether to retain or
remove the auditor.

7.2 Appointing the auditor

Figure 6: Key stages for appointing the auditor

Trigger for action
The impending end of the existing auditor's contract term will trigger a new appointment
process, whether or not the existing auditor is seeking reappointment.

Governors also have the power to remove an existing auditor and, in certain situations, an
auditor can or should resign. In either event, governors will need to make a new
appoiniment.

Agree process and establish criteria

The council of governors should take the lead in agreeing with the audit committee the
criteria for appointing, reappointing or removing auditors. As with all appointments or
reappointments, the procedure must be formal, rigorous and transparent.

The audit committee will run the process but the final decision on any appointment rests
with the council of governors. Having established objective criteria, the audit committee
should:

1. agree with the council of governors a clear process for nominating a new auditor or

reappointing the existing one, including a timetable showing the deadline by which a new
appeintment should be made; and

50



Page 91 Annex 4b

2. prepare a specification defining the role and capabilities required, including the
necessary qualifications, skills and experience, and agree the specification with any
governors’ audit working group or similar.

Procurement process

The audit committee should run a formal procurement process to obtain the best candidate
as fairly and transparently as possible. The process may vary depending on the NHS
foundation trust’s particular procurement rules but it must be within procurement law. This is
complex and the audit committee and the governors’ audit working group are likely to need
tegal advice before embarking on a procurement process.

Re-appointment

if the audit committee and the governors' audit working group have followed a correct
process and the existing auditor meets the appropriate criteria, then the existing auditor may
appear on the shortlist of final candidates. The same criteria should be applied to all those
that express an interest in becoming the auditor of the NHS foundation trust.

Shortlist
The audit committee should draw up a shortlist of at least two appointable candidates in
conjunction with the governors’ audit working group.

Presentation by the audit committee
The audit committee and any governors' audit working group should present to the council
of governors:

« the procurement process they have followed;
« the resulis of the procurement process; and
« recommendations.

The recommendations should describe in full the shortlisted candidates and assess their
relative strengths and weaknesses. The appointment must be based on merit and objective
criteria. The committee should also recommend the preferred candidate and set terms of
engagement for the external auditor.

How will the councit of governors make a final decision?
The council of governors should then make a final decision in line with its statutory
obligations.

If the council of governors chooses to make an appointment, the audit committee will need
to approve the auditor's terms of engagement. The council of governors and the audit
committee should consider in particular how long the appointment should tast. Best practice
is to appoint an auditor for a period which allows it to develop a strong understanding of the
NHS foundation trust, normally three to five years (see “Wha can be the auditor?” above).

Should the council of governors feel unable to make an appaintment, for example, because
it is unwilling to accept the audit committee’s recommendations or believes the procuremernt
process was flawed, then the audit committee and the governors' audit working group must
set to work again at speed. The law requires the NHS foundation trust to have an auditor at

51



Page 92 Annex 4b

all times, so they should adhere fo the appointment timetable they will have drawn up at the
start of the process. However, they may need to consider extending the incumbent auditor's
contract to ensure that the trust is never without an auditor.

Next steps

In any event, the full process must be set out in the NHS foundation trust's annual report. In
particular, if the council of governors does not accept the audit commitiee’s
recommendation, the board of directors should include in the annual report a statement
from the audit committee explaining its recommendation and the reasons the council of
governors took a different position.

7.3 Removing the auditor

Removing the auditor is a very serious step and the council of governors must follow a
rigorous and transparent process in taking it.

What are the possible reasons for removing the auditor?

The council of governors will recognise that removing the auditor is rarely likely to be
appropriate, particularly as the auditor plays an independent role within the NHS foundation
trust.

If the auditor demonstrably does not meet the criteria set out in the Audit Code the
governors may have grounds for removal, although the governors must, of course, clearly
understand those grounds before they embark on the removal process.

What is the process?

The council of governors should only exercise its power te remove the auditor after
exhausting all other means of resolving any dispute. If it cannot resolve the issue, we
suggest it pursues the following process.

Figure 7: Process for governors to remove the auditor

Proposal
The councit of governors should put together a proposal to consider removing the auditor.
This will not necessarily resuit in removal, but will start the formal process.

Investigation, advice and consultation

The audit committee should investigate the issue, including allegations made against the
auditor, if any. The investigation should consider the views of key personnel within the NHS
foundation trust, including the NHS foundation trust’s finance director and his or her staff,
The audit commitiee should seek legal advice on the legality of the removal process and
any eventual removal throughout the process.

52



Page 93 Annex 4b

Report
The audit committee should present the findings of the investigation and consultation to the
council of governors. The council of governors must ensure that the auditor is given

adequate opportunities to respond to any allegations.

Making a final decision

Once the council of governors is satisfied that a full and proper process has been followed,
it should vote on whether to remove the auditor. If govemors have any doubts at all about
the process, they must remedy any deficiencies in the process before voting. A majority of
the council of governors must vote to remove the auditor at a general meeting before a
removal can go ahead.

After the auditor’s removal

When the council of governors ends an auditor's appointment in disputed circumstances,
the chair of the NHS foundation trust should write to Monitor giving the reasons for the
decision. After a removal, the NHS foundation trust will need to appoaint a new auditor. The
removal process and the reasons for it will also need to be set out in the NHS foundation

trust’s annual report.

53



Page 94 Annex 4b

Chapter 8: Receiving the NHS foundation trust’s annual accounts, any
auditor’s report on them, and the annual report

The council of governors will need to see a number of regular reports to keep informed
about the NHS foundation trust. This chapfer identifies the reports the council of governors
must receive to meet the statutory requirements. If covers:

« the role of the governor in receiving these documents; and
+ govemnors’ duties to provide internal feedback.

What are the legal requirements?

The 2006 Act, as amended, says: “The following documents must be presented to the
council of governors... at a general meeting, and also by at least one member of the board
of directors of the corporation at the annual members’ meeting NHS foundation trusts may
also combine the annual members’ meeting with a meeting of the council of governors.

(a) the annual accounts

{b) any report of the auditor on them; and

(c) the annual report”.

Monitor's NMHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (Annual Reporting Manual)
states that these documents should be presented at the annual general meeting of the
council of governors,

What are these documents?

Further details about the annual report and accounts of an NHS foundation trust, and any
report on the accounts from the NHS foundation trust’'s auditor, are in the Annual Reporting
Manual available on Monitor’s website.

Accounts
The NHS foundation trust must keep accounts, prepare annual accounts for each financial
year, and comply with directions from Monitor concerning any aspect of those accounts.

Annual report and accounts
The Annual Reporting Manual sets out the requirements for the content and format of the
annual report and accounts. The accounts will include:

« a statement of the accounting officer’s responsibilities;
the annual governance statement;

« auditor’s opinion;

+  main statementis; and
notes.

The annual report will include, at a minimum:

» adirectors’ report, including a management commentary;
« aremuneration report;

« the disclosures set out in the Code of Governance, and

« other disclosures in the public interest.

54



Page 35 Annex 4b

in addition, the annual report must include a report on the quality of care the NHS
foundation trust provides. The quality report should contain an update on the quality of care,
incorporating a statement outlining the current level of quality and priorities for improving it,
signed by the trust’s chief executive. The report will also summarise the trust's performance
against guality indicators selected by the trust in three key areas:

1. patient safety;
2. clinical effectiveness; and
3. patient experience.

Further details on the content of these reports are in the Annual Reporting Manual, which
governors are encouraged to read.

The annual report must also include details of all occasions when the council of governors
has exercised its powers to require a director to attend a meeting (see page 19).

Auditor’s report on the accounts
When the auditor has finished auditing the accounts, it must enter on them:

- a cenificate that it has completed the audit in accordance with the relevant law; and
» an apinion on the accounts.

The auditor should address the certificate and opinion to the councit of governors. The
certificate must confirm that the audit has been completed in accordance with the relevant
law. If the auditor has done this but is nevertheless not satisfied that the process fully meets
standards set out in the Audit Code, then it must say so by qualifying the cerlificate.

Approval of the annual report and accounts

The annual report and accounts must be formally approved by the board of directors. Once
approved, the auditor will sign its opinion on the accounts (in accordance with the Audit
Code). The auditor will need to see the annual report before signing its opinion on the
accounis.

NHS foundation trusts are required to lay before Parliament their annual report and
accounts and any auditor's report on them, should there be one. The Annual Reporting
Manual sets out when to do this,

Table 5: Timescales for the production of the annual report and accounts

Annual report and Date of the annual general Annual general meeting takes

accounts laid before meeting of the council of place. Annual report and

Parliament. governors advertised. accounts are presented at the
meeting.

55



Page 36 Annex 4b

Quality accounts and governors
It is important to encourage govemors to participate in:

identifying and prioritising quality indicators and quality priorities for the NHS foundation
trust in the coming year (as part of involving governors in formulating the forward plan);
and

- presenting the final quality report or account after the financial year has ended (which
helps them fulfil their duty to hold the non-executive directors to account for the
performance of the board).

This approach to inveolving govermnors in upholding qguality may differ from the approach
taken in NHS foundation trusts. A note on the timetable for involving governors following the
new approach appears below (in “What is the role of the governors?”). NHS foundation
trusts are likely to adapt this guide to meet their own internal reporting timetables but it gives
an overview of the main tasks governors may take on concerning the quality report and
accounts.

Monitor's guidance, Detalled Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports 2012/13
(updated annually) sets out detailed guidance for NHS foundation trusts and their auditors
to enable them to carry out the external assurance engagement on the quality reports.

Governors may also wish to read the Foundation Trust Network publication Making the Most
of Your Quality Accounts.”

What is the role of the governors?

As noted above, the annual report and accounts and any auditor's report on the accounts
must be presented at a meeting of the council of governors. The Annual Reporting Manual
indicates this will be the annual general mesting.

This meeting should be convened within a reasonable period from the end of the financial
year in question but not before the annual report and accounts have been laid before
Parliament.

The Annual Reporting Manual suggests placing an advertisement in the local media not less
than 14 days before the date of the meeting, stating:

= the time, date and location of the meeting; and
+ how copies of the annual report and accounts {or annual report and summary financial
statements) of the NHS foundation trust may be obfained on request before the meeting.

What does “presented to the council of governors” mean?

One of the directors presents the documents listed above to the council of governors to
inform them about the NHS foundation frust’s performance. Govemeors then have an
opportunity to comment on the documents but cannot make changes to them.

The council of governors must understand the information in these documents, for example,
on the performance of the chair or the other non-executive directors. This will ensure it has

" You wili need to register with the Foundation Trust Network to use this link.
56



Page 97 Annex 4b

fulfilled its other statutory duties, for instance, to provide informed feedback to the board of
directors and to inform external stakeholders (including any that they represent) on how the
NHS foundation trust is performing. Governors should be permitted to ask additional
guestions on NHS foundation trust performance as appropriate.

The governors will base their own views of how the NHS foundation trust is performing on
the performance information in the annual report and accounts and the response to their
subseguent guestions, making their understanding of those documents an essential part of
how governors collectively can hold the board of directors, and specifically the non-
executive directors, to account.

Internal feedback

When a director presents the annual report and accounts to the council of governors, this
presents a good opportunity for the board of directors to brief the council of governors on
the overall performance (financial and otherwise) of the NHS foundation trust in the previous
year.

The council of governors should provide feedback to the board of directors based on its
view of the overall performance of the board. The chair is responsible for arranging for the
governors to give this internal feedback.

External stakeholders

The council of governors should also explain to the NHS foundation trust members, and the
stakeholder organisations that appointed them, how the trust has performed over the
previous year. It may do this near the time it receives the annual report and accounts.

57



Page 93 Annex 4b

Chapter 9: Preparing the forward plan
The council of governors should be involved in strategic planning. This chapter covers:

« what the forward plan is;
« the governors’ role in strategic planning,; and
« what the board of directors does in relation to governors’ input.

What are the legal requirements?

The 2006 Act, as amended, reguires NHS foundation trusts to give Monitor forward planning
information for each financial year, prepared by the board of directors. In preparing the
forward plan, directors must have regard to the views of the council of governors.

This means that governors should have the opportunity to discuss the plan, but it can be
implemented without their approval.

What is the forward plan?

Monitor requires each NHS foundation trust to submit an annual plan including forecast
financial performance, details of any major risks to compliance with their ficence and how
the NHS foundation trust intends to address these risks.

Further advice on preparing and submitting the annuat plan is available on Manitor's
website; we update this every year. The information in the annual pian includes:

commentary on the strategic overview for the NHS foundation trust, changes to previous
forecasts, risk analysis and membership plans;
« a membership report,
+ the Corporate Governance Statement and other statements required by the licence; and
« financial projections.

What is the role of the governors?

The Code of Governance states that governors can “expect to be consulted on the
development of forward plans for the trust and any significant changes to the delivery of the
trust's business plan”.

The approach to strategic planning taken by boards varies considerably. This also reflects
the variation in the way in which councils of govermors are involved.

The forward plan incorporates both operational and strategic information. The council of
governors’ role is to ensure that the interests of members of the NHS foundation trust, and
of the public, are considered when the NHS foundation trust proposes strategic
developments. It may perform this role in various ways.

Canvassing the opinions of members and of the public

Governors should seek to canvass the opinions of members and of the public (and, for
appointed governors, the body they represent), to make sure a range of opinions inform the
planning process. They might do this by, for example, holding constituency meetings or
open days, putting guestionnaires on the trust website, or simply by talking to staff and the

58



Page 99 Annex 4b

public throughout the year to understand what they would like to see the trust achieve in the
future. However, this is for the trust and governors to agree locally.

Discussing planning priorities with the board of directors

Govermnors must feed back the views of members of the NHS foundation trust, and of the
public, to the board of directors. NHS foundation trusts have so far found a variety of ways
{o do this.

Involving governors in s{rategic development plans

After the board of directors has approved a specific initiative and incorporated it into the
trust’s forward plan, governors should be kept informed of progress with implementation to
make sure that the interests of members of the NHS foundation trust, and of the public
continue to be represented.

To be clear, this does not mean involving governors in the operational planning of each
initiative developed by the trust, rather that the views of the governors and considerations of
members and of the public are discussed by the board when undertaking such planning.

Please see Chapter 11 for further details of the involvement of governors in taking decisions
on proposed increases in non-NHS income.

What should the board of directors do in response to governors’ input?

Forward planning is the responsibility of the board of directors and they are not obliged to
incorporate all the governors' comments into the final farward plan. However, the board of
directors must pay attention to the council of governors’ views. The amount of weight
directors give to the governors' views is up to the directors, but they must, at least, consider
them.

The Monitor website provides further advice on how the annual planning process may
incorporate the views of governors; this is updated annually.

Informing stakeholders

Once the NHS foundation trust has submitted its forward planning information to Monitor,
the council of governors should inform stakeholders of the NHS foundation trust’s forward
planning, and the reasoning behind it.

59



Page 100 Annex 4b

Chapter 10: Taking decisions on significant transactions, mergers,
acquisitions, separations and dissolutions

Governors are tasked with approving significant transactions, mergers, acquisitions,
separations and dissoiutions proposed for the foundation frust by the directors. This chapter
examines:

the legal requirements;

significant transactions;

mergers, acquisitions, separations and dissolutions;

what governors are asked to take decisions on;

how they might take such decisions in practice;

how the board of directors should support governars in their duty;

how fo inform stakeholders; and

what happens to the council of governors after a merger or acquisition.

L] L] * L] " - L] L]

What are the legal requirements?
Under the 2012 Act:

s More than half of the members of the full council of governiors of the trust voting need to
approve the trust entering into any significant transaction, as specified in the trust's
constitution. This means more than half of the governors who are in attendance at the
meeting and who vote at that meseting.

o More than half the members of the full council of governors must approve any
application by the trust to merge with or acquire another trust, separate the trust into two
or more new NHS foundation trusts or to be dissolved. This means more than half of the
total number of governors, not just half the number that attends the meeting at which the
decision is taken. If the other party to the proposed transaction is also an NHS
foundation trust, more than half the governors of that foundation trust must also approve
the transaction.

This means that trusts will need to help governors by providing appropriate infoermation on
proposed decisions and, consistent with the general requirement placed on NHS foundation
trusts, by taking steps to ensure that the governors are equipped with the skills and
knowledge they require in their capacity as governors. Governors will need to arrange a
vote of the full council and to inform the directors of the outcome of this vote.

Voting procedures, including any rules on the Chair's vote, casting votes or abstentions
should be determined locally and you would normally find the details of these in your trust's
constitution.

What are “significant transactions™?

NHS foundation trusts are permitted to decide themselves what constitutes a “significant
transaction” and may choose to set out the definition(s) in the trust’'s constitution.
Alternatively, with the agreement of the governors, trusts may choose not to give a
definition, but this would need to be stated in the constitution. Examples of a definition might
include any proposed contract valued over a certain monetary value or over a certain

60



Page 101 Annex 4b

percentage of the trust’s annual tumover. Or trusts could choose to define what constitutes
a “significant transaction” in non-monetary terms.

Appendix F of Monitor's Compliance Framewark 2013/14 outlines what Monitor uses to

define “significant transactions” for the purpose of risk ratings, although this is an example
only and the trust is not required to apply the same definition within its own constitution.
Monitor's definition is not intended to change. However it may well be different to the
definition employed by individual trusts.

Table 6: Mergers, acquisitions, separations and dissolutions - definitions and

regulatory requirements

A "merger” refers to a merger of
an NH$S foundation trust with
another NHS foundation trust or
with an NHS trust.

The amendments to the 2006 Act revised the requirement
for Monitor to approve mergers between an NHS
foundation trust and another NHS trust, or between two
NHS foundation trusts. NHS foundation trusts that plan to
merge will still have to make an application to Monitor.
However, our role will be limited to ensuring the
necessary steps in the process have been followed,
including that the appropriate approval by the council of
governors has been obtained.

Monitor is required to grant the application to effect the
change provided it is satisfied that the necessary steps
have been undertaken. Support of the application by the
Secretary of State is required if one of the parties is an
NHS trust.

Mergers between two or more NHS foundation trusts or
between one NHS foundation trust and an NHS trust may
he deemed to be “relevant mergers” and would then be
subject to review by the Office of Fair Trading (OFT).
Please see here for further details of the respective roies
of Monitor, the OFT and the Competition Commission in
this regard.

61




Page 102 Annex 4b

An "acquisition” refers to an
application by an NHS
foundation trust to acquire
another NHS foundation trust or
an NHS trust.

A joint application must be made to Monitor by the
intended acquirer {an NHS foundation trust) and the
acquiree (an NHS foundation trust or an NHS trust).

The application will be made following our review of the
transaction and will include, amongst other documents,
written confirmation from each NHS foundation trust
involved in the transaction that the governors have
approved making the application by the requisite majority.
The application must be accompanied by the proposed
constitution of the acquirer which has been amended on
the assumption that the acquisition will proceed.

Secretary of State approval is required if one of the
parties to the transaction is an NHS trust.

A “separation” refers to an NHS
foundation trust separating into
two or more new NHS

=1 foundation trusts.

An NHS foundation trust planning to separate into two or
more new NHS foundation trusts must apply to Monitor
for the dissolution of the frust and the establishment of
two or more new NHS foundation trusts.

Our role is limited to ensuring that the necessary
preparatory steps have been taken, including approval of
the majority of governors of the NHS foundation trust. if
Monitor is satisfied that the necessary steps have been
taken, we are required to grant the application effecting
the change.

1 An NHS foundation trust may

' make an application to Monitor
| for the trust to be “dissolved".
This might happen if, for
example, the NHS foundation
trust is being acquired by
another NHS foundation trust.

if an NHS foundation trust wishes to dissolve, it must
make an application to Monitor.

Monitor must grant the application if we are satisfied that
the applicant NHS foundation trust has no liabilities and
that such steps as are necessary to prepare for the
dissolution have been taken, including obtaining the
approval of the majority of the council of governors.

Monitor's Compliance Framework sets out the criteria for transactions that need to be
reported to us. While this will be replaced by the Risk Assessment Framework during
2013/14, we will continue to provide guidance.

Monitor and the Department of Health have also jointly published a Transactions Manual.
This provides further information for NHS foundation trusts and commissioners on the
management and governance of major corporate transactions.

Further merger advice can be found in Monitor's document Applving for a Merger involving
an NHS Foundation Trust: Guide for Applicants: additional documentation will become

available in due course.

62




Page 103 Annex 4b

Further guidance on evaluating risk in investment decisions is avaitable from Monitor’s
document Risk Evaluation for Investment Decisions by NHS Foundation Trusts, which is on
our website.

What are governors asked to take a decision on?

The 2006 Act, as amended, states that the trust's constitution must provide for all the
powers of the corporation to be exercisable by the board of directors on its behalf. This
means that it must be the decision of the board of directors as to whether a transaction
should proceed.

Govarnors must obtain sufficient information from the board of directors on the proposed
transaction(s) to make an informed decision on the significant transaction, merger,
acquisition, separation or dissolution.

Governors will recail that their general duties in legislation) are to hold the non-executive
directors (individually and collectively) to account for the performance of the board of
directors, and to represent the interests of the NHS foundation trust members and the
public. With that in mind, governors should assure themselves that the board of directors
has followed an appropriate process in deciding to undertake the transaction and that it has
taken account of the interests of members and of the public in that process in approving
such a transaction.

How might governors take such decisions in practice?
Directors and governors must agree on a process for govemnors being asked to approve
these transaciions to follow. Such a process might include:

« what information governors will be given,;
« at what point in the process governors will be asked to approve the transaction(s); and
« how the views of members will be sought and stakeholders kept informed.

The move towards any transaction is likely to take place over a period of time. The 2006
Act, as amended, is clear that Monitor must be satisfied that the necessary steps have been
taken, including the approval of more than haif of the council of governors. We recommend
that as much information is provided to governors as reasonably possible for them to make
an informed decision.

Please see the following for a reminder of the respective roles of the directors and
governors:

« Executive directors are responsible for bringing forward praposals for the future of the
organisation. Directors should provide govemors with full information on the proposed
transaction, seek to explain to govemors why they believe the transaction is necessary
and provide evidence to support their view.,

« Non-executive directors are responsible for challenging the executives to justify their

recommendations, deal with the risks involved and seek assurance that the executives’
decisions are the right ones.

63



Page 104 Annex 4b

» Governors are responsible for satisfying themselves that the board of directors has been
thorough and comprehensive in reaching its proposal (that is, has undertaken proper
due diligence), and that it has appropriately obtained and considered the interests of
members and the public as part of the decision-making process. Provided appropriate
assurance is obtained, governors should not unreasonably withhotd their consent for a
propesal to go ahead.

How should stakeholders be informed?

Once a final decision has been taken on the proposed transaction and the chair has
confirmed that this is not confidential, the council of governors should seek to communicate
the resuit to the trust's members and the public. The trust is likely to need to help governors
do this, for example, through the trust's website or at an advertised drop-in session with the
governors. The method should be agreed locally.

What happens to the council of governors after a merger or acquisition?

if two NHS foundation trusts decided to merge, both of the respective boards of directors
and councils of governors would be dissolved and one new board and one new council
would be formed. New public, staff (and, if applicable, patient, carer and/or service user)
electoral constituencies would need to be drawn up for the new council of governors, and
elections would need to be held to elect governors to represent them. The newly formed
NHS foundation trust would also need to decide from which organisations it wished to draw
appeinted governors. This would typically be decided by a joint working group of the two
former boards.

If an NHS foundation trust acquires another NHS foundation trust, the council of governors
of the acquiring trust may remain in place, as that trust will continue to operate as the same
entity. The acquiring NHS foundation trust is likely to choose to extend its original public
constituency areas to cover the areas served by the acquired NHS foundation trust. New
govemors will need to be elected to represent these additional public constituency areas.
Individuals who served as governors of the acquired NHS foundation trust may stand for
election if they are eligible to do so under the constitution.

Governor liability

We recognise that governors may be concerned that they will be held responsible should
such a transaction turn out to be financially or otherwise damaging for the trust. The 20086
Act, as amended, does not make explicit reference to governors’ liability in this regard,

Governors’ new duty to “hold the non-executive directors, individually and collectively to
account for the performance of the board of directors” does not mean that governors are
responsible for the decision itself, or the operational detail behind it. Responsibility for a
decision remains with the board of directors, acting on behalf of the NHS foundation trust. It
is only through the power to make decisions (and therefore not to make decisions) that
liability accrues. Assuming governors’ decision-making powers are limited to appointing,
advising and approving (or disapproving) transactions (as long as proper process has been
followed), the potential for liability should be negligible. There is no legal requirement for
frusts to provide an indemnity for governors, or insurance to cover their service on the
council of governors, although an indemnity or insurance policy is often given, and, if so, is
likely to be set out in the trust’s constitution.

64



Page 105 Annex 4b

Chapter 11: Taking decisions on non-NHS income

The 2012 Act has given governors decision-making rights concermning non-NHS income.
These came into force on 1 October 2012, Issues that we wil look at in this chapter inciude:

the legal requirements concerning this duty;

what non-NHS income includes;

what governors are asked to take decisions on,

how they might take these decisions in practice,

what the board of directors should do to support governors; and
how to inform stakeholders.

- = 8 & L] -

What are the legal requirements?

The 2006 Act, as amended, obliges NHS foundation trusts to ensure that the income they
receive from providing goods and services for the health service in England (their principal
purpose) is greater than their income from the provision of goods and services for any other
purposes (non-NHS income).

NHS foundation trusts are obliged to publish, in their forward plans, information ahout
activities, other than the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the health
service in England, that the trust proposes to carry on, and the income it expects to receive
from doing so. NHS foundation trusts must also explain the impact of such activities on the
delivery of goods and services for purposes of the health service in England.

Where the trust's forward plan contains information about the NHS foundation trust carrying
out an activity which is not providing goods and services for the purposes of the health
service in England, the council of governors must decide whether it is satisfied that carrying
out the activity will not to any significant extent interfere with the trust's fulfilment of its
principal purpose or the performance of its other functions. The council of governors also
has a duty to notify the directors of its decision.

The 2006 Act, as amended, also requires that where an NHS foundation trust proposes to
increase by 5% or more the proportion of its total income in any financial year attributable io
activities other than the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the health
service in England {including private work) — ie, non-NHS sources — it may do so only if
more than half of the members of the council of governors voting approve the
implementation of the proposal. For example, governors wilt be required to vote where an
NHS foundation trust plans to increase its non-NHS income from 2% to 7% or more of the
trust's total income.

This means that trusts will need to provide governors with appropriate information regarding
the proposed change. Governors will need to arrange a vote of the council and must inform
the directors of the cutcome of the vote.

What does non-NHS income include?

The 2006 Act, as amended, gives no definition of “activities other than the provision of
goods and services for the purposes of the health service in England” (ie, non-NHS

65



Page 106 Annex 4b

income). Trusts will therefore need to decide how they will define this. We would expect
directors and governors te discuss this and reach agreement on a definition.

What are governors asked to take a decision on?
The decisions that governors must take in regard te non-NHS income are set out in the

legal requirements above,

How might they take such decisions in practice?

Governors should recall that their duties are to hold the non-executive directors, individually
and collectively, to account for the performance of the board of directors, and to represent
the interests of members of the trust as a whole, and the interests of the public.

Governors should therefore consider whether they feel assured that the board has, as part
of its decision-making process:

« carried out an effective process to reach its proposal;
« appropriately considered the interests of members of the trust; and
» appropriately considered the interests of the public.

Providing appropriate assurance is obtained, governors should not unreasonably withhold
their consent for a proposal to go ahead.

What will the board of directors need to do to support governors?

The directors must give the forward plan to the council of governors in good time for them to
give it due consideration at a council meeting. The directors should also ensure that the
governors are provided with any further information they need in order to understand this
document, and any proposed increase (by 5% or more) of the proportion of the trust's total
income in any financial year from activities other than the provision of goods and services
for the purposes of the health service in England (ie, non-NHS income),

Any such proposed increase may well also be a significant transaction for the trust, or
indeed, it might result by way of a proposed acquisition of another entity. The directors and
governors should decide whether all the voting requirements can be met in a single vote or
whether it would be more appropriate to vote separately on the proposed increase in non-
NHS income, on the proposed significant transaction and on the proposed acquisition, for
example.

The directors should ensure that the governors receive any information they need to make a
decision, and should arrange an opportunity for the council of governors to ask them
guestions about the forward plan. The governars should then consider the document and
the answers to their questions and make arrangements for the council to vote on the
document. The governors shouid arrange to inform the directors as soon as practicable on
the outcome of the vote.

How to inform stakeholders

When the final decision has been taken on any proposed change to non-NHS income, and
once the chair has confirmed the decision is not confidential, the council of governors
should communicate the result to trust members and the public. The trust is likely to need to
assist governors in making this communication, for example through a specific area of the

66



Page 107 Annex 4b

trust’s website or at an advertised drop-in session with the trust’s governors. The method
should be decided locatly.

67



Page 108 Annex 4b

Chapter 12: Further information

This guide sets out the key statutory responsibilities of the council of governors. However,
good practice exists in many other areas. NHS foundation trusts are encouraged to utilise
the various networks and information sources available to access best practice and drive

continuous improvement.

Monitor {(www.monitor.gov.uk)
All of the Monitor publications mentioned in this guide can be found on our website:

Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts (March 2011}
Comupliance Framework 2013/14 (March 2013)
Current practice in NHS foundation trust member recruitment and engagement (July
2011)
o Director—governar interaction in NHS foundation frusts: A best practice guide for boards
of directors {June 2012)
Enforcement Guidance (March 2013)
The new NHS provider licence (February 2013)
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Repotting Manual 2012/13 (March 2013; this is updated
annually)
» The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance (March 2010, currently being updated)
o Survey of NHS Foundation Trust Governors 2010/71 (July 2011}

There is information on our website about reviewing annual plans, updated each year.

There is also a section for governors on Monitor's website which provides general
information: www.monitor.gov.ukigovernors

Full information on the Panel for Advising Governars can be found at:
www.mgonitor.gov.uk/governorpanel

The directory of NHS foundation trusts and the register of licence holders (available on our
website at www.monitor.gov.uk/about-your-local-nhs-foundation-trust/nhs-foundation-trust-
directory-and-reqgister-licence-holders) contains the information about NHS foundation trusts
that Monitor has a statutory obligation to provide. This information includes the
authorisation, the licence, the list of Commissioner Requested Services, the constitution, the
latest annual report and accounts, and any regulatory action that has been taken by
Monitor.

Care Quality Commission {(www.cdc.org.uk)

The Care Quality Commission {(CQC) is the independent regulator for all health and social
care services in England. lts strategy for 2013-2016 (Raising standards, putting people firsf)
explains its role and purpose.

The CQC’s purpose is to make sure health and social care services provide people with
safe, effective, compassionate and high-quality care and to encourage care services to
improve. lts role is to monitor, inspect and regulate services to make sure they meet
fundamental standards of care. The CQC registers all care providers in England, including

68



Page 109 Annex 4b

NHS foundation trusts, and monitors providers fo ensure they continue to meet its standards
on an ongeing basis.

It carries out its role by:

« setting standards of quality and safety that people have a right to expect whenever they
receive care;

+ registering services that meet its standards;

« monitoring, inspecting and regulating care services to make sure that they continue to
meet its standards,;

« protecting the rights of vulnerable people, including those whose rights are restricted
under the Mental Health Act;

+ listening to and acting on people’s views and experiences of the care they receive;

« challenging all providers, with the worst performers getting the greatest atiention,;

- making fair and authoritative judgements, supported by the best information, evidence
and data,;

+ taking appropriate action if care services are failing to meet its standards,

« carrying out in-depth investigations to look at care across the system;

- reporting on the guality of care services, publishing clear and comprehensive
information, including performance ratings to heip people choose care; and

« involving people who use care services in its work, working with local groups, partrers in
the health and social care system and the public to make sure people’s views and
experiences of care are at the centre of what it does.

The CQC'’s judgements about the safety and quality of care play an important part in
decisions made by NHS England and local commissioners on which services {o buy and
protect, and in Monitor's decisions on whether an NHS foundation trust is well run on behalf
of patienis. It has a range of enforcement powers to address failure where services are not
meeting standards. In the case of an NHS foundation trust failing to meet standards, the
CQC will liaise with Monitor and, taking account of their respactive powers, we will work
together to ensure the standards are met.

HM Treasury (www.hm-treasury.qov.uk)

HM Treasury is responsible for formulating and implementing the Government’s financial
and economic policy. Its publication Managing public money is relevant to accounting
officers, providing guidance on how to handle public funds of all kinds properiy.

Foundation Trust Network {(www.foundationtrustnetwork.org)

The Foundation Trust Network (FTN) is the membership crganisation for NHS public
provider trusts. The FTN is the single voice for NHS public providers, recognised for its
effective lobbying and influence within government, as a promoter of shared learning, and
as a provider of exceptional support and development for its members. The FTN is also
responsible for delivering GovernWell, a national governor training programme which was
sponsored by the NHS Leadership Academy.

Foundation Trust Governors’ Association (www.ftga.org.uk)

The Foundation Trust Governors’ Association (FTGA) is the national voice for foundation

trust governors. It aims to empower governors by supporting and developing them and

lobbying on their behalf. its development events regularly attract high-profile speakers while
69




Page 110 Annex 4b

its popular publications help governors to understand their roles and the context in which
they operate. The FTGA works closely with Monitor, the FTN, the CQC and the Department
of Health (DH) to ensure a fair share of voice for governors.

Sources of further information on your NHS foundation trust’s governance
arrangements

«  Your trust's provider licence

Your trust's constitution

Trust secretary (or equivalent)

Membership manager (if you have one)

Fellow governors

Your trust's website

Sources of further information on your NHS foundation trust's performance
Financial information:

« Monitor’s financial risk ratings. This may change following the introduction of the Risk
Assessment Framework.

Clinical performance:

« Care Quality Commission
« Hospital guides, for example Dr Foster
» Department of Health

Govemance information:

» Monitor's governance risk ratings. This may change following the introduction of the Risk
Assessment Framework.

Governors of NHS foundation trusts may refer to the Panel for Advising Governors any
questions regarding whether their trust has failed or is failing to act in accordance with its
constitution or with Chapter 5 of the 2006 Act where: governors are not able to obtain an
answer to a relevant question through internal discussion; more than half of the members of
the councit of governors voting approve the referral; and the panel agrees that the question
meets its criteria. More information is available on page 24.

70



Page 111 Annex 4b

Glossary

Audit Committee
A trust’s own committee monitoring its performance, probity and accountability.

Auditor

The internal auditor helps organisations (particularly boards of directors) to achieve their
objectives by systematically evaluating and proposing improvemnents relating to the
effectiveness of their risk management, internal controls and governance processes.

The external auditor gives a professional opinion on the quality of the financial statements
and report on issues that have arisen during the annual audit.

Auditing Practices Board (APB)

The APB is part of the Financial Reporting Council. 1t is committed to leading the
development of auditing practice in the UK to: establish high standards of auditing; meet the
developing needs of those who use financial information; and ensure public confidence in
the auditing process.

Carer

Someone who gives a patient or service user regular support, but who is not paid or
employed by the statutory services, They can be a neighbour, friend, family member or
partner.

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs)

The new groups of commissioners introduced by the 2012 Act. Following the abolition of
Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), they are formed by GP practices and are responsible for
commissioning the majority of local health care services.

Chair

The highest office of an organised group such as a board or committee. The person holding
the office is typically elected or appointed by the members of the group. The chair presides
over meetings of the assembled group and conducts its business in an orderly fashion.

Code of Governance

The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance is a document published by Monitor which
gives best practice advice on govemnance. NHS foundation trusts are required fo explain, in
their annual reports, any non-compliance with the code. An updated version will be available
from our website in late 2013.

Commissioners

Commissioners specify in detail the delivery and performance requirements of providers
such as NHS foundation trusts, and the responsibilities of each party, through legally
binding contracts. NHS foundation trusts are required to meet their obligations to
commissioners under their contracts. Any disputes about contract performance should be
resolved in discussion between commissioners and NHS foundation trusts, or through their
dispute resolution procedures.

71



Page 112 Annex 4b

Committee
A small group intended to remain subordinate to the board it reports to.

Compliance Framework

Monitor's Compliance Framework serves as guidance as to how Monitor will assess
governance and financial risk at NHS foundation trusts, as reflected by compliance with the
Continuity of Services and governance conditions in the provider licence. NHS foundation
trusts are required by their licence to have regard to this guidance. It will be superseded by
the Risk Assessment Framework during 2013/14.

Constituency

Membership of each NHS foundation trust is divided into constituencies that are defined in
each trust's constitution. An NHS foundation trust must have a public constituency and a
staff constituency, and may also have a patient, carer and/or service users’ constituency.
Within the public constituency, an NHS foundation trust may have a “rest of England”
constituency. Members of the various constituencies vote to elect governors and can also
stand for election themselves.

Constitution
A set of rules that define the operating principies for each NHS foundation trust. it defines
the structure, principles, powers and duties of the trust.

Department of Health (DH})
The government department that supports the government to improve the health and well-
being of the population.

Executive directors
Board-level senior management employees of the NHS foundation trust who are
accountable for carrying out the work of the organisation.

Governors
Elected or appointed individuals who represent foundation trust members or stakeholders
through a council of governors,

Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs)

Each local authority has its own HWB. This is a forum in which health and social care
setvice representatives can collaborate to understand local needs and agree priorities for
addressing the broader determinants of health and wellbeing and reduce health inequalities
among the local population. Boards took on their statutory functions from April 2013. NHS
foundation trusts do not have an automatic right to sit on HWBs, which may themselves
decide if they wish to appoint additional persons.

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee of a local authority inquires into any matter
relating to the planning, provision and operation of health services in the area, NHS
foundation trusts must consuit with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committees before
making any substantial variations to their service offerings that will change mandatory
services, and must provide the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees with any
information they request. A number of Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees, some

72



Page 113 Annex 4b

from outside a trust’s locality, may take an interest in the provision of an NHS foundation
trust's services if it offers a regional or national tertiary referral service.

Healthwatch England

Established in Ociober 2012, Healthwatch England can advise the Secretary of State for
Health, NHS Engtand, loca! authorities, Monitor and the CQC about concerns raised by
local Healthwatch bodies for possible investigation.

Human resources (HR)
A term that refers to managing “human capital”, the people of an organisation.

Integrated care

To help organisations work across traditicnal boundaries to better deliver care and support
that meets the needs of patients and service users, integrated care is primarily about
individuals’ experience of care and ensuring better outcomes through coordinated, person-
centred care and support. it is neither necessarily about structures, organisations and
pathways, nor about the way that care is funded or commissioned. You can find out more
information on Monitor's website here.

Lead governor

Governors will generally communicate with Monitor through the trust’s chair. However, there
may be instances where it would not be appropriate for the chair to contact Monitor, or for
Monitor to contact the chair (for example, in relation to the appointment of the chair). In such
situations, we advise that the lead governor should communicate with Monitor. The role of
lead governor is set out in The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance.

Licence

The NHS provider licence contains obligations for providers of NHS services that will allow
Monitor to fulfil its new duties in relation to: setting prices for NHS-funded care in
partnership with NHS England; enabling integrated care; preventing anti-competitive
behaviour which is against the interests of patients; supporting commissioners in
maintaining service cantinuity; and enabling Monitor to continue to oversee the way that
NHS foundation trusts are governed. It replaces the Terms of Authorisation.

Local Involvement Networks {LINks) and local Healthwatch

Local Healthwatch was established in April 2013 under the terms of the 2012 Act. Local
Healthwatch continues the functions of Local Involvement Networks (LINks) and has
additional powers. It builds on the good practice of LINks establishing relationships with
loca! authorities, CCGs, patient representative groups, the local voluntary and community
sector and service providers to ensure it is inclusive and truly representative of the
community it serves.

L ocal Healthwatch bodies: have the power to enter and view services; influence how
services are set up and commissioned by having a seat on the local health and wellbeing
board: produce reports which influence the way services are designed and delivered;
provide information, advice and support about local services; and pass information and
recommendations to Healthwatch England and the CQC.

73



Page 114 Annex 4b

Members

As part of the application process to become an NHS foundation trust, NHS frusts are
required to set out detailed proposals for the minimum size and composition of their
membership. Anyone who lives in the area, works for the trust, or has been a patient or
service user there, can become a member of an NHS foundation trust, subject to the
provisions of the trust's constitution.

Members can: receive information about the NHS foundation trust and be consuited on
plans for future development of the trust and its services; elect representatives to serve on
the council of governors; and stand for election to the council of governors.

Monitor
Monitor is the sector regulator of health care services in England.

Monitor relationship manager

Once licensed, each NHS foundation trust is assigned a Manitor relationship manager
(details can be found in our foundation trust directory). The relationship manager ensures
that where an NHS foundation trust is found to be in breach of its licence, the trust's board
takes the appropriate remedial action.

National Institute for Health and Care Excellence {(NICE)
NICE provides national guidance and advice to improve health and social care.

NHS England

The NHS Commissioning Board, referred to as NHS England, was established as a
statutory body from QOctober 2012. From April 2013, it has taken on many of the functions of
the former PCTs with regard to the commissioning of primary care health services, as well
as some nationally based functions previously undertaken by the Department of Health.

NHS foundation trusts

NHS foundation trusts are public benefit corporations authorised under the 2006 Act to
provide goods and services for the purposes of the health service in England. They are part
of the NHS and provide over half of all NHS hospital, mental health and ambulance
services. NHS foundation trusts were created to devolve decision making from central
government to local organisations and communities. They are different from NHS trusts as
they: have greater freedom to decide, with their governors and members, their own strategy
and the way services are run; can retain their surpluses and borrow to invest in new and
improved services for patients and service users; and are accountable to, among others,
their local communities through their members and governors.

NHS trusts
NHS trusts provide health and/or social care services within the NHS. They are legally
cbliged to financially break-even.

NHS Trust Development Authority (NHS TDA)

The NHS TDA brings together a number of functions previously carried out by the
Department of Health, Strategic Health Authority clusters and the Appointments
Commission. In particular, these include: performance management of NHS trusts;
management of the NHS foundation trust pipeline; assurance of clinical quality, governance

74



Page 115 Annex 4b

and risk in NHS trusts; and appointments to NHS trusts, for example, of chairs and non-
executive members and trustees for NHS Charities where the Secretary of State has a
power to appoint.

Non-executive director
Generally independent appointees, who work with the executive directors overseeing the
business of the NHS foundation trust.

Operational management

Operational management concerns the day-to-day organisation and coordination of services
and resources; liaison with clinical and non-clinical staff; dealing with the public and
managing complaints; anticipating and resolving service delivery issues; and planning and
implementing change.

Primary care
Primary care covers the health services provided by GPs, community dentists, opticians,
pharmacists, community nurses and aftied health care professionais.

Risk Assessment Framework

Monitor intends that the Risk Assessment Framework will replace the Compliance
Framework during 2013/14 in the areas of our financial oversight of providers of key NHS
services — not just NHS foundation trusts — and the governance of NHS foundation trusts.
Monitor has consulied on the draft Risk Assessment Framework; the consultation closed in
Aprit 2013,

Secondary care

NHS trusts and NHS foundation trusts are the organisations responsible for running
hospitals and providing secondary care. Patients must first be referred into secondary care
by a primary care provider, such as a GP.

Senior independent director {SID)

One of the non-executive directors should be appointed as the SID by the board of
directors, in consultation with the council of governors. The SID should act as the point of
contact with the board of directors if governors have concerns which approaches through
normal channels have failed to resolve or for which such normal approaches are
inappropriate. The SID may also act as the point of contact with the board of directors for
governors when they discuss, for example, the chair's performance appraisal and his or her
remuneration and other allowances. More detail can be found in the Code of Governance.

Service userls
People who need health and social care for mental health problems. They may live in their
own home, stay in care, or be cared for in hospital.

Strategic management
Strategic management involves setting objectives for the organisation and managing
people, resource and budgets towards reaching these goals.

Statutory requirement
A requirement prescribed by legislation.
75



Page 116 Annex 4b

Terms of authorisation

Previously, when an NHS foundation trust was authorised, Monitor set out a number of
terms with which the trust had to comply. The terms of authorisation have now been
replaced by the NHS provider licence, and NHS foundation trusts must comply with the
conditions of the licence.

Vote of no confidence

A motion put before the board which, if passed, weakens the position of the individual
concerned.

76



Page 117 Annex 4b

/‘
Monitor, Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road,
London, SE1 8UG

Telephone: 020 3747 0000
Email: enquiries@monitor.gov.uk
Website: www.monitor.gov.uk

© Monitor (August 2013)

Publication code: IRG/22/13

This publication can be made available in a number of
other formats on request. Application for reproduction of
any material in this publication should be made in writing
1 to enquiries @monitor.gov.uk or to the address above.

S




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1
ge 119 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A; Members' Code of Conduct

Section 5A - Members’ Code of Conduct

Part 1:

General Provisions

Introduction

1. (1)

(2)

This Code sets out the standards of behaviour required of you
whenever you are acting as a Councillor of the City of York
Council. This Code alsc applies to any person appointed as a co-
opted member of the City Council or any of its Committees when

acting as such.

The Code has been adopted by the City Council and is based on
the principles of seiflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability,
openness, honesty and leadership.

Definitions

2. (1)

(2)

3)

(4)

In this Code:

You are acting as a Councillor or acting as a co-opted Member
only when conducting the business of the Council or acting,
claiming to act or giving the impression that you are acting as a
representative of the Council.

A “co-opted member”, is a person who is not an elected member
of the authority but who —

(a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the
authority, or

(b)Y  is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint
committee or joint sub-committee of the authority and is
entitled to vote at any meeting of that committee or sub-
committee

“meeting” means a meeting of the Council or of any committee,
sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the
authority or of the Executive or any committee of the Executive.

A "sensitive interest” is one where you consider that disclosure of
the details an interest could lead to you, or a person connected

Members’ Code of Conduct Section 5A: Page 1

March 2016



Page 120 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A: Members' Code of Conduct

with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the
Monitoring Officer agrees.

General Duties as to Conduct

3. (1) You must treat others with respect.

(2) You must not do anything which may cause the Council to
breach any equality enactment.

(3} You must not bully or intimidate any person, or attempt to bully or
intimidate them.

(4) You must not do anything which compromises the impartiality of
anyone who works for or on behalf of the Authority, or do
anything that is likely to compromise their impartiality.

(5) You must not disclose information which is confidential, unless:

(a) You have the permission of a person authorised to give it;
or

(b}  You are required by law to disclose the information; or

(c) You disclose it to a third party for the purpose of obtaining
professional advice, provided that the third party agrees
not o disclose the information to any other person; or

() The disclosure is reasonable; and is in the public interest;
and is made in good faith.

() You must not prevent another person gaining access to
information which that person is entitled by law.

(7) You must not conduct yourself in a manner which coutd
reasonably be regarded as bringing the Council into disrepute, or
your position as a Councillor into disrepute.

(8) You must not use your position as a Councillor improperly to
obtain any advantage or disadvantage for yourself or any other
person, or attempt to do so.

Members’ Code of Conduct Section 5A. Page 2
March 2016



Page 1
ge 121 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A:; Members’ Code of Conduct

(9) When you use or authorise the use by others of the resources of
the Council you must:

(@)  abide by the Council's reasonable requirements; and

(b)  ensure that such resources are not used improperly for
political purposes (including party political purposes); and

(c) have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of
Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.

(10) You must have regard to relevant advice given by the Council’'s
Chief Financial Officer or Monitoring Officer when making
decisions and must give reasons for those decisions, in
accordance with any requirements imposed by statute or the
Coungil.

Part 2: Interests
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Registration of disclosable pecuniary interests

4. (1) Within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, you
must notify the Monitoring Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary
interests’. These will be included in the register of interests which
is published on the Council’'s website

Definition of disclosable pecuniary interests

(2) A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest' is an interest of a kind
described in the first schedule to this Code. An interest is
disclosable if the interest is of yours or of your partner. Your
partner means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you
are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are
living as if you are civil partners.

Members’' Code of Conduct Section 5A: Page 3
March 2016



Page 122 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A: Members' Code of Conduct

Non participation at meetings in case of disclosable pecuniary
interest

(3) Ifyou are present at a meeting and you have a disclosable
pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being
considered at the meeting,

(@)  You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at
the meeting.

(b)  You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at
the meeting.

(©) If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the
interest to the meeting.

(d) If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a
pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer
of the interest within 28 days.

Note: In addition, Standing Orders require you to leave the room
where the meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes
place.

Non participation in individual executive decision making in case of
disclosable pecuniary interest

(4) Where an Executive Member may discharge a function alone
and becomes aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest in a
matter being dealt with or to be dealt with by her/him, the
Executive Member must notify the Monitering Officer of the
interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the
matter.

Notification of Interests

5. (1) In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests you must, notify
the Monitoring Officer of any interests you have of a kind
described in the second schedule. You must make that
notification within 28 days of this Code coming into effect or of
you becoming a Member or co-opted Member if that is later.

Members’ Code of Conduct Section 5A: Page 4
March 2018



Page 12
g 3 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A; Members' Code of Conduct

(2) You must notify the Monitoring Officer of any changes fo these
interests or of any new interests within 28 days of becoming
aware of them.

Disclosure of Interests

6. (1) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority
where it relates to or is likely to affect you, a body named in the
second schedule or any person with whom you have a close
association.

(2) If you are present at a meeting and you have a personal interest
in any matter to be considered or being considered at the
meeting:

(a) I the interest is not registered, you must disclose the
interest to the meeting.

(b)  If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a
pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer
of the interest within 28 days.

(3) If you have a personal interest and a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard it as so
significant that it would be likely to prejudice your judgement of
the public interest then you have a prejudicial interest. This is
subject to the exceptions set out in paragraph 6.4.

(4) You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the
authority where that business:

(a)  does not affect your financial position or the financial
position of a person or body named in the second
schedule;

(b)  does not relate to the determining of any approval,
consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to
you or any person or body described in the second
schedule; or

(€) relates to the functions of your authority in respect of;

Members’ Code of Conduct Section 5A: Page §
March 2016



Page 124 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A: Members’ Code of Conduct

(iD)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

Sensitive Interests

housing, where you are a tenant of your authority
provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease,

school meais or school transport and travelling
expenses, where you are a parent or guardian of a
child in full time education, or are a parent governor
of a school, uniess it relates particularly to the
school which the child attends:

statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social
Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where
you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of,
such pay;,

an allowance, payment or indemnity given to
members;

any ceremonial honour given to members; and

setting council tax or a precept under the Local
Government Finance Act 1982.

7. (1) Hyou have a sensitive interest which is entered on the register,
copies of the register that are made available for inspection and
any published version of the register will exciude details of the
interest, but may state that you have an interest, the details of
which are withheld.

(2) If you are required to declare a sensitive interest at a meeting
you need only declare the fact of the interest and not the details

of the interest itself.

Compliance with Standing Orders

8. (1) Standing Orders may require you to leave the meeting room
when you have a personal interest. You must comply with any
such Standing Order.

Members’ Code of Conduct Section 5A: Page 6

March 2016



Page 12
g 0 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protocols
5A: Members' Code of Cenduct

First Schedule — Interests which are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Interest Description

Employment, office, trade, Any employment, office, trade,

profession or vacation profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other

financial benefit (other than from the
relevant authority) made or provided
within the relevant period in respect of
any expenses incurred by you in
carrying out duties as a member, or
towards your election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between
the relevant person (or a body in which
the relevant person has a beneficial
interest) and the relevant authority—

(a) under which goods or services are
to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others)
to occupy land in the area of the
relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your
knowledge)—

(a) the tandlord is the relevant authority;
and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the

Members’' Code of Conduct Section 5A; Page 7
March 2016



Page 126 Annex 5

Section 5: Codes and Protacols
5A: Members’' Code of Conduct

relevant person has a beneficial
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a
body where—

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a
ptace of business or land in the area
of the relevant authority; and

(b) either—

i. the total nominal value of the
securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body; or

il. if the share capital of that body is
of more than one class, the fotal
nominal value of the shares of any
one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that
class.

These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions;
“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011;

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a
firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of
which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest;

“director” includes a member of the commiitee of management of an
industrial and provident society;

“land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land
which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or
jointly with another) to occupy the land or o receive income;

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on
which you give a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) of the Act;

Members’ Code of Conduct Section 5A: Page 8
March 2016



Page 127 Annex 5

Section 5; Codes and Protocols
5A: Members’ Code of Conduct

‘relevant person” means you or any your partner as defined in
paragraph 4.2

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock,
bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000() and other securities of any
description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Second Schedule —~ Other Interests

1. Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general
control or management and o which you are appointed or nominated
by your authority;

2. Anybody —
(a) exercising functions of a public nature;
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or

(c) one of whose principal purposes inciudes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union}, of
which you are a member or in a position of general control or
management;

3.  Any person from whom you have received the offer of a gift or
hospitality with an estimated value of more than £50 (whether or not
you accept the offer) which is attributable to your position as an
elected or co-opted member of the Council.

Members’ Code of Conduct Section SA; Page 9
March 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129
Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

Section 5E — Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning
Process

1 Summary

1.1 One of the key purposes of the planning system is to
balance private interests in the development and use of land
against the wider public interest. Planning necessarily affects
land and property interests and as such is often highly
contentious. It is important therefore that planning decisions are
made openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for
justifiable reasons. The aim of this Code of Good Practice is to
promote public confidence in the planning decision making
process.

1.2 i Members do not abide by this Code of Good Practice, they
may put:

» the Council at risk of proceedings on the legality or
maladministration of the related decision; and
e themselves at risk of being the subject of a standards

complaint
1.3 Full Council approved this Planning Code of Good Practice
on 10 October 2013.
2 When does this Code apply?
2.1 This Code of Good Practice applies to Members at alt times

when they are involved in the planning process. This includes
both Planning Committee meetings, any meetings of the full
Council when exercising the functions of the Planning Authority,
and less formal occasions, such as meetings with officers or the
public and consultative meetings. it applies to planning
enforcement matters or site specific policy issues as weli as to
planning applications. Although much of the Code applies only
to members (including substitute members) of the Planning
Committees, some aspects affect any Member who becomes
involved with a planning matter.

5E- Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E: Page 1



Page 130 Annex 6

Section 5
5E:; Code of Good Practice for Councillors invalved in the Planning Process

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

3.2

This Code of Practice supplements the Council’s Code of
Conduct for Members, and gives detailed advice on dealing with
planning issues.

If Members have any doubts about the application of this Code

to their own circumstances they should seek advice early, from the
Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer, and preferably weli
before any meeting takes place.

Advice to Members:
Do apply the rules in the Members’ Code of Conduct first.

Do then apply the rules in this Planning Code of Good Practice,
which seek to explain and supplement the Members’ Code of
Conduct for the purposes of planning control.

Do seek early advice if in doubt

Dealing with Interests under the Members’ Code

Members must always declare personal, prejudicial and
disclosable pecuniary interests in accordance with the Members’
Code of Conduct. All Members must follow these rules not just
members of the Planning Commitiees.

A personal interest arises where the business affects the Member,
somebody with whom the Member has a close association, one of the
outside bodies referred fo in the second schedule of the Code of
Conduct or someone from whom the Member has received a gift or
hospitality valued at £50 or more. Members must declare these
interests unless they appear on their register of interests.

A prejudicial interest arises where a Member's personal interest is
so significant that it would be likely to prejudice their judgement of the
public interest. Members should not participate in the debate or vote
where they have such an interest and, if the interest arises in a
decision making meeting, they should [eave the room. Simply being a
member of an outside body will not automatically amount to a
prejudicial interest but Members need to think about whether their

5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

March 2016

Section 5E: Page 2



Page 131
Annex 6

Section §
5E: Code of Good Practice for Counciliors involved in the Planning Process

involvement is more significant than that and consider taking specific
advice.

34 A disclosable pecuniary interest arises where the business relates to
one of the interests prescribed by law and referred to in the first
schedule of the Code of Conduct. It is a criminal offence to participate
in a Council meeting if Members have such an interest and have not
been granted a dispensation.

Advice to Members:

Do disclose the existence and nature of your interest at any
relevant meeting, including informal meetings or discussions with
Officers and other Members. Disclose your interest at the
commencement of discussion on that particular matter.

Where your interest is a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary
interest and you have not obtained a dispensation:-

Don’t participate, or give the appearance of trying to participate,
in the making of any decision on the matter by the Pianning
Authority.

Don't get involved in the processing of the application™.
Don’t use your position to discuss the proposal with Officers or

Members when other members of the public would not have the
same opportunity to do so

=A Councillor who has a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest
in a matter is permitted o seek to persuade Planning Officers of the
merit of the application in the same way as a member of the public
but should be careful to avoid creating an impression of placing
pressure on an officer for a particular recommendation. See also
paragraph 3.3 for advice on speaking at meetings in these
circumstances.

5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E: Page 3



Page 132 Annex 6

Section 5
5E; Code of Gooed Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Keeping an open mind

Members of a Planning Committee must not make up their minds
before they have all relevant material and arguments before them at
a Planning Commitiee meeting. The use of a political whip is not
permitted for decisions on planning applications.

Members of a Committee are entitled to feel predisposed towards a
particular decision, but must stilt be able to consider and weigh
relevant factors before reaching the final decision. Pre-determination
arises when Members’ minds are closed (or reasonably perceived to
be closed) to the consideration and weighing of the relevant factors.
That risks making the whole decision vulnerable to legal challenge. It
also risks a public perception being created of unfairness in the
planning process.

The Localism Act 2011 has built on clarification of the law provided by
the Courts in a number of cases and Members can take some
comfort that they are entitled to express views on planning matters
prior to a decision being made without being challenged on grounds
of predetermination. Nevertheless it remains the case that Members
must not have closed their mind to possible alternative decisions and
must be prepared to consider representations made and the advice of
officers and listen to the debate before reaching a final view.

Advice to Members:

Don’t make up your mind, or appear to have made up your mind,
on how you will vote on any planning matter until you have heard
the officer’'s presentation and all the evidence and arguments at
the Planning Committee when the matter will be considered.

A member of a Planning Committee who is also a Parish Councillor
may already have been consulted on a planning application at a
Parish Council meeting. It is permissible to express a view at a Parish
Council meeting on a matter and still participate at a Planning
Committee so long as a Member has not closed their mind to
reaching a different view. It is good practice in these cases for the
Member to:

5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors invelved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E: Page 4



Page 1
g 33 Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Counciliors involved in the Planning Process

45

4.6

5.1

5.2

° make it clear during the discussion at the consultee body that
their views are expressed on the limited information before
them only; and

° reserve judgement and the independence to make up their own
mind when it comes before the Planning Committee and to
hear all of the relevant information; and

s not in any way commit themselves as to how they or others
may vote when the proposal comes before the Planning
Committee; and

o disclose the personal interest regarding their membership of the
Parish Council when the Planning Committee comes {0
consider the proposal

if a Member has already made up their mind they must not speak or
vote on the business but they are not legally required to withdraw
from the meeting (unless they also have a prejudicial or disclosable
pecuniary interest). However, they may prefer to do so for the sake
of appearances. If they decide to stay in the meeting they should
explain that they do not intend to speak and vote because they have
(or could reasonably be perceived as having) judged the matter
elsewhere, so that this may be recorded in the minutes.

Executive Members may have been involved in promoting a particuiar
development in their role as Executive Members for the Service. If an
Executive Member also sits on Planning Committee it may be difficult
for him or her to demonstrate ohjectivity in dealing with an application
relating to that development. In those cases the best course of action
would be for the Executive Member to withdraw from the debate and

vote.
Contact with Applicants, Developers and Objectors

Members of a Planning Committee should discourage applicants or
agents from approaching them in any way, should minimise social
contacts with known developers and agents and should refrain
altogether from such contacts when developments are contemplated
or a planning application has been received.

All Members should refrain from involving themselves in discussions
with developers or potential applicants at the pre-application stage of

BE- Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E: Page 5



Page 134 Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

proposals unless such discussions are part of structured and
recorded arrangements with Officers.

5.3. If an approach is received from an applicant/agent in relation to a
particutar planning application or a matter that may give rise {o a
planning application, the Member should:

o Refer the applicant or agent to the relevant officers of the
Council, and notify officers of the approach.

+ Avoid giving any commitment or impression of a commitment or
that they hold any particular view about the development or the
future of the site in question.

o Confine themselves to providing information on the Council's
general planning policies or procedures only, where the
Member is fully aware of these.

o If they do express an opinion they should make it clear that they
will only be in a position to take a final decision after having
heard all the relevant evidence and arguments at committee.

5.4 When any Member speaks at a meeting of the Committee on the
subject of a particular planning application, they should disclose the
fact that they have been in contact with the applicant/agent, if this is
the case. Members are able to articulate their own views on
proposals, but should not speak on behalf of the applicant or the
agent who will have their own opportunity fo speak to Committee.

5.5 Any written information received by a Member of the relevant
Committee from the applicant or agent, objectors or any other third
party, should be passed or copied immediately to the relevant
Planning Officer and declared at the start of the consideration of the
particular application.

Advice to Members:

Do seek t0 minimise social contacts with known developers
particularly when the developer is known to be contemplating
development in the City

Do refer an applicant, developer or objector who approaches you
about a planning application to Officers, if they need planning,
procedural or technical advice.

5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the FPlanning Process
March 2016 Section 5E: Page &



Page 135
Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Contact with neighbours, objectors, supporters, third parties
or fellow Councillors

In order for the planning system to work effectively public concerns
must be adequately aired. It is an important part of a Member's role to
listen to residents’ views and put these views forward within the
Council. However, it is important that Members of the Planning
Committees make decisions based on the full facts having
considered all representations made and all other relevant
considerations. Members will usually need a report from officers to
help them to do this.

Members of a Planning Committee should be wary of giving the
impression that they have made up their mind about a particular
matter. Discretion is always advisable. A good approach is to say
something like: “From what | know at the moment I support (or have
reservations about) this application, but | won’t make a final decision
until | have all the facts before me at Planning Committee”.

All Members should advise anyone lobbying them that the
Committee can only effectively consider representations if they are
made in writing to the Assistant Director (Planning and Sustainable
Development). Members can also advise objectors of the rights they
have for speaking at meetings. If there are technical issues or
alternatives to be considered, then Members should either ask the
applicant/objector to raise these matters with officers or ask officers
to consider such matters when reporting to Committee.

No Member should accept gifts or hospitality of any value from
anyone who is lobbying them. Members should inform the Monitoring
Officer if they feel they have been exposed to undue or excessive
lobbying or approaches (including inappropriate offers of gifts or
hospitality).

No Member should take part in negotiations with applicants or
potential applicants regarding their proposals for development except
where such negotiations are part of a structured arrangement with
officers.

5E- Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process
March 2018 Section 5E: Page 7



Page 136 Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

Advice to Members:

if you are lobbied

Do explain that you are not in position to express a firm intention to
vote one way or the other

Do explain how representations can be made formally

Don’t accept any gifts or hospitality

Lobbying by Members

Members are quite entitled to join general interest groups which may
have an interest in planning matters such as the Civic Society or the
Victorian Society. If Members are present at a Committee meeting
where a group to which they belong has adopted a view on a
particular matter then they need to declare a personal interest when
the matter is discussed.

There may be circumstances where a pofitical group has a policy
commitment to a particular development. It may have been contained
within the party’s manifesto. This alone does not prevent a Member
participating in decision making so long as they have not closed their
mind to considering the planning arguments.

if a Councillor, whether or not a member of the Planning Committee,
speaks on behalf of a lobby group at a Commitiee meeting they
should withdraw from the meeting after the public speaking session.

Site Visits

Site visits can play an important role in ensuring that Members make
decisions on a sound understanding of the relevant issues. However
care must be taken to ensure that site visits are not misused as a
lobbying device to help ensure a particular outcome in respect of
controversial applications or to defer consideration of an application
to a subseqguent meeting. Site visits should only be requested where
there is a clear and substantial benefit in having one.

Members will have the opportunity to ask questions of officers, the
applicant and objectors at the site visit but they should avoid
expressing opinions at this stage.

5E: Code of Good Praciice for Counciliors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E; Page 8




Pa
ge 137 Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

In addition it is important for officers and Members to hear all the
discussion and visit all parts of the site as a single group so as to
ensure that any information which they gained from the site visit can
be reported back to the Commitiee, and that all Members have the
same information.

While visiting sites Members must not accept any form of gift,
hospitality or refreshment.

Members of a Planning Committee should not normally accept
invitations to visit a site unless this is in the company of a planning
officer. This does not prevent Members from going alone to view a
site from public land.

Councillors have no rights to enter on private land. A Councillor
might be invited to enter the site by the owner. it is not good practice
for a member of a Planning Committee {o do so as this can lead fo a
perception that the Councillor is no longer impartial. if a Member feels
that they need an explanation of the proposal then they should
request a formal site visit by contacting the Case Officer at least 10
days before the Committee meeting.

Advice to Members:
Don’t request a site visit unless you feel it is strictly necessary

Do ensure that you treat the site visit only as an opportunity to seek
information and to abserve the site.

Do ask the Officers at the site visit questions or seek clarification from
them on factual matters which are relevant to the site inspection.

Don’t express opinions or views on the proposal to anyone.

Don’t enter a site which is subject to a planning application unless
you can comply with the good practice rules in this Code

5E- Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process
Warch 2016 Section 5E: Page 8




Page 138 Annex 6

Section b
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

9.1

9.2

9.3

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

Presentations to Members

It may be that on larger, more complex, or design sensitive
applications, it would be appropriate for a prior presentation o be
made to the relevant Commiitee.

If so, such presentations will not be held less than two weeks in
advance of the meeting. This is to allow Members due time for
reflection on the proposal, and to allow any guestions and issues to
be followed up by officers and covered in the agenda report to
Members at the subsequent Commitiee.

The role of Members at such presentations is to listen fo the
preseniation, and to raise questions on the details presented. lt is
important that Members do not promote or oppose the application at
this stage, since not all the relevant information may be before them.

Decision Making

The Councit's Constitution specifies that certain applications must be
brought before the Committee and others may be determined by
officers. Members, including those who are not on the Committee,
can request that a particular application should be brought to
Committee rather than being determined by officers under delegated
powers.

Members should ensure that they only request that an application be
brought to Committee in accordance with Constitutional
requirements, and for proper planning reasons which are reported to
the Committee.

In making decisions on planning applications, the law requires the
application to be determined in accordance with the development
plan and the requirement to comply with national planning guidance
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Adequate reasons
must be given for any decision. It is particularly important to ensure
that these are fully articulated and recorded where a decision is made
contrary to an officer recommendation or contrary to established
policy. Where a decision is made contrary to policy it is Members’
responsibility to explain their reasons in full. Pressure should never
be put on officers to “go away and sort out the planning reasons”.

5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

March 2016

Section 5E: Page 10



Page 139
9 Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Counciliors involved in the Planning Process

10.4 Members must come to a decision after proper consideration of all
the information reasonably required. Members should not participate
in a vote if they have not been present for the full presentation and
debate. Members should not attempt to answer e-mail, monitor or
contribute to social media discussions or engage in any other activity
which may distract them from giving the proceedings their full
attention.

10.5 Members should ensure that they have had sufficient time to digest
any new material which has been presented. Members may need fo
ask for an adjournment to do so. Occasionally it may be necessary to
defer an item to allow for proper consideration or for additional
information to be obtained.

10.6 Messages should not be passed to individual committee members
either from other Members or members of the public. This could
create an impression that a Member is being improperly influenced.

Advice to Nlembers:

Do come to meetings with an open mind and demonstrate that
you are open-minded.

Do make decisions in accordance with the Development

Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise

Do come to your decision only after due consideration of all of the
information reasonably required.

Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting
a decision that you clearly identify

the planning reasons leading to this conclusion and can identify
the supporting evidence

11 Officers

11.1 Members, whether or not they sit on a Planning Committee, must not
put improper pressure on any officer to put forward a particular
recommendation and should not do anything which compromises or
is likely to compromise his or her professional integrity and
impartiality. Doing so may be a breach of the Code of Conduct.

SE- Code of Good Practice for Counciliors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E: Page 11



Page 140 Annex 6

Section 5
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involvad in the Planning Process

11.2

12

12.1

12.2

12.3

Planning Officers must act within officer and professional codes of
conduct. The Royal Town Planning Institute requires its members to
feartessly and impartially exercise their independent professional
judgment {o the best of their skill and understanding. Accordingly
there may be occasions where officers make recommendations which
may be contrary 1o the views and wishes of Members.

Advice to Members:

Do not apply improper pressure on Officers to make a particular
recommendation
Do respect the professional obligations of planning Officers.

Members as developers or applicants

if a Member has an interest in land that may be the subject of
redesignation or other decision in the Development Plan process, or if
a Member, or someone with whom they have a close association is
making a planning application to the Council, then they should
discuss this at the earliest opportunity with the Assistant Director
(Planning and Sustainable Development). The planning application
should contain a declaration (in the form of a covering letter) of the
Member's position in relation to the planning application, so that ali
those consulted are aware of the relationship. The Assistant Director
(Planning and Sustainable Development) will oversee the
consideration of the application with the case officer, including any
discussions that may involve other Members.

Any applications by a Member will be reported to the Planning
Committee or the Planning Area Sub-Commitiee as appropriate and
will not be dealt with by an officer under delegated powers. The
Member's interest should be made clear at the Committee.

If a Member's planning application comes before the Planning
Committee they will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in relation
to the application. This must be declared and means that you may not
participate in the discussion or vote on the application. Government
guidance suggests that the prohibition on discussing the item would
prevent Members making representations to the Committee as an

5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E; Page 12



Page 141 Annex 6

Section &
5E: Code of Good Practice for Councillors involved in the Planning Process

ordinary member of the public. While some lawyers have gquestioned
this guidance there is a degree of uncertainty and the safest option
would be for the Member to either seek a dispensation allowing them
to make representations or ask someone else {o make those
representations on their behalf.

13 Enforcement cases

13.1 Planning enforcement is particularly sensitive since it can uftimately
result in Court proceedings. All Members are encouraged to report
breaches of planning control to officers or to support their
constituents in doing so. They may seek updates on progress which
is being made to resolve matters but should avoid playing too pro-
active a role such as by involving themselves in meetings between
enforcement officers and developers.

14 Member Training

14.1 in order to ensure that Members are fully aware of the requirements
placed on them when sitting on Planning Committees it is the policy
of the Council to require Members to attend prescribed training before
sitting as a Member or Substitute Member.

5E: Code of Good Practice for Counciltors involved in the Planning Process
March 2016 Section 5E; Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 7

COUNCIL AND
DEMOCRACY

Calendar

What's new
Search

Meetings
Petitions
Decisions
Officer Decisions
Pubtic Participation
Forward Plans
Councillors
Committees
Parish councils
Qutside bodies
MPe

YOU ARE HERE: Home ! Your Councillors > Councillor John Galvin > Register of interests

Register of interests

Councillor John Galvin

» This register of interests was published on Monday, 25th April, 2016, 11.30 am.

« Moreg information about this councillor

* Printer friendly view

Register of Interests of Councillor Councillor John Galvin of the Uity of York Councit

Disclosable Pecuniary interests - Employment, Office, Trade, Profession or Vocation

1. You shoutld disclose any employment, office, irade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain, including the name of any person or bady who employs or has appointed you

Name of employer / body etc Position

None -

¢ T abed



Annex 7

MPs

MEPs

Information Reports
Library

Subscribe to updates
Work todo

Logon

2. And of your spouse/civil partner {or person with whom you are living as such) of which you
are aware

Name of body / employer etc Position

None -

Sponsorship

3. You should declare any payment or provision of any financial benefit {other than from the
Council} made or provided within the last 12 months inrespect of expenses incurred by you in
carrying out your duties as a member, or towards your election expenses

Payment or Provision

Nane

Securitios

4.You should detaill and beneficial interest in securities of a body which has to your knowledge
a place of business or land in the Council's area and either the total nominal value of the
securities exceeds £25,000 or ane hundredth of the {otal issued share capital, or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of any class of shares issued

MName of securities / body

MNone

v T abed



Annex 7

5. And of your spouse/civil partner {or person with whom you are living as such} of which you are ~
aware

Name of securities / body
None

Contracts

6. You should detail any current undischarged contract made between you, or a body in which you
have a beneficial interest, and the Council under which goods or services are to be provided or

works are to be executed

Description of contract
None

7. And of your spouse/civit partner {or person with whom you are living as such) of which you are
aware

Description of contract
None

Land, Licenses and Corporate Tenancies

8. Land - You should detail any beneficial interest in land within the Council's area {excluding any
easement, or right in or over land which does not carry the right to occupy or receive income).

Description of land
3 Bridge Road, Bishopthorpe, York YO23 2RR

_ FEEDBACK

G T abed



Annex 7

9, And of your spouse/civil partner {or person with whom you are living as such) of which you
are aware

Description of Land
8 Bridge Road, Bishopthorpe, York YO23 2RR

10. Licences - You should detail any licence {alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the
Council's area for a month or longer,

Description of Licences

None
11. And of your spouse/civil partner {or person with whom you are living as such]) of which you
are aware

Description of Licences

None
12. Corporate Tenancies - You should detail any tenancy where to your knowledge, the Council
is the landlord and the tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

Description of Corporate Tenancies

None

o1 T abed



Annex 7

13, And of your spouse/civil partner {or person with whom you are living as such) of which you A
are aware

Description of Corporate Tenancies

NMone
Other Interesis

Membership of other bodies

14. You should detail any body of which you are in a position of general control or management
and to which you have been appointed or nominated by the Council

Name of body
Alnsty International Drainage Board - Council Rep
Local Government Association General Assembly - Councit Rep (sub)

Terry's Community Forum - Council Rep
Quality Bus Partnership - Council Rep {Sub)

15. And any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature;

Name of body
Governor of York District Hospital Trust - appeinted by City of York Councll

/T abed



i'\_é,? Register of interests for Co., = SafeCom J_ T

2} CA\Users\cycawVippDatail ccalMicrosoft\Windews\Fernporary It 2 & ]

¢ 2'PCOL- Possession Claim .. 1 Dogex 7 Eqress Switch Authentica.. 23FAQ VI Bl vt @m v Pagev Safetyv Yook~ @v
16. Any body (b) directed to charitable purposes; ~
Name of body

Trustee of The Old School Bishopthorpe
Trustee of Duncombe Place Masonic Hall Charitable Trust
Member of the York Archeclogical Trust

Member of The York Archeological Trust Chief Executives Advisory Board
Member of The Civic Trust
Member of the Yorkshire Architectural and York Archeological Society

17. Any body {c} one of whaose principal purposes includes the influence of pubilic opinion or
policy {including any political party or trade union}

Name of body
The Conservative Party

Disclosure of Gifts & Hospitality

81T abed



Annex 7

18. You must reveal the name of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality
with an estimated value of at least £50 which you have received in your capacity as amember

of the Counci.

Date of Receipt of Gift/Hospitality Name of Donor, & Reason and Nature of Gift
etc

August 2010 Ebor Race meeting - £70

4 July 2011 Anglo-German Society - lnvited to speak at

event in Munster - £300 estimated cost of
travel/accommodation

61T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151
Annex 8

Complaint

Report to the Deputy Monitoring Officer, City of York Council, of an
investigation carried out following a request by the Council’s Deputy
Monitoring Officer into a complaint against Councillor J Galvin of City of York
Council.

From Christine Bainton, appointed as Investigating Officer, for this complaint
by Glen McCusker, Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy Head of Legal
Services, City of York Council.

The Complaint referred for Investigation

1. Complaints were received from three people, Mrs Rosy Dickinson, Mr Michael
Askew and Mr Andrew Dickinson.

2. The complaints can be summarised as follows:

(@)  Atthe Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 7™ April 2016, Councillor
Galvin, being both a Governor of York Hospital and a Member of the
Council, had a conflict of interest in Agenda items 3 (a) and (b) and
should not have taken part in the meeting.

(b)  That Councillor Galvin acted with bias at the meeting.

(c)  Atthe meeting Councillor Galvin failed to treat those present with
respect, and bullied and intimidated them.

(d) At the site visit on 9" March, Councillor Galvin failed to treat members
of the public who were present with respect, bullied, swore, and
intimidated them.

Relevant Provisions of the Code of Conduct

3. The Council’s code of conduct says
“(1)  You must treat others with respect.

(2)  You must not bully or intimidate any person, or attempt to bully or
intimidate them.

(3)  You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be
regarded as bringing the Council into disrepute, or your position as a

Councillor into disrepute.
Disclosure of Interests

6(3) If you have a personal interest and a member of the public with knowledge of
the relevant facts would reasonably regard it as so significant that it would

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 1



Page 152

Annex 8

likely prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you have a
prejudicial interest. This is subject to the exceptions set out in paragraph 6.4

6(4) You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority where
that business:

(@) does not affect your financial position or the financial position of a
person or body named in the second schedule:

(b)  does not relate to the determination of any approval, consent, licence,
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body
described in the second schedule;

Second Schedule — Other Interests

1. Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority

2. Any body —
(@) exercising functions of a public nature:
(b) directed to charitable purposes; ”

4, The treatment of prejudicial interests is covered in Section 5E of the Code of
Good Practice for Councillors in the Planning Process (Annex 6). The
relevant paragraph states:

‘3.2 ...Members should not participate in the debate or vote where they have
such an interest and, if the interest arises in a decision making meeting, they
should leave the room. Simply being a member of an outside body will not
automatically amount to a prejudicial interest but Members need to think about
whether their involvement is more significant than that and consider taking
specific advice.”

5. Before the meeting Councillor Galvin took advice from the Monitoring Officer
and was advised that his interest was personal, but not prejudicial, and was
therefore entitled to take part in the debate and vote. At the meeting he
declared a personal interest as can be seen from the minutes of the meeting
(Annex 7).

6. The meeting was recorded and members of the Sub-Committee can view the
recording if it is of assistance.

The Investigation

7. In forming my views | interviewed the following people:

The Complainants

0] Mr A Dickinson

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 2



Page 153

Annex 8

(i) Mrs R Dickinson
(i) Mr M Askew

The Subiject of the Complaint

Clir J Galvin

Members of the sub committee present at the site meeting or sub committee meeting

(i) Clir H Shepherd
(i)  ClIr J Looker

Members of the public present at the site meeting and/or the planning Sub
committee meeting

(i)  Mr A McArthur
(i)  Reverend Alistair Rycroft
(i) Liz Henley

An Officer present at the site meeting/planning sub committee meeting

Mr N Massey — A telephone conversation

Documents which were considered

o The Code of Good Practice for Councillors in the planning process.

o | also consulted the Council’s web site, viewed the video of the planning sub-
committee meeting of the 7" April and consulted the ‘Public Participation’
page.

o York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust document “Governors’ Code of
Conduct”.

o York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust “The Role of Governor”.

o Copy of an email sent to Neil Massey from Andrew Dickinson 26/01/16
o A copy of Neil Masseys email response on 29/01/16
o A copy of Neil Masseys email response on 18/01/16.

Establishing the facts

Evidence Agreed:
o That there was a site meeting on 9" March 2016.

o That Members of the public were present at the site visit on 9" March

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 3



Page 154
Annex 8

That ClIr Galvin made an aside remark during the site visit
That there was a planning sub-committee meeting on 7th April
That ClIr Galvin declared a personal conflict of interest.

That ClIr Galvin is Chair of the planning sub- committee.

That Members of the public attended and presented their views at the
planning sub- committee on 7" April

That Councillor Galvin declared an interest in Agenda items 3a) and 3b).
That it was a very wet day on 9" March.

That Councillors and Officers were late arriving at the site visit.

Evidence Not Agreed:

That ClIr Galvin swore.
That Councillor Galvin was rude.

How late Councillors and officers were.

Reasoning as to whether there has been a failure to comply with the Code of

Conduct

Findings and conclusion

8.
9.

10.

11.

12.

Firstly | should like to deal with the Conflict of Interest and Bias complaints.

At the planning sub-committee meeting of 7" April “Councillor Galvin declared
a personal interest in Agenda Items 3a) and 3b) Groves Chapel, Union
Terrace as he was a Governor of York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust. The building was owned by the NHS. He clarified that as a Governor,
he was appointed by the Council and was not involved in the operational
running of any of the hospital’s business matters. He added that membership
of the Hospital’s Governing body was open to all.” ( printed minutes 7April
2016).

Councillor Galvin sought and received officer advice about his interest as a
governor of the York Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust. He was advised
that he had a personal but not a prejudicial interest.

In the Trust’s document the ‘role of the governor’ it is stressed that “governors
are not responsible for the day to day management of the Trust”

It can be seen that the Council of Governors have to approve ‘significant
transactions’ the definition of which is set by Monitor, the NHS regulator. This
definition is 25% of annual turnover but in fact the York Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust Board decided to reduce this limit to 15% which for this

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 4



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 155

Annex 8

Trust means that only for transactions of £34m would approval be sought from
the Council of Governors. As the disposal of Groves Chapel would more likely
be around £710,000 no such approval was needed. If the transaction is below
£1m approval is not even sought from the Board of Directors.

It is common knowledge that the Foundation Trust is struggling with the
budget and that it has been declaring an accounts deficit for some time. This
is in the public domain as it has been reported regularly in the local press and
on TV and radio.

Councillor Galvin was not in possession of any more facts than any other
Councillor at the planning sub-committee as he had not attended any
meetings of the Foundation Trust nor, as a governor, did he have any
involvement in the business of the Foundation Trust.

In the York Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust document “Governors’ Code
of Conduct” it states that Governors are required to “b) Act in the best
interests of the Trust at all times”. Councillor Galvin is a nominated
representative of the Local Authority, City Of York Council and would
contribute by expounding the views and interests of the Council. As an
elected Councillor appointed to the Trust by the City of York Council his
overriding responsibility is to the Council as a whole and the
electorate/residents of York. In general there would not be any conflict
between these roles but if a conflict were to arise then Councillor Galvin’s duty
would be to his role as Councillor first and the Trust Governor role second.

| am not persuaded that in the video of the planning sub-committee meeting
and in my individual interviews that it was demonstrated Councillor Galvin
showed any bias. Councillor Galvin as Chair of the meeting allowed all points
to be made by all those wishing to make them. He did not make any reference
about the way in which he might vote until such time as it was necessary.

For the moment | would like to leave aside the allegation that Councillor
Galvin swore at the site meeting on 9" March and consider the allegation that
Councillor Galvin failed to treat members of the public who were present with
respect, bullied, swore, and intimidated them at the site meeting 9" March
and/or the planning sub- committee meeting on 7" April.

It is clear from the interviews | conducted that this was a very emotive issue
for some people and that there had been a series of emails prior to the
meeting between officers and some local people, including two of the
complainants.

Any citizen or business person can register to speak at the Council’s public
meetings provided it is about

o A specific agenda item being considered at the meeting concerned
o An issue which the meeting concerned is authorised to deal with as set

out in the Council’s Delegation Scheme (see part 3, Schedule 1 of the
constitution)

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 5



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

Page 156

Annex 8

All of the residents who had registered to speak, were given a full three
minutes to speak.

There was a full debate of the pros and cons of the application at the meeting.

As Chair of a meeting it was Councillor Galvin’s responsibility to keep control
of the meeting and ensure that the meeting was conducted within the rules,
that it ran smoothly and to time. The meeting was taking a long time and there
were a number of other items on the agenda. Councillor Galvin may have
demonstrated some impatience with the length of time taken to ask some
guestions.

The Councils own ‘Public Participation’ document states that there is a
maximum of “30 minutes to listen to public speakers” and goes on to say “
Only 1 speaker can speak in favour of and only one speaker against a single
issue, unless the councillor chairing the meeting is prepared to make any
exceptions”. In this instance Councillor Galvin allowed all those who had
registered to speak to have their say.

| did not see any evidence on the video that Councillor Galvin did not respect
residents. Councillor Galvin tried to put one of the residents at ease, by
suggesting that there was “nothing to be nervous about”.

At the site meeting on 9™ March, it was alleged that Councillor Galvin swore
but there was no consensus as to what he actually said. During his interview,
he said that he made an aside comment to another Councillor. He said “This
man’s being a Pillock” in reference to the person who was driving a lorry
around Union Terrace. This is a slang term defined as meaning “stupid
person” (www.oxforddictionaries.com). It is not a swear word. It was not said
directly to a member of the public. Whilst objectors may have viewed the
presence of the lorry as demonstrating their concerns, some Councillors in
attendance at the meeting, whom | interviewed, commented that the lorry was
distracting from the business of the site visit.

Unfortunately Councillors and officers were delayed in arriving at the site.
There is no consensus as to how late they were. It was a very wet day and
residents had been standing around waiting in the rain. Residents do not
recall an adequate apology being made, but there was no consensus about
this, as others did believe an apology was made. It is normal practice for
officers and committee members to arrive together for site visits. Therefore
there was no opportunity to contact residents, who were waiting in the rain, to
explain the meeting would be delayed.

On arrival at the site Councillor Galvin said that he apologised and said that
they could have only got there quicker if they had used a helicopter. He
believes that he made this comment to diffuse a hostile situation.

Conclusions

28.

Site visits are for Councillors to look at the application’s context. Officially
members of the public can attend and make their point but there is not a

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 6


http://www.oxforddictionaries.com/

29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 157
Annex 8

presumption that members of the public can ask questions. However it is
common practice to allow members of the public to ask questions. No debate
should take place at the site meeting as it is important that Councillors are
open-minded when they enter into debate at the planning meeting.

The Council’s own document Public Participation does not deal with planning
site visits and the specific contributions that members of the public can or
cannot make at site meetings. It is not defined in the ‘planning process’
document either. On arriving at the site, Councillor Galvin stated the purpose
of the meeting and informed residents that they would be allowed to ask
guestions at the end of the officer presentations. Residents who were present
and had been kept waiting in the rain for some time reasonably assumed, until
told otherwise, that they could freely ask questions and those who needed to
return to work wished to make their points early in the meeting. This brought a
degree of frustration to the meeting and was compounded by the comment
about helicopters from Councillor Galvin which was not received in the spirit in
which it was delivered. The presence of the lorry created a distraction from
the business of the site visit and therefore Councillor Galvin was keen to
ensure, that as the Chair he controlled the meeting and ensured that officers
were not subjected to undue pressure. Councillors have a duty of care to
Council employees.

It is clear from my interviews that members of the public, and also Councillors,
were frustrated by the way in which the visit was being conducted. In my view,
Councillor Galvin was trying to effectively chair a difficult meeting. This was
done by ensuring the rules of the visit were adhered to and that the meeting
was not distracted from its purpose. There was no consensual evidence given
at my interviews that demonstrated that Councillor Galvin bullied, swore or
intimidated members of the public.

In order to avoid such frustration, at future site meetings the Council may wish
to consider making the rules of visits more accessible for residents prior to
attendance. It might be more appropriate if at least one officer were to travel
separately to the visit in order that a telephone call can be made to the site to
update on expected arrival time. In this way residents would not be left
standing in the rain for an undue length of time.

That Councillor Galvin used the term “pillock” is not in itself a breach of the
code. He said this under his breath and it was not intended to cause offence
as he did not direct it at any one person. It is however a derogatory term
made at the meeting and was made specifically about a member of the public.
We are all beneficiaries of freedom of speech and Councillor Galvin, like any
one of us, is entitled to express his views. He is however in a position of
authority which has a clearly proscribed code of conduct which states he must
‘treat others with respect’. Residents were aware he had made a remark but
were unable to specify what it was. This does not detract from the fact that he
did make a remark which was derogatory about a member of the public and
therefore | find that Councillor Galvin did in fact breach the code of conduct by
not treating others with respect.

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 7



Page 158

Annex 8

33.  Turning to the allegation that Councillor Galvin had a prejudicial interest. The
Code of Conduct states that you have a prejudicial interest

“f you have a personal interest and a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard it as so significant that it would likely
prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you have a prejudicial interest.”

This is subject to the exceptions set out in paragraph 6.4

6(4) You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority where
that business:

(c) does not affect your financial position or the financial position of a
person or body named in the second schedule:

(d)  does not relate to the determination of any approval, consent, licence,
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body
described in the second schedule;

Second Schedule — Other Interests

3. Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority

4, Any body —
(c) exercising functions of a public nature:
(d)  directed to charitable purposes; ”

34. Councillor Galvin declared a personal interest as a member of the governors
of the York Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust and “He clarified that as a
Governor, he was appointed by the Council and was not involved in the
operational running of any of the hospital’s business matters. He added that
membership of the Hospital’'s Governing body was open to all.”

35. The sale of Groves Chapel would have brought in an estimated £710,000 to
the accounts of the Trust. This sum, whilst reducing the deficit, would not
make any significant impact on a predicted £13.3m deficit. Councillor Galvin
was in a position to criticise financial decisions at the Trust but not in any
position to make financial decisions. Whilst the decision to sell the Groves
Chapel did affect the hospital’s finances it was not such a significant affect
that it could be demonstrated that Councillor Galvin had any more interest
than any of the other Councillors present at the meeting. Councillor Galvin
does have a duty for the well-being of all York electors and residents and as
such should take this into account when considering the planning
applications. Councillors must consider and balance the benefits for the
electorate as a whole with the benefits or otherwise for those electors affected
by a planning application. This was clearly demonstrated by the debate which
took place at this particular meeting. In acting as a Governor of the Trust
Councillor Galvin as a nominee of the Council is there in his capacity as a
Councillor representing the York electors/residents. | do not consider that

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 8



36.

37.

38.

Page 159
Annex 8

Councillor Galvin breached the Code of Conduct in this instance as he did not
have a prejudicial interest that was so significant that it would materially affect
his judgement.

There was much debate at the planning committee meeting and all those who
had registered to speak were allowed their three minutes. | am not persuaded
that Councillor Galvin did anything other than try to keep the meeting running
smoothly and ensure that not too much time was taken for this one particular
agenda item. | was not furnished with any consensus views that persuaded
me that Councillor Galvin had bullied or intimidated anyone at the meeting. |
would conclude therefore that Councillor Galvin did not Breach the Code of
conduct as alleged.

The planning process whilst dealing with applications within the law has
constrained the ability of residents to make their voices heard. This only
serves, in some instances, to frustrate those who are clearly passionate
campaigners/advocates for objection. The planning process document could
make it much clearer what the purpose of site visits are and emphasise the
site visit process. This would allow residents to digest what they are allowed
to do and come to the visit better prepared to accept that it is not the debating
chamber. It is not acceptable to leave people standing in the rain. It would be
more appropriate to have an officer already present at the site to take calls
from the committee and explain the delays to residents.

To conclude | find that Councillor Galvin did breach the code by commenting,
within earshot of members of the public at a public meeting, “This man’s being
a Pillock” he was not treating others with respect but that he did not breach
the code with regard to having a prejudicial interest. In addition he did not
breach the code by bullying or intimidating anyone present at either the site
meeting or the Planning sub-committee meetings.

Christine Bainton Voluntary Independent Investigator Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161

Annex 9

City of York Council Standards e A
Committee p YQBLK

Pre Hearing Checklist

Complainant

Subject Member Councillor John Galvin
Investigating Officer Ms Christine Bainton

Do you intend to attend the proposed hearing to give evidence or
make representations?

Yes/No Yes

Do you wish to be represented at the hearing by a solicitor,
barrister or another person?’

Yes/No No

If so by who?

Name of representative and capacity in which they act: e.g. solicitor,
friend, fellow Councillor

Do you wish the whole or any part of the hearing to be in private?

Yes/No No

If yes please explain why?

! Although there has to be a degree of formality to the proceedings of the committee it will be unusual for
subject members to be represented. The procedure is not adversarial. The Committee will act in an
inquisitorial manner to ensure that the circumstances of the case are fully understood.

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or nay part of it should
be in private




Page 162

Do you wish any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other
relevant documents to be withheld from the public?

Yes/No No

If yes please explain why”

Do you disagree with any of the facts found by the investigating
officer as set out in his/her report?

Yes/No YES

If yes please set out briefly the facts that you dispute and your view
as to the true factual position

As at pare 38 in the final report as sofar as it comments on my comment to cllegue on the
Committee as highlighted below.

To conclude | find that Councillor Galvin did breach the code by commenting,
within earshot of members of the public at a public meeting, “This man’s being
a Pillock” he was not treating others with respect but that he did not breach the
code with regard to having a prejudicial interest. In addition he did not breach the
code by bullying or intimidating anyone present at either the site meeting or the
Planning sub-committee meetings

| also quote here the investigating officer
This is a slang term defined as meaning “stupid person”

(www.oxforddictionaries.com). It is not a swear word. It was not said directly to a
member of the public.

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or any part of it should
be in private.



http://www.oxforddictionaries.com/

Page 163

Do you believe that withesses should be called to the Hearing

Yes/No No

If yes please identify the witnesses who you wish to be called and
briefly identify the issues that they will be able to give evidence
about”

* The Monitoring Officer and Chair will consider whether any witnesses you name are likely to be able to give
evidence which will be of value to the Hearing Panel. If they are then those witnesses will be invited to attend.
The Panel cannot compel the attendance of any witness.




Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank.



Page 165
Annex 10

City of York Council Standards e A
Committee p cho? BLK

Pre Hearing Checklist

Complainant Mr Andrew Dickinson
Subject Member Councillor John Galvin
Investigating Officer Ms Christine Bainton

Do you intend to attend the proposed hearing to give evidence or
make representations?

Yes.

Do you wish to be represented at the hearing by a solicitor,
barrister or another person?’

No.

If so by who?

N/A

Do you wish the whole or any part of the hearing to be in private?

No.

If yes please explain why?

N/A

! Although there has to be a degree of formality to the proceedings of the committee it will be unusual for
subject members to be represented. The procedure is not adversarial. The Committee will act in an
inquisitorial manner to ensure that the circumstances of the case are fully understood.

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or nay part of it should
be in private




Page 166

Do you wish any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other
relevant documents to be withheld from the public?

No.

If yes please explain why”

N/A

Do you disagree with any of the facts found by the investigating
officer as set out in his/her report?

Yes.

If yes please set out briefly the facts that you dispute and your view
as to the true factual position

Paragraph 25 of the report states that:-

During his interview, he (Mr Galvin) said that he made an aside comment to another Councillor. He
said “This man’s being a Pillock” in reference to the person who was driving a lorry.

As many of the objections centred on the highway implications the purpose of the lorry was to
illustrate the problems the Sainsbury’s delivery vehicles would create. That Mr Galvin described the
man as a ‘Pillock’ demonstrates that he came with a predetermined view and, therefore, he was
unwilling to listen and to fairly consider the points raised by objectors, of which there were a
significant number, with an open mind and reach an unbiased determination.

Paragraph 29 also makes reference to the lorry ‘being a distraction’. As mentioned above the purpose
of the lorry was to help illustrate the difficulties of such a large vehicle negotiating Union Terrace,
particularly the sharp 90 degree bend. Incidentally the lorry had to mount the pavement to manoeuvre
around the corner, a point missed by all officers and committee members present at the site visit!

Paragraph 27 of the report states that:- (Cont)

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or any part of it should
be in private.




Page 167

He believes that he made this comment (reference to arriving my helicopter) to diffuse a hostile
situation.

I do not believe this to be true. Making unprofessional comments such as this do not ‘diffuse’
situations they make them worse. I believe this illustrates Mr Galvin’s dislike to the objectors and
why | believe he acted with bias in approving the development. If Mr Galvin wanted to ‘diffuse’ the
situation he should have apologised and been sympathetic to those waiting in the rain for over an
hour. His abrasive comments further demonstrate his hostility towards the objectors.

Do you believe that withesses should be called to the Hearing

No.

If yes please identify the witnesses who you wish to be called and
briefly identify the issues that they will be able to give evidence

about*

* The Monitoring Officer and Chair will consider whether any witnesses you name are likely to be able to give
evidence which will be of value to the Hearing Panel. If they are then those witnesses will be invited to attend.
The Panel cannot compel the attendance of any witness.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 169
Annex 11

City of York Council Standards e A
Committee p cho? BLK

Pre Hearing Checklist

Complainant Mr Michael Askew
Subject Member Councillor John Galvin
Investigating Officer Ms Christine Bainton

Do you intend to attend the proposed hearing to give evidence or
make representations?

No

Do you wish to be represented at the hearing by a solicitor,
barrister or another person?’

No

If so by who?

Name of representative and capacity in which they act: e.g. solicitor,
friend, fellow Councillor

Do you wish the whole or any part of the hearing to be in private?

No

If yes please explain why?

! Although there has to be a degree of formality to the proceedings of the committee it will be unusual for
subject members to be represented. The procedure is not adversarial. The Committee will act in an
inquisitorial manner to ensure that the circumstances of the case are fully understood.

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or nay part of it should
be in private




Page 170

Do you wish any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other
relevant documents to be withheld from the public?

No

If yes please explain why”

Do you disagree with any of the facts found by the investigating
officer as set out in his/her report?

No

If yes please set out briefly the facts that you dispute and your view
as to the true factual position

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or any part of it should
be in private.




Page 171

Do you believe that withesses should be called to the Hearing

Yes

If yes please identify the witnesses who you wish to be called and
briefly identify the issues that they will be able to give evidence
about”

As a matter of principle it should be possible to call witnesses. However my complaint related to a
matter of public record which is not in dispute, therefore there are no witnesses necessary to uphold
my complaint.

* The Monitoring Officer and Chair will consider whether any witnesses you name are likely to be able to give
evidence which will be of value to the Hearing Panel. If they are then those witnesses will be invited to attend.
The Panel cannot compel the attendance of any witness.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173
Annex 12

City of York Council Standards e A
Committee p cho? BLK

Pre Hearing Checklist

Complainant Mrs Rosy Dickinson
Subject Member Councillor John Galvin
Investigating Officer Ms Christine Bainton

Do you intend to attend the proposed hearing to give evidence or
make representations?

Yes/No

Do you wish to be represented at the hearing by a solicitor,
barrister or another person?’

Yes/No

If so by who? My husband Andrew Dickinson

Name of representative and capacity in which they act: e.g. solicitor,
friend, fellow Councillor

Do you wish the whole or any part of the hearing to be in private?

Yes/No

If yes please explain why?

! Although there has to be a degree of formality to the proceedings of the committee it will be unusual for
subject members to be represented. The procedure is not adversarial. The Committee will act in an
inquisitorial manner to ensure that the circumstances of the case are fully understood.

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or nay part of it should
be in private




Page 174

Do you wish any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other
relevant documents to be withheld from the public?

Yes/No

If yes please explain why”

Do you disagree with any of the facts found by the investigating
officer as set out in his/her report?

Yes/No

If yes please set out briefly the facts that you dispute and your view
as to the true factual position

1. He was personally biased for the development to go ahead to help the NHS, for whom he

was a committee member.

He treated the general public with disdain and contempt.

He silenced the public — repeatedly.

He was rude, particularly to Angus, who walked away because of his attitude.

He was sarcastic, “oh we should have come by helicopter”

He said at the planning meeting we would look at mitigation measures at the end of the

meeting — he never did this.

7. He was a misogynist, a dinosaur — who mis-treated the public and acted as a bully —and
made York city council look to be totally un-democratic.

oukwnN

? The Standards Committee’s general position is that hearings should be held in public and that documents
should be publicly available in advance of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances in which fairness
to individuals dictates and the provisions of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 allow,
information to be considered in private. The Council’s proper officer will determine whether papers should be
publicly available and the Hearing Sub Committee will determine whether the meeting or any part of it should
be in private.




Page 175

Do you believe that withesses should be called to the Hearing

Yes/No

If yes please identify the witnesses who you wish to be called and
briefly identify the issues that they will be able to give evidence
about”

* The Monitoring Officer and Chair will consider whether any witnesses you name are likely to be able to give
evidence which will be of value to the Hearing Panel. If they are then those witnesses will be invited to attend.
The Panel cannot compel the attendance of any witness.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda for Area Planning Sub-Committee onPage 177 April, 2016, 4.30 pm Page ! of 5
Annex 13

Agenda and minutes

Area Planning Sub-Committee
Thursday, 7th April, 2016 4.30 pm

Attendance details

s Apgendafrontsheet IPDE 1878
Agenda reports pack @&p0E 2 s
Printed minutes F3E0 w140

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West Offices (F045). View directions
Contact: Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook

Webcast: video recording

items

Neo. [tem
52. Daeclarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:

any personai interests not inciuded on the Register of Interests
any prejudicial interests or
any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

Minutes:

At this point in the meeting, Members were asked to declare if they had any persenal, prejudicial or disclosable
pecuniary interests in the businessin the meeting.

Councillor Galvin declared a personal interest in Agenda ltems 3a) and 3b) Groves Chape!, Union Terrace as he was a
Governor of Yark Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. The building was owned by the NHS. He clarified thatas a
Governor, he was appointed by the Councit and was not involved in the operational running of any of the hospital’s
husiness matters. He added that membership of the Hospital's Governing body was open to all.

No other interests were declared.

53. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the
agenda or an issue within the Sub-Comnittee’s remit can do so. Anyone whowishes to register or requires further

file:///C:/Users/cycaw?2/AppData/Local/Microsoft/ Windows/T emporary%20Internet%... 06/06/2016



Agenda for Area Planning SLtb—CormnittePage 178_!_, 7th April, 2016, 4.30 pm Anngﬁgq % of 5

54,

S54a

information is reguested to contact the Democracy Officer on the contact details listed at the foot of this agenda.The
deadline for registering is Wednesday 6 April 2016 at 5.00 pm.

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

Please note this meeting may be filmed and webcast or audio recorded and that includes any registered public
speakers, who have given their permission. The broadcast can be viewed at http.//www.york.gov.uk/webcasts orif
sound recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council's website following the mesting.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors and Officers at all meetings open to the press and
public. This includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyane wishing to film, record or take photos at
any public meeting should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are at the foot of this agenda) in
advance of the meeting.

The Council’s protocol on Wehcasting, Filming & Recording of Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out
in a manner both respectful fo the conduct of the meeting and all those present. It ¢an be viewed at
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/fite/6453/protocel for webcasting filming_and recording_council meetingspdf

Minutes:

It was reported that there had been no registrations under the Council's Public Participation Scheme on general
issues within the remit of the Committee.

Plans List

To determine the following planning applications:

Minutes:

Members considered 2 schedule of reports of the Assistant
Director {Development Services, Planning and Regeneration)
relating to the following planning applications outlining the
nroposals a2nd refevant policy considerations and setting out the
views of consultees and Officers.

roves Chapel, Union Terrace, Yar 3 M) 4 PDE 204 KB

Change of use of existing building with internal and external alterations to form cenveniene store at ground floor,
2no. flats at first floor and erection of four storey extension to rear to accommodate 14no. flats with associated car
and cycle parking [Guildhall]

Additional documents:

o Groves Chapelpdf 430 235 kit

Minutes:

Members considered a full major application by Clarence Unicn Developments for a change of use of an existing
building with internal and external alterations to form aconvenience store at ground floor, 2ne. fiats at first floor and
the erection of a four storey extension ta the rear to accommodate 14 no. flats with associated car and cycle parking.

Representations in ohjection were received from:

Mr Andrew Dickinsen who commented that in the Local Plan section on shopping developments that it stated that
permission should net be granted if there was considered to be an adverse effect on neighbouring properties and he
felt that there would be an adverse effect. He added that the noise statement provided by the applicant, mentioned
that the development would emitin total 27db, which was equivalent to a construction site. He further commented
that, in his opinion, the develepment did not provide 2 diverse retail experience for the community, given the
closeness of other convenience stores to the site.

Mrs Rosie Dickinson, whaomentioned that Union Terrace was a cul de sac with problems with traffic and safety, and
asked Members to consider a deferral in order for a highways report to be received. She referred to subsidence issues
and that an ongoing investigation by the cauncil inrespect of whether a weight limit needed to be imposed onvehides
using the road. In respect of delivery vehictes she asked Members to consider a reduction in the size and weight of
these and regarding defivery times, suggesting that residents would apprediate if the applicants woutd consider
changing thisto 10 am- 4pm.

Angus McArthur, wha commented that the road had not been buift for two way traffic and circulated photographs
amongst Members, to demonstrate.

Michael Askew, wha spoke about Hope Church's wish to buy the chapel to restore it, if the current proposal failed to
do so. Although the Churd would not be able to match a commercial offer to buy the chapel, it could raise a
substantial figure.

file:///C:/Users/cycaw2/AppData/Local/Microsoft/ Windows/Temporary%20Internetb...  06/06/2016



Agenda for Area Planning Sub-Committee onp age 179 April, 2016, 4.30 pm Page 3 of 5

54b

S4c

544

Annex 13

Brian Dunning, who spoke about the @mparison sites for convenience stores usedto assess traffic, and traffic
surveys in York. He commented that these had been taken from Sheffield where the shop was substantially smaller
and Cardiff where the shop was difficult to find. Inregards to the traffic survey on Beckfield [.ane, he suggested that
there was inadequate parking as this suffered from congestion and parking on double yellow lines.

Reverend Alastair Rycros, from St Thomas’ Church, who referred to there being no desire in the community for the
shop because there were three stores focated within ten minutes of the site. He feit that the development would
worsen congestion in the area, and also suggested that the proposal was not the only option for reuse ofthe buifding.

Representations were then received in support of the application from the agent, Gavin Douglas. He spoke about how
the building had been underused, neededsignificant repairs and in order to continue to supportit, ... view the fuil

minutes text for item 54a
Groves Chapel, Union Terrace, York, YO31 7WS (15/02834/LBC t1PDF 222 K8

Internal and external alterations in association with change of use of existing building to form convenience store at
ground floor, 2no. flats at first floar and erection of four storey extension to rear to accommedate 14no. flats with
associated car and cycle parking [Guildhall)

Additional documents:
»  Groyves Chapel.pdf £3p0f 2326

Minutes:

Members considered 2 listed building application by Clarence Union Developments for internal and external
alterations in association with change of use of existing buildings to form convenience store at ground floor, 2 no. flats
at first floor and erection of four storey extension to rearto accommodate 14 no. flats with assoctated car and cycle

parking.
This application was considered at the same time as Plans Item 54a).
Resolved: That the application be approved subject to the conditions listed in the Officer's report.

Reason: The proposals would secure a long term use for the chapel building, this is central to ensuring it retains a
landmark building. It is considered that the works whilst creating a new long termuse for the building
have an overall neutral impact on its special historical and architectural character.

Fosshank Boarding Kenpels, Strensalt Road, York YO32 95§ {15/02843/FUL) [3POE 165 KB

Demolition of existing kennels, stables quarantine and cattery buildings, erection of 4no. detached dwellings with
garages, and provision of new access road from existing driveway [Strensall]

Additional documents:
s Fosshank Boarding Kenngls.pdf PO 59 xH

Minutes:

Members considered a fuil application by Mrs A & M Royle & Barker for the demolition of existing kenneis, stables
auarantine and cattery buildings, erection of 4 no. detached dwellings with garages, and provision of a new access
road from an existing driveway.

In their update to Members, Officers reported that the applicant sought deferrat so that the second reason for refusal,
to undertake a bat survey, could be addressed.

Resolved: That the application be deferred to be determined at a later date.

Reason: To atlow for further information {o be provided on roosting bats.

Bicis ¥ Mas,59-63 Walmgate, York YO1 9TG (16/00012/FUL] 3 PDF 91 KR

Use of rear yard for cafe seating associated with existing retail use. [Guildhall] [Site Visit].
Additional documents:

s BicisyMas.pdf BIP0E192KE
Minutes:

Members considered a full application by Mr Ellis Thackray for the use of rear yard for café seating associated with
existing retail use,

file:///C:/Users/cycaw2/AppData/Local/Microsoft/ Windows/Temporary %20Internet%... 06/06/2016



Agenda for Area Planning Sub—CommittfPage 180y, 7th April, 2016, 4.30 pm Ann 8&8% of 5

Officers provided an update to Members, in which they advised that since their report had been written and
published two additional objections had been received. One of these objections included a noise report, and that the
site was predominantly a café not a retail premises/hike repair shop. In addition, if Members were minded to approve
the application COfficers suggested that condition 2 be reworded, as the applicant had expressed a wish at the site visit
for adecrease in the number of tables in the yard. Fult details of the noise report and the reworded condition were
found in the Officer's update which was atiached to the online agenda for information.

Representations in objection were received from Mr Price. He felt that the application would have a detrimental
affect on residential amenity, and informed the Committee that the Council’s Environmentat Protection Unit had
identified a loss of amenity is likely if the rear vard was used particutarly in the evening. He highlighted than no
assessment had been carried out as to the increase in covers or extended hours by either the Council or the spplicant.

Representations in support were received from Jane Thackray, the applicant. She informed the Committes that their
pritnary business was as abike repair shop. It was reported that during a trial period in 2021, complaints about noise
received were due to a new member of staff moving recycling and the other were due to cyclists moving tables. [t was
noted that the courtyard had previously been rubhle and that the cycling community had brought more tourists to the
city. The applicant confirmed that the café was licensed but the vard was not.

Resofved: Thatthe application be approved subject to the amended condition 2, to have four tables with three chairs
around, and the conditionslisted in the Officer’s report.

Reason: Whilst noise as a conseguenceof the introduction of the outside seating area wouid be apparent at times,
the potential impact, based on pational planning policy guidance, is regarded and not intrusive, The
impact on residential amenity is considered tc be acceptable and there are no other detrimental impacts
to warrant refusal of the apptication.

COUNCIL AND DEMOCRACY

Calendar

What's new

Search

Meetings

Petitions

Decisions

Officer Decisions
Public Participation
Forward Plans
Councillors
Committees

Parish councils
Qutside bodies

MPs

MEPs

Information Reports
Library

Subscribe to updates
Work todo

Logon

file:///C:/Users/cycaw?2/AppData/Local/Microsoft/ Windows/ Temporary%20Internet%...  06/06/2016



Page 181

Annex 14
McCusker, Glen
From: Slater, Michael
Sent: 14 April 2016 11:52
TO! Docherty, Andrew
Subject: FW: The Role of the Governar Apr 16.doc
Attachments: The Role of the Governor Apr 16.doc; Code plus process version 1 july 14.doc

From: Golding, Brian [mailto:brian.golding@york.nhs.uk]
Sent; 14 April 2016 11:30

To: Slater, Michael

Cc: Gaynor, Cheryl

Subject: FW: The Role of the Governor Apr 16.doc

Hi Mike
Attached you'll find 2 documents that should help.

In the ‘code of conduct there are couple of salient points — the position in question is an
‘appointed’ governor — which means that they are representing the appointing authority and in
section G it's clear that there’s no managerial role.

In the ‘role of the governor document you'll see that the council of governors have fo approve
‘significant transactions’. This definition of a significant transaction is set by the NHS regulators
known as Monitor. Monitor's definition of a significant transaction is 25% of annual turnover. The
hospital decided to reduce this limit themselves at our Board meeting in February 2016 to 15% -
which for this Trust means that only transactions of more than £34m would go to Council of
Governors.

The disposal of Grove'’s chapel is a £713,000 transaction and so hasn’'t gone anywhere near the
Govemors, (in fact it's below the threshold where it needed Board of Director's approval, which is
£1im.)

Hope this helps. Our expert on this is the Trust secretary, Anna Pridmore, who unfortunately is on
leave ~ but Cheryl in the CEOs office should be able to root out any further references that you
might want.

Best wishes

Brian Golding

Director of Estates and Facilities
From: Gaynor, Cheryl

Sent: 14 Aprit 2016 10:33

To: Golding, Brian
Subject: The Role of the Governor Apr 16.doc



Page 182

York Teaching Hospital

NHS Foundation Trust

GOVERNORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
The York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is an apolitical organisation

1. All members of The York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust's
(YTHNHSFT) Council of Governors will:

Abide by the Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan), which are:

Selflesshess

Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of public interest.
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for
themselves, their family, or friends.

Integrity

Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might influence
them in their performance of their official duties.

Objectivity

In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits,
holders of public office should make choices on merit.

Accountability

Holders of the public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to
the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to
their office.

Openness

Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions
and actions they take They should give reasons for their decisions and
restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

Honesty

Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way
that protects the public interest.

Leadership
Holders of the public office should promote and support these principles by
leadership and example.

Govemors are also required to:

a. Actively support the vision and aims of the YTHNHSFT in developing as &
successful NHSFT;

July 2014



Page 183 Annex 14

b. Act in the best interests of the Trust at all times;

c. Attend the Council of Governor public meetings held 4 times a year on a
regular basis and attend sub committee meetings held during the year, where
you have agreed to be a member,

d. Proactively contribute to the work of the Council of Governors in order for it to
fulfil its role as defined in the Trust’s constitution and Monitor’s guidance;

e. Recognise that the Councit of Governors exercises collective decision-making
on behalf of all patients, members, local community and staff and respond fo
information provided to the Councit of Governors;

f. Not expect any privilege arising from being a governor, e.g. being able to
obtain more preferential treatment,

g. Recognise that the Council of Governors has no managerial role within the
YTHNHSFT,;

h. Value and respect governor colleagues, and all members of staff,
i. Respect the confidentiality of information received in their role as Governors;
j. Conduct themselves in a manner that reflects positively on the YTHNHSFT;

k. In undertaking the role of Governor of this NHS Foundation Trust all
Governors shall sign the following declaration:

i. Ift am a member of any trade union, political party or other political
organisation, recognise that | must declare this fact and that | will not be
representing those organisations (or the views of those organisations)
but will be representing the constituency (patient, public or staff) that
elected me;

i. Seek to ensure that my fellow governors are valued as fellow
colleagues and that their views are both respected and considered;

iii.  Not bring the Trust into disrepute;

iv.  Show my commitment to working as a team member by working with all
my colleagues in the NHS and the wider community;

v. Seek to ensure that the membership of the constituency | represent is
properly informed and given the opportunity to infiuence services;

vi. Seek to ensure that no one is discriminated against because of their

religion, belief, race, colour, gender, marital status, disability, sexual
orientation, age, social and economic status or national origin;

July 2014



Page 184 Annex 14

vii.  Comply with the Trust's constitution;
vii. Respect the confidentiality of individual patients;

ix. Not knowingly make, or permit, any untrue or misleading statement
relating to my own duties or the functions of the YTHNHSFT,;

x. Make every effort to discuss a request from the media with the
Communications Manager prior to providing any response; and, ifa
comment is given to the media, Governors must contact the

Communications Manager to advise on what you have said and to
whom;

xi.  Support and assist the Accountable Officer (Chief Executive) of the
YTHNHSFT in his/her responsibility to answer to the Regulators,
commissioners and the public for the performance of the Trust.

xii. Governors are asked to join at least 2 groups per year or maintain

membership of 2 groups and be an active member of the Councii of
Governors.

Name of Governor
Constituency represented
Signature

Date

July 2014



Page 185 Annex 14

Council of Governor conduct of governors process

Governors are either elected by members of the public/ staff or appointed by a
stakeholder. Each governor has a responsibility to ensure they represent the people
who either elected them or appointed them.

The following process will be followed by the Council of Governors on the occasion
when a governor does not fulfil their requirements as a Governor.

When it is identified that a governor has not behaved in line with the code of conduct
the following process will be used.

1

If a governor notices something that concerns them about a fellow governor, the
Governor should consult with two fellow Governors.

Following that consultation, if the governors feel this is an issue that should be
brought to the attention of the Lead Governor then an Informal discussion
should be held with the Lead Governor and the three Governors. The Lead
Governor must ask the three Governors to put their concerns in writing.

The Lead Governor should contact the Chairman and FT Secretary to inform
them of the concern. The Lead Governor, Chairman and FT Secretary should
then discuss any appropriate actions. If the Lead Governor does not receive a
letter from fellow Governors identifying their concerns, the Lead Governor,
Chairman and FT Secretary may agree appropriate informal actions. if a letter is
received by the Lead Governor more formal action can be taken.

Informal action — The Lead Governor to speak to the individual who has had
concerns raised about them. The Lead Governor, Chairman and FT Secretary
will have agreed a plan of action.

Foliowing the conversation a note written by the Lead Governor should be put
on the Governors file held by the Trust.

Formal action — The Chairman will meet with the Governor concerned and
provide a copy of the complaint letter to the Governor along with a proposed list
of actions to address the concern raised. The Chairman will also inform the
individual of the next steps should the issue not be addressed.

If the issue that gave rise to the complaint initially is not resolved, the Lead
Governor, Chairman and FT Secretary will meet and agree how a further
investigation should be undertaken.

The individual Governor should be advised that a further investigation is taking
place which will result in the findings being discussed by the Council of
Governors. The investigation should include an opportunity for the individuat to
have non-legal representation.

July 2014



Page 186

Annex 14

8  Under the Constitution the issue has to be put to the Council of Governors and
the individual Governor concerned has the opportunity to make further
representation to the Council of Governors.

9  The Council of Governors should consider the evidence submitted and the
options available to them. The Council of Governors are responsible for making
a decision about removing a fellow governor from the Council of Governors.

Governor identifies a concern

Governor raises the concern with
at least two other Governors

Gavernars raise concern with Lead
Governor initially informally

Lead Governor asks Governors who
raised concerns to put their concerns
in writing

Lead Governor raises concerns with
Chairman and FT Secretary

Informal approach

The Lead Governor will contact the
individual to discuss the concerns
raised and agree with the Governor
what steps it is proposed would be
taken to support the Governor and
address the concern,

Formal approach

The Chairman will meet with the
individual and share the submitted
letter (with or without signatures —
depends on the circumstances) and
outline a proposed plan of action to
address the concerns identified.

July 2014

If there is evidence of no
improvement or resolution of the
issue, the Chairman, Lead Governor
and FT Secretary will undertake a
further investigation.

Refer results to CoG for final
decision.

Election will be run if appropriate.




Page 187 Annex 14

York Teaching Hospital NHS

NH5% Foundation Trust

The Role of the Governor

Governors’ roles and responsibilities are outlined in legislation and detailed in
the Trust’s constitution. The primary function of the Council of Governors is:

¢ To hold the Non-executive Directors (NEDs) individually and
collectively to account for the performance of the Board of Directors
and

o To represent the interests of the members of the Trust as a whole and
the interests of the public

Governors must act in the best interests of the NHS Foundation Trust and
should adhere to its values and code of conduct.

Statutory Responsibilities

Prior to the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Governors were given the
following responsibilities

« Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the Chair and other non-executive
directors;

« Decide the remuneration and allowances, and the other terms and
conditions of office, of the Chair and the other Non-executive Directors,

« Approve the appointment of the Chief Executive;

« Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the NHS Foundation Trust’s external
auditor; and

* Receive the NHS Foundation Trust's Annual Accounts, any report of the
Auditor on them and the Annual Report and Quality Report.

In addition, in preparing the NHS Foundation Trust's “Forward Plan”, the
Board of Directors must have regard to the views of the Council of Governors.

The Heaith and Social Care Act 2012 provided a number of additional
statutory powers and duties that Governors will hold, these include:

+ Governors must be satisfied that that earning of private patient income will
not significantly interfere with their Trusts principal purpose of the
performance of its functions (namely, NHS work). Therefore, Governors
are required to approve proposed increases of 5% or more to their non-
principal purpose income.



Page 188

« 'Significant transactions' must be approved by the Governors. Approval
means that more than half of the Governors voting agree with the
transaction.,

¢« Amendments to the Trust's Constitution must be approved by the Council
of Governors. Approval means more than half of the Governors voting
agree with the amendments.

« Where there has been an amendment to the Constitution which relates to
the powers, duties or roles of the Council of Governors, at least one
governor must attend the next Annual Members' Meeting and present the
amendmenit to the members. Members have the right to vote on and veto
these types of constifutional amendments.

s (Governors may require one or more of the directors to attend a meeting to
obtain information about the Trust's performance of its functions or the
directors’ performance of their duties.

Breaking the role down

Holding NEDs to account

One of the primary duties of a Governor is to hold the NEDs individually and
collectively to account, which relates to assessing how well (or not) the NEDs
are scrutinising the Board’s performance and decisions. This assessment
requires, objectively knowing how the board is performing and if targets are
not being met, whether NEDs are appropriately challenging the board.

The board can also be held to account by providing challenge at Council of
Governors meeting or if the concerns are serious (in that the terms of
authorisation are being breached) by contacting Monitor for help and
intervention.

There are a number of documents provided by the Trust, which provide a
picture of the board’s performance and can be used to keep track of
performance:

» Performance reports (mortality, falls, pressure ulcers, complaints,
PALs, Serious Incidents)

Financial reports

Quality account

Strategies/plans

Monitoring rating

Care Quality Commission registration — inspection reports

There are a number of questions that a Governor can ask of themself to
identify gaps in knowledge:

Annex 14



Page 189 Annex 14

e How do you assure yourself that the Trust is taking the right course of
action about an issue and do you understand the risks?

e Do you know what the structure of the board’s committee structure and
how performance is monitored through to the board?

e is sufficient challenge provided by the NEDs? Do executives answer
the challenge in a satisfactory manner? Does the Chair ensure follow
up? Does the CoG check that follow up?

Representing the interests of members

The other half of the Governor's role is in a representative capacity.

» Representing the interests of members and the public
+ Relaying information about the Trust, its vision and performance

In order to help with this element, there are some key points which can assist

Be aware of the Trust's strategic frames

Understand the local health economy

Understand the local demographics of your area

Communicate with members and members of the public; this can be on
a formal basis at evenis such as open days, Council of Governors and
other community/locality meetings or as a consequence of meeting
people whilst going about everyday fiving.

s Whilst Governors are voted in by members they do not have 3
democratically accountable relationship to them (such as an MP).
Governors are not responsible for making representations on behalf of
individuals or groups of members and going back to them with a result
in the same way that a local politician does.

It is essential that a Council of Governors works as a team recognises
individual skills and knowledge in order to function effectively as a group.

Governors are asked to sign a Code of Conduct, the points of which should
be reflected in their dealings with each other, staff members, Trust members

and members of the public.



Page 190

Annex 14

What Governors Do

What Governors Do Not Do

Work as part of the council of governors
Adhere to the code of conduct and respect
the confidentiality of information they may
receive in their role.

Have the authority to act individually on
behalf of the Trust.

The role involves talking and listening to
members about issues and concerns, about
what is working well and what could be
improved, and feeding those views into the
work of the Council.

Respond to, or champion complaints.

Improve a service, to check that the
organisation is working effectively to achieve
its purpose and to protect the interests of
the people who use the service as well as
the people who provide the service (staff).

Should not pursue a personal agenda
at the expense of others' or participate
in discussions where they have a
personal interest in the outcome

Act as quardians to ensure that the
Foundation Trust operates in a way that fits
with its statement of purpose and complies
with its authonsation.

Are not responsible for the day to day
running of the Trust.

Are not expected to always agree with other
staff governors or other governors in
general. Governors are expected to be
professional when disagreement occurs.

Attend Governor training sessions as
necessary.

Take a full role in the Council of Governors
and its duties and take part in focused work.

What Staff Governors Do

What Staff Governors Do Not Do

Represent the interests of staff throughout
the organisation especially those of their
particular consfituency.

Staff Governors do not work on behalf
of individual staff members or
represent individuals to resoclve issues
or problems.

Have equal rights with all other governors —
are not restricted fo maiters of staff interest
only.

Have a mandate to express any views,
other than their own.

Report in good faith any widely held staff
views to the Council of Governors, bringing
a staff member viewpoint and perspective to
discussion and debate.

The staff governor role is very different
from trade unions, professional bodies
and staff-side organisations.

Advise staff of the work undertaken by the
Council of Governors and seek their views.

Support other governors to understand how
the Trust operates.

Be very clear about what information can be
reported back to colleagues and staff
members.

Apr 16




	Agenda
	2 Complaint against a Member of City of York Council
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3
	Annex 4a
	Annex 4b
	Annex 5
	Annex 6
	Annex 7
	Annex 8
	Annex 9
	Annex 10
	Annex 11
	Annex 12
	Annex 13
	Annex 14




